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Forward-Looking
Statements

Certain matters discussed in
this report, except historical
information, include
forward-tooking statements.
Although Williams believes
such statements are based
on reasonable assumptions,
ng asstrance can be given
that every objective will be
achieved. For more detail,
see page 20 of the Form 10-K
in the back of this report.

On the Cover

Photos, clockwise, starting
at the top right:

o Qur momentum in
Colorade's Piceance
Basin continues to grow,
aided by the use of
technologically advanced
drilling rigs that allow us
to drill up to 22 wells trom
a single location.

* Transco's comgressor
station 82 sits next to ane
of our natural gas liquids
extraction plants, which
is located seven miles
inland near Caden, Ala. The
remote contrat system at
this station controls and
monitors Junction Platform
block 822 in Mabile Bay
south of Dauphin Island.

floating produsction system
located approximately

150 miles south of Mobile,
Ala., in the Gulf of Mexico's
Mississippi Canyon Block
773. Located in 5,610 feet
of water, it is the world's
deepest dry tree spar. The
platform is capabie of
producing 60,000 barrels
per day of oil and 110
million cubic feet per day of
natural gas.

Williams' Devils Tower is 2

Financial Highlights

Dollars in millions, except per-share amounts

2006

Revenues' $11.8129  $125836  $124613  $166510
Inceme (loss} from continuing operations? 3328 3174 93.2 {57.5) {618.4)
Income {loss) from discontinued operations? (24.3) (Zh ' 70.5 3266 {136.3}
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principles® — (L7 — {761.3) —
Diluted eamings {loss) per common share:

Income (loss} from continuing operations 55 5 18 in {137

Income {loss) from discontinued operations (.04} — 13 .63 (.26}

Cumulative effect af changa in accounting principtes — — — (147) —
Total assets at December 31 25,4024 294426 239930 270218 349885
Short-term notes payable and long-term

debt due within one year at December 31 3921 1226 250.1 9385 20771
Long-term debt at Decembes 31 71,6220 75305 77119 11,039.8 11,075.7
Stockholders’ equity at December 3) 6073.2 5421.5 49559 41021 5.049.0
Cash dividends per comman share 345 25 08 04 42

' As part of pur adoption of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 02-3 “Issues Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts Heid for
Trading Purposes and Cantracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities." (EITF 02-3), we concluded that revenues
and costs of sales from nonderivative contracts and certain physically seltled derivative contracts should generally be reported on a gross
basis. Prior to the adoptian on January 1, 2003, these revenues were presented net of costs. As parmitted by EITF 02-3, prior year amounts
have rot been restated. Additionally, revenues within our Power segment in 2003 include approximately $117 million related to the correc-
tion of the accounting treatment previously applied to certain third-party derivative contracts during 2002 and 2001.

? See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of asset sales and other accruals in 2006, 2005, and 2004.

3 See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the analysis of the 2006, 2005 and 2004 income {loss) from discontinued opera-
tions. Resuits for the years 2003 and 2002 alsc include amounts related to the discontinued operations of certain gas processing and natural
gas liquid aperations in Canada, a soda ash mining operation, our interest and investment in Williams Energy Partrers, a bio-energy uperation,
cerfain natural gas production properties, Texas Gas Transmissicn Corporation, refining and marketing operations in the midsouth, retail travel
centers in the midsouth, Central natural gas pipeline, Mid-America pipeline, Seminole pipetine and Kern River pipeline.

* The 2005 cumulative effect of change in accounting principles is due fo implementation of (nterpretation (FIN) 47, “Accounting for Cordi-
ticnal Asset Retirement Obligations — an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.” The 2003 cumulative effect of change in accounting
principles includes a $762.5 million charge related ta the adoption of EITF 02-3, slightly offset by $1.2 million rejated to the adoption of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No, 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” The $762.5 miflion charge
primarily consisted of the then fair value of power talling, load serviag. gas transpartation and gas storage contracts. These contracts are
not derivatives and, therefore, are no longer reported at fair value.




t'ﬁ i‘ T‘ - T} -!*
~ e e e ey ‘r*/’“\;ifr\.im-'rco ©
. ~ —_ T _— : -

. ; X . i s 1 | . ) . ! H [ TN
o NN whe s A J.&.(J\'/-;'_ NSl -\J/JL\JLM-_ S O

2006 was another very successful year for Williams and for the businesses
we operate.

> For the fourth consecutive year, Williams grew income from continuing
operations. For 2006, we reported $332.8 million for this performance
measurement.

> Net cash provided by operating activities increased 30 percent to $1.9
billion for the year.

> Reflecting our confidence in the company’s performance outlook and our
commitment to shareholder value creation, we increased the company’s
quarterly dividend by 20 percent in 2006 to 9 cents per share.

>  Williams’ total return to shareholders was 14 percent in 2006, and 65
percent when measured over the past two years.

> Record-level natural gas liquids margins in our
midstream business contributed significantly to our
results.

> An accelerated natural gas production schedule and
deployment of new, high-tech rigs in our core Piceance
Basin area also boosted returns.

> We completed $1.6 billion of asset transactions with
Williams Partners L.P., which provides a low-cost
source of funds to help grow our other businesses.

> We filed new rate cases at both of our major interstate
pipelines.

Steve Malcolm
Chairman, President and CEQ
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Business Model and Strategy
Drive Company's Growth

This performance reflects the strength of Wiiliams’
leadership team and the benefits of our complementary
nalural gas businesses. Our primary businesses are rich
with opportunities and have tremendous potential for
growth. Working in concert, they enable us to deliver
stable. strong and sustainable returns in a variety of

commaodity price environments,

* Exploration & Production is Williams® most significant
growth vehicle. This business is supported by long-lived
natural gas reserves and a management team with a
strong track record of replacing those reserves at lower-
than-industry-average finding and development costs
and u 99 percent drilling success rate. As a producer,

this unit benefits from strong natural gas prices.

Midstream provides strong cash flow from operating
activities and the ability to realize higher benefits when
natural gas liquids (NGL) margins are strong. as well
as significant growth potential in the western U.S, and
the Gulf of Mexico. Strong customer relationships and a
reputation for reliable services are the result of the solid

expertise of our management team in this unit.

Gas Pipeline underpins Williams™ credit by generating
stable cash flows. This team has an unwavering commit-
ment to safe and reliable pipeline operations combined
with designing and delivering natural gas transportation

services at computitive rates,

Power is making continued progress on its risk reduc-
tion and cash generation activities with additional
contrucling opportunities beyond 2010, In addition.
this unit helps move the natural gas produced by our
E&P unit to the best markets and buys natural gas for

our Midstream operations.

Your Board and management team are fully engaged in
executing on our business sirategy to drive growth and
value creation in the near- and long-term. This strategy is
bused on disciplined investments in natural-gas-focused
businesses located in key growth areas where we enjoy
the competitive advantages of scale, a low-cost position or

market leadership.

To support that strategy, we are midway through executing
on a set of three-year goals that we adopted in early 2006.
These goals will enable us to meet our growth targets and
generate value for you, as well as ensure best praclices in
our operations, demonstrate environmental stewardship

and our commitment to communities.
These goals include:
® Increasing production in our E&P business,

* Eaming a reputation among top praducers as the most

reliable provider of gathering and processing services.

* Placing into effect new rates on our pipeline systems,

which will increase revenues in this business unit.

* Executing power contracts that help offset our financial

obligations associated with tolling agreements,

* Continuing to implement our Environmental, Health
and Safety management system. exceeding the norms for
our industry in employee engagement and diversity, and
demonstrating an unwavering dedication to legal and

regulatory compliance.

As you will note from our results, we are making excellent
progress, Below are some of the highlights from each of our
businesses during 2006,

Exploration & Production

Our E&P husiness. which includes natural gas production
and development in the U8, Rucky' Mountains, Sun Juan
Basin and Mid-Continent. as well as oil and gas develop-
menl in South America, focuses on delivering increasing
production volumes from mostly unconventional tight
sands, coal-bed methane and shale formations. In fact,
Williams is one of the largest natural gas producers in the
United States.

E&P contributed $551.5 million in segment profit to the
company’s overall peformance. In addition 10 increasing
production volumes by 21 percent. Williams announced
U.S. year-end 2006 proved natural gas reserves of 3.7 tril-
lion cubic feet equivalent, up 9.5 percent from year-end
2005 reserves, This means Williams has replaced more

than 200 percent of its reserves for the fourth consecutive

THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.




year. That’s quite an achievement and one that directly
improves our abilily to generate sustainable positive
resulls, since these reserves add to our portfolio of long-
lived E&P assets that generally provide rapid returns on

our investments.

As our production volumes increase, we are accelerating
our investmenis in facilities for gathering, compression
and processing, particularly in the Piceance Basin, where
our production levels are up 31 percent. Our momentum
in this prolific basin continues to grow, aided by the use of
technologically advanced drilling rigs that allow us to drill
up 1o 22 wells from a single platform. In fact, we believe
we are the first company to be able to successfully employ
simultaneous operations on land, which means that we are
able 10 conduct drilling, hydraulic fracturing, perforating
and production operations al the same time on a single drill
padl. In addition to reducing our environmental impact, this
capability allows us to complete more wells quicker than

we have in the past.

We also are siepping up the pace in other basins where
we are aclive. For example, in the Powder River Basin,
located in Wyoming, our production is up 24 percent over
a year ago. We also are enjoying success in the Bamet
Shale play near Fort Worth and as a result, recently added
another dnlling nig, bringing the total to three.

Finally, I'd like to mention that we were gratified to receive
two imporiant awards this year — the Hydrocarbon Producer
of the Year Award from Platts, and the Oil and Gas Investor
Best Field Rejuvenation Awand for our work in the San
Juan Basin, These recognitions validate the hard work and
dedication of our employees to produce significant results
while making sure we work safely and with a focus on pro-
tecting the environment and the communities where we

have operations.

Midstream

Our Midstream business enjoyed a tremendous year by
any measure. This unit provides natural gas gathering and
processing services, along with NGL fractionation and
storage services and olefins production. Most of our mid-
stream operations are located in the Gulf of Mexico and the

weslemn United States.

THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.

As | previously mentioned, NGL sales margins were at
record levels and were a significant driver for this business
during 2006. Williams’ sales of NGL equity volumes in the
United States generated margins of $441.5 million — which
was 121 percent higher than in 2005. These extraordinary
NGL margins primarily reflect the spread between higher
liquids prices — which typically track closely to crude oil

prices - and lower natural gas prices.

In addition, significantly higher production handling vol-
umes and revenues in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico and
higher fee-based gathering and processing revenues also
contributed to this unit’s performance. Midstream contrib-
uted 2006 segment profit of $658.3 million, compared with
$471.2 million in 2005 — an increase of 40 percent.

During the year, Williams installed the ffth cryogenic
processing train at our gas plant in Opal, Wyo., which
began processing gas in February 2007, This expansion is
designed to boost the plant’s processing capacity by more
than 30 percent to 1.45 billion cubic feet per day and pro-
duce approximately 67,000 bearrels per day of NGLs.

One of the highest value transactions we initiated in
2006 was our development with ONEQK Partners L.P.
of the Overland Pass Pipeline project. This pipeline is
expected to provide roughly $20 million of annual tariff
savings when this project starts in 2008. It will deliver
NGLs from our Wyoming plants to markets in the Mid-
Continent. The project is an example of how we are con-
tinuing to expand our midstream husiness in the Rockies
in a way that is lower cosl, while providing more competi-

tive market outlets.

In terms of growth for this business unit, we are focusing
most of our efforts on expanding Williams™ gathering and
processing systems in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico and in
the westemn United States.

Our Tahiti, Blind Faith and Perdido Norte projects in the
Gulf of Mexico are all in various stages of planning and
construction. Reliable and large-scale deepwater infra-
structure is a significant development opportunity for
Williams. We believe our unique expertise and solid expe-
rience in this area will help generate long-term value for

the company.

‘g




Two other potential growth areas are on the horizon for our
Midstream business. We will continue to look for oppurlu-
nilics in the western United States to take advantage: of the
robust natural gas production volumes. and resulling NGLs.
from our own E&P husiness, as well as from other produc-
ers in the region. Another possible emerging opportunity
is processing the off-gas from the vil-sunds production in
Canada. Williams is well-positioned to take advantage of
the: growth in this region because our Fort MeMuarmy facil-

ity is located in the heart of oil sunds country.

Gas Pipeline

As | stated eardier, in 2006, our Gas Pipeline business
submitted o the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
general rate cases at both Northwest Pipeline and
Transco, The anticipated higher transportation rates
associaled with these filings became effective in the
first quarter of 2007. subject 10 refund until the rate-
making process is complete. We expect these new rates
will hiave a positive effect on our carnings beginning in
2007. Northwest Pipeline has requested FERC approval
of a settlement agreement that resolves all outstanding
issues associated with ils rate case. Transco is in the
inilial stages of settlement discusgions with interested

parties in ils rale case.

This business unit. which primarily delivers natural gas
10 markets along the Fastern Seaboard. in the Northwest
and in Florida, contributed $467.4 million of segment
profit during 2006, compared with $585.8 million
in 2005.

Natural gas demand in most of our major markets is
steadily increasing. in large purt due to the growing
markets we serve. as well as the environmental
advantages of natural gas compared to other fossil fuels.
In respunse to customer requests to meet this growing
need. Williams has announced a variety of Gas Pipeline

expansion projects,

The Leidy to Long Island expansion project. located in
New Jersey and Pennsvlvania. has heen approved for
start-up construetion and will serve the growing Northeast
market. The Potomac expansion will serve the Baltimore

and Washington. D.C. metropolitan -ureas. Both of these

projects are scheduled for a Nov. 1. 2007, in-service
date. The Sentinel project. also serving the Northeast
region, is scheduled 10 be phased into service. with
Phase 1 scheduled 1o be placed in service in November
2008, while Phase 2 is scheduled for November 2009.
Northwest Pipeline is currently constructing a lateral that
will attach natural gas reserves in northwest Colorado to
its system and plans to have that project completed in the

second quarter of 2007,

in Florida. the Gulfstream system. which is 50 percent
owned by Williams, announced its fourth expansion,
This project will increase the reliability of Florida’s
existing energy infrastructure and make a contribution
to the region’s air quality by providing the Bartow Power

Plant with ¢leaner-burning natural gas,

Williams’ emphasis on excellent value and service were
rewarded once again this year with the No. 1 ranking
in the industry’s most recognized customer service
sutisfaction survey. Our Northwest Pipeline system
received Mastio & Company’s top ranking for custoter
value and customer satisfaction among mega and major
pipelines. The Transco system also ranked in the top
0 and Williums was ranked No. 1 overall in the major

pipeline group.

Another major achievement during 2006 was the on-
time, on-budget completion of aur $325 million capacity
replacement project in the Northwest. With this project
completed. the new rates in effect and in-service dates of
our expansion projects coming to fruition, both segment
profit and the generation of cash flow from this business
unit will continue 1o provide significant suppon to the

overall Williams portfolio.

Power

2006 represented the fourth consecutive year of paositive
operating cash flow for our Power business. This unit
7000 megawalls
Williams™ natural

the power market

manages a portfolic of more than
and provides services that support
pus businesses, We continue to see
fundamentals gain monwentum — in terms of liquidity, the

number of market participants and longer term deals.

THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.




This unit successfully originaled new transactions across
all the regions they serve. These conlracts increase value
and cash-flow certainty and reduce the portfolio’s future
exposures lo fuel-price and weather volatility. Most
significantly, Williams recently announced a transaction
with Southern California Edison that locks in certain of
Williams™ future power sales and natural gas purchases
heyond 2010. These transactions help manage the risk
associated with the unhedged portions of cur portfolio and
are consistent with our strategy to reduce risk, create cash
flow cenainty and honor customer conmmitments, We expect

additional transactions of this type by the end of this year.

Outlook

Millions of Americans depend on Williams to deliver
natural gas from production areas to their local utilities. We
know that our long-term success depends upon our ability
tosafely and reliably produce, process and transport natural
gas (o heat millions of homes and generate electricity across
the country. Achieving sustainable growth in returns for
our sharcholders is underpinned by our commiiment to
100 percent legal and regulatory compliance, striving to
be an employer of choice, making meaningful investments
in the communities where we have operations, building
open and honest relationships with our stakeholders, and

managing our environmental feolprinl.

Last year, | mentioned we are participating in numerous
business and indusiry forums on the issue of climate
change. This year we began the implementation of a plan
to identify our greenhouse gas foolprint, which will provide
us with the data to make future decisions around this
imporiant topic. Our goal always will be to accomplish our
business objectives in a safe and environmentally sound
way by employing best practices and focusing on building

productive relationships with our key constituents,

As | look forward, there are several catalysts that will
increase our segment profit and value. They also will

reflect the continuing success of our businesses.

° Growing our natural gas reserves and production. We
expect cominued above-industry-average performance
in this area. Expanding our efforts into new areas holds

much promise for increasing value.

THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.

o The effects of our new, higher rates for our interstale
pipeline systems. We are moving as we expected through

the process, and anticipate a favorable conclusion.

The completion of additional midstream projects.
We are in the most exciling areas to grow this part of our
business — the Gulf of Mexico deepwater and the western
United States. [n addition, we have the solid existing
customer relationships and the track record to leverage

our reputation for reliable services.

More polential transactions with Willinms Partners L.
We have a deep bench of assets that qualify for inclusion
in the partnership. These could support the movement
of 81 billion to $2 billion of assets to Willials Partners
in 2007 and 2008. “Drop-downs™ to Willlams Partners
enable Williams to benefit from a lower cost of capital
associated with the parinership structure, as well as

higher distributions on our ownership interests.

More megawalts contracied into the market heyond
2010. Look for more Power transaetions that place
certain of our imegawatts into the market through 2011,
These transactions continue to reduce nsk and increase

cash flow certainty,

We will continue Lo actively pursue growth opportunities
with the sirategic discipline that has resulted in a 65
percent return te our shareholders over the past two years.
We expect to invest more than $4 hillion in capital projects
through 2008. These investments are primanily dedicated
to increasing our natural gas production activities, as well
as taking advantage of some excellent opporlunities for
our midstream business and expanding our natural gas

transportalion services,

As always, thank you for your continued support.

e Ml

Sieve Malcolm

Chairman, President and CEOQ
March 28, 2007
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DEFINITIONS
We use the following oil and gas measurements in this report:

Bcfe — means one billion cubic feet of gas equivalent determined using the ratio of one barrel of oil or
condensate to six thousand cubic feet of natural gas.

British Thermal Unit or BTU — means a unit of energy needed to raise the temperature of one pound of
water by one degree Fahrenheit.

BBiud — means one billion BTUs per day.
Dekatherms or Dth or Dt — means a unit of energy equal to one million BTUs.
Mbbls/d — means one thousand barrels per day.

Mcfe — means one thousand cubsic feet of gas equivalent using the ratio of one barrel of oil or condensate
to six thousand cubic feet of natural gas.

Mdy/d — means one thousand dekatherms per day.
MMcf — means one million cubic feet.
MMcf/d — means one million cubic feet per day.

MMcfe — means one million cubic feet of gas equivalent using the ratio of one barre! of oil or condensate
to six thousand cubic feet of natural gas.

MMdr — means one million dekatherms or approximately one trillion BTUs.

MMdt/d — means one million dekatherms per day.
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PART I

Item 1. Business

In this report, Williams (which includes The Williams Companies, Inc. and, unless the context otherwise

requires, all of our subsidiaries) is at times referred to in the first person as “we,” *“us™ or “our.” We also sometimes
refer to Williams as the “Company.”

WEBSITE ACCESS TO REPORTS AND OTHER INFORMATION

We file our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, proxy
statements and other documents electronically with the Securitics and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act). You may read and copy any materials that we file
with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20549. You may
obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. You may
also obtain such reports from the SEC’s Internet website at http:/www.sec.gov.

Our Internet website is hrtp//www.williams.com. We make available free of charge on or through our Internet
website our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. Our Corporate
Governance Guidelines, Code of Ethics, Board commitiee charters and Code of Business Conduct are also available
on our Internet website. We will also provide, free of charge, a copy of any of our corporate documents listed above
upon written request to our Secretary at Williams, One Williams Center, Suite 4700, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74172.

GENERAL

We are a natural gas company originally incorporated under the laws of the state of Nevada in 1949 and
reincorporated under the laws of the state of Delaware in 1987. We were founded in 1908 when two Williams
brothers began a construction company in Fort Smith, Arkansas.

We continue to use Economic Value Added® (EVA®)! as the basis for disciplined decision making around the
use of capital. EVA® is a tool that considers both financial earnings and a cost of capital in measuring performance.
It is based on the idea that eaming profits from an economic perspective requires that a company cover not only all
of its operating expenses but also all of its capital costs. The two main components of EVA® are net operating profit
after taxes and a charge for the opportunity cost of capital. We derive these amounts by making various adjustments
to our reported results and financial position, and by applying a cost of capital. We look for opportunities to improve
EVA® because we believe there is a strong correlation between EVA® improvement and creation of shareholder
value,

Today, we primarily find, produce, gather, process and transport natural gas. We also manage a wholesale
power business. Qur operations are concentrated in the Pacific Northwest, Rocky Mountains, Gulf Coast, Southern
California and Eastern Seaboard.

In 2006 we focused on continued disciplined growth. During 2006 we:
= Continued to improve both EVA® and segment profit;

* Invested in our natural gas businesses in a way that improves EVA®, meets customer needs, and enhances
our competitive position;

= Continued to increase natural gas production in a responsible manner;

* Accelerated additional asset transactions between us and Williams Partners L.P, our master limited
partnership;

! Economic Value Added® (EVA®) is a registered trademark of Stern, Stewart & Co.
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« Increased the scale of our gathering and processing business in key growth basins;

« Filed new rates to enable our Gas Pipeline segment to remain competitive and value-creating. and
completed a capacity replacement project;

+ Executed power contracts that reduce risk while adding new business and strengthening future cash flow
potential,

Our principal executive offices are located at One Williams Center, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74172. Qur telephone
number is 918-573-2000.

2006 HIGHLIGHTS

In November 2005, we initiated an offer to convert our 5.5 percent junior subordinated convertible debentures
into our common stock. In January 2006, we converted approximately $220.2 million of the debentures in exchange
for 20.2 million shares of common stock, a $25.8 million cash premium, and $1.5 million of accrued interest.

In April 2006, Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation (Transco) issued $200 million aggregate principal
amount of 6.4 percent senior unsecured notes due 2016 to certain institutional investors in a private debt placement.
In October 2006, Transco completed an offer to exchange all of these notes for substantially identical notes
registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

In April 2006, we retired a secured floating-rate term loan for $488.9 million, including outstanding principal
and accrued interest. The loan was due in 2008 and secured by substantially all of the assets of Williams Production
RMT Company. The loan was retired using a combination of cash and revolving credit borrowings.

In May 2006, we replaced our $1.275 billion secured revolving credit facility with a $1.5 billion unsecured
revolving credit facility. The new facility contains similar terms and financial covenants as the secured facility, but
contains certain additional restrictions. (See Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

In May 2006, our Board of Directors approved a regular quarterly dividend of 9 cents per share of common
stock. which reflects an increase of 20 percent compared with the 7.5 cents per share paid in each of the three prior
quarters.

In June 2006, Northwest Pipeline Corporation (Northwest Pipeline) issued $175 million aggregate principal
amount of 7 percent senior unsecured notes due 7016 to certain institutional investors in a private debt placement. In
October 2006, Northwest Pipeline Corporation completed an offer to exchange all of these notes for substantially
identical notes registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

In June 2006, we reached an agreement-in-principle to settle class-action securities litigation filed on behalf of
purchasers of our securitics between July 24, 2000, and July 22, 2002, for a total payment of $290 million to
plaintiffs. We funded our $145 million portion of the settlement with cash-on-hand in November 2006, with the
balance funded through insurance proceeds. We recorded a pre-tax charge for approximately $161 million in
second-quarter 2006. This settlement did not have a material effect on our liquidity position. (See Note 15 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

In June 2006. Williams Partners L.P. acquired 25.1 percent of our interest in Williams Four Corners LLC for
$360 million. The acquisition was completed after Williams Partners L.P. successfully closed a $150 million private
debt offering of senior unsecured notes due 2011 and an equity offering of approximately $225 ‘million in net
proceeds. In December 2006, Williams Partners L.P. acquired the remaining 74.9 percent interest in Williams Four
Corners LLC for $1.223 billion. The acquisition was completed after Williams Partners L.P. successfully closed a
$600 million private debt offering of senior unsecured notes due 2017, a private equity offering of approximately
$350 million of common and Class B units, and a public equity offering of approximately $294 million in net
proceeds. The debt and equity issued by Williams Partners L.P. is reported as a component of our consolidated debt
balance and minority interest balance, respectively. Williams Four Corners LLC owns certain gathering, processing
and treating assets in the San Juan Basin in Colorade and New Mexico.
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On July 31, 2006, and August 1, 2006, we received a verdict in civil litigation related to a contractual dispute
surrounding certain natural gas processing facilities known as Gulf Liquids. We recorded a pre-tax charge for
approximately $88 million in second quarter 2006 related to this loss contingency. (See Note 15 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Northwest Pipeline and Transco have each filed a general rate case with the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC). Northwest Pipeline reached a settlement in its pending rate case. The settlement is subject to
FERC approval, which is expected by mid-2007. The new transportation and storage rates for both pipelines will be
effective, subject to refund, in the first quarter of 2007.

In December 2006, Northwest Pipeline completed and placed into service its capacity replacement project in
the state of Washington. The project involved abandoning 268 miles of 26-inch pipeline and replacing it with
approximately 80 miles of 36-inch pipeline constructed in four sections along the same pipeline corridor.
Additionally, Northwest Pipeline modified five existing compressor stations which created additional net
horsepower.

Our property insurance coverage levels and premiums were revised during the second quarter of 2006. In
general, our coverage levels have decreased while our premiums have increased. These changes reflect general
trends in our industry due to hurricane-related damages in recent years.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT SEGMENTS

See Note 17 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information with respect to each segment’s
revenues, profits or losses and total assets. See Note 9 for information with respect to property, plant and equipment
for each segment.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Substantially all our operations are conducted through our subsidiaries. To achieve organizational and
operating efficiencies, our activities are primarily operated through the following business segments:

» Exploration & Production — produces, develops and manages natural gas reserves primarily located in
the Rocky Mountain and Mid-Continent regions of the United States and is comprised of several wholly
owned and partiailly owned subsidiaries including Williams Production Company LLC and Williams
Production RMT Company.

» Gas Pipeline — includes our interstate natural gas pipelines and pipeline joint venture investments
organized under our wholly owned subsidiary, Williams Gas Pipeline Company, LLC.

s Midstream Gas & Liquids — includes our natural gas gathering, treating and processing business and is
comprised of several wholly owned and partially owned subsidiaries including Williams Field Services
Group LLC and Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc. Midstream also includes Williams Partners L.P., our
master limited partnership formed in 2005.

« Power — manages our wholesale power and natural gas commodity businesses through purchases, sales
and other related transactions, under our wholly owned subsidiary Williams Power Company, Inc. and its
subsidiaries.

o Other — primarily consists of corporate operations. Other also includes our interest in Longhorn
Partners Pipeline, L.P. (Longhorn).

This report is organized to reflect this structure.

Detailed discussion of each of our business segments follows.
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Exploration & Production

Our Exploration & Production segment, which is comprised of several wholly owned and partially owned
subsidiaries, including Williams Production Company LLC and Williams Production RMT Company (RMT),
produces, develops, and manages natural gas reserves primarily located in the Rocky Mountain (primarily New
Mexico, Wyoming and Colorado) and Mid-Continent (Oklahoma and Texas) regions of the United States. We
specialize in natural gas production from tight-sands formations and coal bed methane reserves in the Piceance,
San Juan, Powder River, Arkoma, Green River and Fort Worth basins. Over 99 percent of Exploration &
Production’s domestic reserves are natural gas. Our Exploration & Production segment also has international
oil and gas interests, which include a 69 percent equity interest in Apco Argentina, Inc. (Apco Argentina), an oil and
gas exploration and production company with operations in Argentina, and a four percent interest in Petrowayu
S.A.. a Venezuelan corporation that is the operator of a 100 percent interest in the La Concepcion block located in
Western Venczuela.

Exploration & Production’s primary strategy is to utilize its expertise in the development of tight-sands, shale,
and coal bed methane reserves. Exploration & Production’s current proved undeveloped and probable reserves
provide us with strong capital investment opportunities for several years into the future. Exploration & Production’s
goal is to drill its existing proved undeveloped reserves, which comprise over 47 percent of proved reserves and to
drill in arcas of probable reserves. In addition, Exploration & Production provides a significant amount of equity
production that is gathered and/or processed by our Midstream facilities in the San Juan basin.

Information for our Exploration & Production segment relates only to domestic activity unless otherwise
noted. We use the terms “gross” to refer to all wells or acreage in which we have at least a partial working interest
and “net” to refer to our ownership represented by that working interest.

Gas reserves and wells
The following table summarizes our U.S. natural gas reserves as of December 31 (using prices at December 31

held constant) for the year indicated:
2006 2005 2004

(Befe)
Proved developed natural gas reServes. .. ...t 1,945 1,643 1,348
Proved undeveloped natural gas reserves . .. ... 1,756 1,739 1,638
Total proved natural gas FESEIVES. .. vvevv oo 3701 3,382 2,986

The following table summarizes our proved natural gas reserves by basin as of December 31, 2006:

Percentage of

Basin Proved Reserves
PICEANCE - « v o v e e e et e et e ettt e e 67%
QA JUDIL . - o o o e e e et e e e 17%
Powder River . .............. e 10%
(o - U I I 0%
100%

No major discovery or other favorable or adverse event has caused a significant change in estimated gas
reserves since year-end 2006. We have not filed on a recurring basis estimates of our total proved net oil and gas
reserves with any U.S. regulatory authority or agency other than the Department of Energy (DOE) and the SEC. The
estimates furnished to the DOE have been consistent with those furnished to the SEC, although Exploration &
Production has not yet filed any information with respect to its estimated total reserves at December 31, 2006, with
the DOE. Certain estimates filed with the DOE may not necessarily be directly comparable due to special DOE
reporting requirements, such as the requirement to report gross operated reserves only. The underlying estimated
reserves for the DOE did not differ by morc than five percent from the underlying estimated reserves utilized in
preparing the estimated reserves reported to the SEC.




Approximately 98 percent of our year-end 2006 United States proved reserves estimates were audited in each
separate basin by Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. (NSAI). When compared on a well-by-well basis, some of
our eslimates are greater and some are less than the estimates of NSAIL However, in the opinion of NSAI the
estimates of our proved reserves are in the aggregate reasonable by basin and have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted petroleum engineering and evaluation principles. These principles are set forth in the Standards
Pertaining to the Estimating and Auditing of Oil and Gas Reserve Information promulgated by the Society of
Petroleun Engineers. NSALI is satisfied with our methods and procedures in preparing the December 31, 2006
reserve estimates and saw nothing of an unusual nature that would cause NSAI to take exception with the estimates,
in the aggregate, as prepared by us. Reserves estimates related to properties underlying the Williams Coal Seam Gas
Royalty Trust which comprise another approximately two percent of our total U.S. proved reserves were prepared
by Miller and Lents, LTD.

Qil and gas properties

Following is a discussion of our oil and gas properties for our significant areas.

Piceance basin

The Piceance basin is located in northwestern Colorado. In 2006, we drilled 494 gross wells of which we
operate 477, and owned working interests in a total of 1,889 gross producing wells at year-end. We produced a net of
approximately 152 Bcfe of natural gas from the Piceance basin during 2006. Our estimated proved reserves in this
basin at year-end 2006 were 2,469 Befe. The Piceance basin is our largest area of concentrated development
comprising approximately 67 percent of our proved reserves at December 31, 2006. This area has approximately
1,500 undrilled proved locations in inventory. Within this basin, we are also the owner and operator of a natural gas
gathering and processing system. In March 2005 we entered into a contract with Helmerich & Payne for the
operation of 10 new FlexRig® drilling rigs, each for a term of three years. By December 2006, all 10 of these rigs
were operating in the Piceance basin. We also have 15 rigs operating in the Piceance basin under contract with other
vendors, for a total of 25 rigs operating in the Piceance basin by December 2006.

San Juan basin

The San Juan basin is located in northwest New Mexico and southwest Colorado. In 2006, we participated in
the drilling of 214 gross wells, of which we operate 56 and owned working interests in a total of 2,864 gross
producing wells at year-end. We produced a net of approximately 56 Befe of natural gas from the San Juan basin
during 2006. Our estimated proved reserves in the San Juan basin at year-end 2006 were 614 Bcfe.

Powder River basin

The Powder River basin is located in northeast Wyoming. In 2006, we drilled 858 gross wells of which we
operate 449, and owned working interests in a total of 4,454 gross producing wells at year-end. We produced a netof
approximately 52 Bcfe of natural gas from the Powder River basin during 2006. Our estimated proved reserves in
this basin at year-end 2006 were 372 Bcfe. The Powder River basin comprises approximately 10 percent of our
proved reserves at December 31, 2006. The Powder River basin includes large areas with multiple coal seam
potential, targeting thick coal bed methane formations at shallow depths. We have a significant inventory of
undrilled locations, providing long-term drilling opportunities.

Mid-Continent properties

‘The Mid-Continent properties are located in the southeastern Oklahoma portion of the Arkoma basin and the
Barnett Shale in the Fort Worth basin of ‘Texas. In 2006, we drilled 112 gross wells, of which we operate 61 and
owned working interests in a total of 475 gross producing wells at year-end. We produced a net of approximately
11 Befe of natural gas from the Mid-Continent in 2006. Our estimated proved reserves in the Arkoma and Fort Worth
basins at year-end 2006 were 167 Befe,




The following table summarizes our leased acreage as of December 31, 2006:
Gross Acres  Net Acres

DEVEIOPEA . . o 803,772 423,025
Undeveloped. . . ..o oo it 1,220,422 623,538

At December 31, 2006, we owned working interests in 9,965 gross wells producing hydrocarbons (4,890 nct).

Operating statistics

We focus on lower-risk development drilling. Our drilling success rate was 99 percent in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
The following tables summarize domestic drilling activity by number and type of well for the periods indicated:

M Gross Wells Net Wells
Development:
Drilled
100 s T 1,783 954
FO0S . e e 1.627 867
DOOd . e e e e 1,395 710
Successtul
1004 s ST AP 1,770 948
F005 . e e e 1,615 859
008 . e e e a e e 1,384 706

Substantially all our natural gas production is currently being sold to Power at prevailing market prices. Power
then resells the majority of our production to unrefated third parties. Because we currently have a low-risk drilling
program in proven basins, the main component of risk that we manage is price risk. We have recently entered into a
five-year unsccured credit agreement with certain banks in order 10 reduce margin requirements related to our
hedging activities as well as lower transaction fees. Margin requirements, if any, under this new facility are
dependent on the level of hedging with the banks and on natural gas reserves value. Exploration & Production
natural gas hedges for 2007 consist of derivative contracts with Power that hedge 172 BBtud in fixed pricc hedges
(whole year) and approximately 270 BBtud in NYMEX and regional collars (whole year) for projected 2007
domestic natural gas production. Power then enters into offsetting derivative contracts with unrelated third parties.
Our natura! gas production hedges in 2006 consisted of 299 BBtud in fixed price hedges and 64 BBtud in NYMEX
collars and an additional 50 BBuud in regional collars. A collar is a financial instrument that sets a gas price floor
and ceiling for a certain volume of natural gas. Hedging decisions arc made considering the overall Williams
commodity risk exposure and are not executed independently by Exploration & Production; there are gas purchase
hedging contracts executed on behalf of other Williams entitics which taken as a net position may counteract
Exploration & Production gas sales hedging derivatives.

The following table summarizes our domestic sales and cost information for the years indicated:

2006 2005 2004
Total net production sold in Befe) ... ... ..o 274.4 223.5 189.4
Average production costs including production taxes per thousand
cubic feet of gas equivalent (Mcfe) produced .. ...t $ 102 § 92 § 88
Average sales price per Mefe. ... $524 $641 $ 448
Realized impact of hedging contracts (Loss) ... .....oovvvnvnn $0.73) $(.6hy $(1.32)

Acquisitions & divestitures

Exploration & Production expanded its acreage position and purchased producing properties in the Fort Worth
basin in north-central Texas through transactions totaling approximately $64 million.
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Other information

In 1993, Exploration & Production conveyed a net profits interest in certain of its properties to the Williams
Coal Seam Gas Royalty Trust. Substantially all of the production attributable to the properties conveyed to the trust
was from the Fruitland coal formation and constituted coal seam gas. We subsequently sold trust units to the public
in an underwritten public offering and retained 3.568,791 trust units then representing 36.8 percent of outstanding
trust units. We have previously sold trust units on the open market, with our last sales in June 2005. As of February 1,
2007, we own 789,291 trust units. We sold no additional trust units during 2006.

International exploration and production interests

We also have investments in internationat oil and gas interests, If combined with our domestic proved reserves,
our international interests would make up 4.2 percent of our total proved reserves.

Gas Pipeline

We own and operate, through Williams Gas Pipeline Company, LLC and its subsidiaries, a combined total of
approximately 14,400 miles of pipelines with a total annual throughput of approximately 2,500 trillion British
Thermal Units of natural gas and peak-day delivery capacity of approximately 12 MMdt of gas. Gas Pipeline
consists of Transcontinentai Gas Pipe Line Corporation and Northwest Pipeline Corporation. Gas Pipeline also
holds interests in joint venture interstate and intrastate natural gas pipeline systems including a 50 percent interest in
Gulfstream Natural Gas System, L.L.C. N

Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation (Transco)

Transco is an interstate natural gas transportation company that owns and operates a 10.500-mile natural gas
pipeline system extending from Texas, Louisiana, Mississippi and the offshore Gulf of Mexico through Alabama,
Georgia, South Carolina, North Carolina, Virginia, Maryland, Pennsylvania, and New Jerscy to the New York City
metropolitan area. The system serves customers in Texas and 11 southeast and Atlantic seaboard states, including
major metropolitan areas in Georgia, North Carolina, New York, New Jersey, and Pennsylvania.

Pipeline system and customers

At December 31, 2006, Transco’s system had a mainline delivery capacity of approximately 4.7 MMdt of
natural gas per day from its production areas to its primary markets. Using its Leidy Line along with market-area
storage and transportation capacity, Transco can deliver an additional 3.5 MMdt of natural gas per day for a system-
wide delivery capacity total of approximately 8.2 MMdt of natural gas per day. Transco’s system includes
44 compressor stations, five underground storage fields, two liquefied nawral gas (LNG) storage facilities.
Compression facilities at a sea level-rated capacity total approximately 1.5 million horsepower.

Transco's major natural gas transportation customers are public utilities and municipalities that provide
service to residential, commercial, industrial and electric generation end users. Shippers on Transco’s system
include public utilities. municipalities, intrastate pipelines, direct industrial users, electrical generators, gas
marketers and producers. One customer accounted for approximately 10 percent of Transco’s total revenues in
2006. Transco’s firm transportation agreements are generally long-term agreements with various expiration dates
and account for the major portion of Transco’s business. Additionally, Transco offers storage services and
interruptible transportation services under short-term agreements.

Transco has natural gas storage capacity in five underground storage fields located on or near its pipeline
system or market areas and operates three of these storage fields. Transco also has storage capacity in an LNG
storage facility and operates the facility. The total usable gas storage capacity available to Transco and its customers
in such underground storage fields and LNG storage facility and through storage service contracts is approximately
216 billion cubic feet of gas. In addition, wholly owned subsidiaries of Transco operate and hold a 35 percent
ownership interest in Pine Needle LNG Company, LLC, an LNG storage facility with 4 billion cubic feet of storage
capacity. Storage capacity permits Transco’s customers to inject gas into storage during the summer and off-peak
periods for delivery during peak winter demand periods.
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Transco expansion projects
Leidy to Long Island Expansion Project

The Leidy to Long Island Expansion Project will involve an expansion of Transco’s existing natural gas
transmission system in Zone 6 from the Leidy Hub in Pennsylvania to Long Island, New York. The project will
provide 100 Mdu/d of incremental firm transportation capacity, which has been fully subscribed by one shipper
for a 20-year primary term. The project facilities will include pipeline looping in Pennsylvania, pipeline
looping. replacement and a natural gas compressor facility in New Jersey and appurtenant facilities in New
York. Transco expects that over three-quarters of the project expenditures will occur in 2007. Transco filed an
application for FERC authorization of the project in December 2005, which the FERC approved by order
issued on May 18, 2006. On October 20, 2006, Transco filed an application to amend the FERC authorizations
{0 reflect Transco’s ownership of certain appurtenant facilities as part of the project and to adjust the cost of
facilities and rates. which the FERC approved on January 11, 2007. The estimated capital cost of the project is
approximately $141 million. The target in-service date for the project is November 1, 2007.

Potomac Expansion Project

The Potomac Expansion Project will involve an expansion of Transco’s existing natural gas transmission
system from receipt points in North Carolina to delivery points in the greater Baltimore and Washington, D.C.
metropolitan areas. The project will provide 165 Mdu/d of incremental firm transportation capacity, which has
been fully subscribed by shippers under long-term firm arrangements. The estimated capital cost of the project
is approximately $74 million. On July 17,2006, Transco filed an application for FERC approval of the project.
The target in-service date for the project is November 1. 2007.

Sentinel Expansion Project

The Sentinel Expansion Project will involve an expansion of Transco's existing natural gas transmission
system from the Leidy Hub in Clinton County, Pennsylvania and from the Pleasant Valley Interconnection with
Cove Point LNG in Fairfax County, Virginia to various delivery points requested by the shippers under the
project. The project will provide 142 Mdu/d of incremental firm transportation capacity, which has been fully
subscribed by the shippers under long-term firm arrangements. The project facilities will include pipeline
looping in Pennsylvania and New Jersey and minor compressor station modifications. The estimated capital
cost of the project excluding any customer meter station upgrades is approximately $140 millton. In order to
accommodate certain shippers, Transco is planning to place the incremental firm transportation capacity into
service in two phases, the first phase commencing on November L. 2008 for 67 Mdt/d of service and the second
phase commencing on November 1, 2009 for an additional 75 Mdv/d of service. The FERC has granted our
request for a pre-application environmental review of the project, soliciting early input from citizens,
governmental entities and other interested parties. Transco expects to file a formal application with the
FERC in the second guarter of 2007.




Operating statistics

The following table summarizes transportation data for the Transco system for the periods indicated:

2006 2005 2004

(In trillion British
Thermal Units)

Market-area deliveries:

Long-haul transportation . . ... .. .. i 795 755 782
Market-area transportation. . . ... ... oo e 817 853 317
Total market-area deliveries . . . .. ... . . i 1,612 1,608 1,599
Production-area (ransportation . . .. ... oo oo 247 278 317
Total system deliveries . ... ... ... i 1,859 1886 1916
Average Daily Transportation Volumes . ... ... ... ... v, 5.1 5.2 52
Average Daily Firm Reserved Capacity .. .. ... oot 6.6 6.6 6.6

Transco’s facilities are divided into eight rate zones. Five are located in the production area, and three are
located in the market area. Long-haul transportation involves gas that Transco receives in one of the production-area
zones and delivers to a market-area zone. Market-area transportation involves gas that Transco both receives and
delivers within the market-area zones. Production-area transportation involves gas that Transco both receives and
delivers within the production-area zones.

Northwest Pipeline Corporation (Northwest Pipeline)

Northwest Pipeline is an interstate natural gas transportation company that owns and operates a natural gas
pipeline system extending from the San Juan basin in northwestern New Mexico and southwestern Colorado
through Colorado, Utah, Wyoming, Idaho, Oregon and Washington to a point on the Canadian border near Sumas,
Washington. Northwest Pipeline provides services for markets in California, New Mexico, Colorado, Utah, Nevada,
Wyoming, Idaho, Oregon and Washington directly or indirectly through interconnections with other pipelines.

Pipeline system and customers

At December 31, 2006, Northwest Pipeline’s system, having long-term firm transportation agreements with
peaking capacity of approximately 3.4 MMdt of natural gas per day, was composed of upproximately 3,900 miles of
mainline and lateral transmission pipelines and 41 transmission compressor stations having a combined sea level-
rated capacity of approximately 473,000 horsepower.

In 2003, we experienced two breaks in a segment of one of our natural gas pipelines in western Washington. In
response to these breaks, we received Corrective Action Orders from the Office of Pipeline Safety, elected to idle
the pipeline segment until its integrity could be assured, and began the process of replacing the capacity served by
the pipeline segment.

In September 2005 we received a FERC certificate authorizing us (o construct and operate the “Capacity
Replacement Project.” This project entailed the abandonment of approximately 268 miles of the existing 26-inch
pipeline. and the construction of approximately 80 miles of new 36-inch pipeline and an additional 10,760 net
horsepower of compression at two existing compressor stations. As of December 2006, all of the facilities were
placed in service, and abandonment of the 26-inch pipeline was completed.

The rate case we filed on June 30, 2006 seeks to recover, among other things, the capitalized costs relating to
the Capacity Replacement Project.

In 2006, Northwest Pipeline served a total of 141 transportation and storage customers. Transportation
customers include distribution companies, municipalities, interstate and intrastate pipelines, gas marketers and
direct industrial users. The two largest customers of Northwest Pipeline in 2006 accounted for approximately
19.9 percent and 10.9 percent, of its total operating revenues. No other customer accounted for more than 10 percent
of Northwest Pipeline’s total operating revenues in 2006. Northwest Pipeline’s firm transportation agreements are
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generally long-term agreements with various expiration dates and account for the major portion of Northwest
Pipeline’s business. Additionally, Northwest Pipeline offers interruptible and short-term firm transportation service.

As a part of its transportation services, Northwest Pipeline utilizes underground storage facilities in Utah and
Washington enabling it to balance daily receipts and deliveries. Northwest Pipeline also owns and operates an LNG
storage facility in Washington that provides service for customers during a few days of extreme demands. These
storage facilities have an aggregate firm delivery capacity of approximately 600 million cubic feet of gas per day.

Northwest Pipeline expansion projects
Parachute Lateral Project

In January 2006, we filed an application with the FERC to construct a 38-mile iateral that would provide
additional transportation capacity from the Parachute area to the Greasewood area in northwest Colorado. The
planned lateral would increase capacity by 450 Mdt/d through a 30-inch diameter line and is estimated to cost
$86 million. We anticipate beginning service on the expansion in March 2007.

Greasewood Lateral Project

In March 2006, we executed an agreement with a shipper for 200 Mdvd of capacity on a proposed new
lateral to be constructed from the vicinity of Greasewood, Colorado, to our mainline system near Sands
Springs, Colorado. On February 20, 2007, following a meeting with representatives of the shipper, we decided
to postpone applying with the FERC for a certificate to construct the proposed Greasewood Lateral Project. We
will be continuing to work with potential shippers to determine whether to proceed with the project at a future
date.

Operating statistics

The following table summarizes volume and capacity data for the Northwest Pipeline system for the periods
indicated:

2006 2005 2004

(In trillion British
Thermal Units)

Total Transportation Volume . ....... ... .. ... .. ... .. .. .. .. ... .. ... 676 673 650
Average Daily Transportation Volumes. ........ ... ... . ... ... ... ... 1.9 1.8 1.8
Average Daily Reserved Capacity Under Long-Term Base Firm Contracts,

excluding peak capacity ... ... . L 2.5 25 2.5
Average Daily Reserved Capacity Under Short-Term Firm Contracts(l). . . ... . .9 .8 6

(1) Consists primartly of additional capacity created from time to time through the installation of new receipt or
delivery points or the segmentation of existing mainline capacity. Such capacity is generally marketed on a
short-term firm basis, because it does not involve the construction of additional mainline capacity.

Gulfstream Natural Gas System, L.L.C. (Gulfstream)

Gulfstream is a natural gas pipeline system extending from the Mobile Bay area in Alabama to markets in
Floridir. In December 2001, Gulfstream filed an application with the FERC ro allow Gulfstream to complete the
construction of its approved facilities in phases. In May 2002, the first phase of the project was placed into service at
a cost of approximately $1.5 billion. The second phase of the project was placed into service on February 1, 2005,
The total capital cost of both phases of the project is approximately $1.7 billion. At December 31, 2006, our equity
investment in Gulfstream was $387 million. Gas Pipeline and Spectra Energy (formerly known as Duke Energy),
through their respective subsidiaries, each hold a 50 percent ownership interest in Gulfstream and provide operating
services for Gulfstream. \
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Gulfsiream expansion projects

Gulfstream has entered into a precedent agreement and a related firm transportation service agreement
pursuant to which, subject to the receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals and other conditions precedent
therein, we intend to extend the pipeline system into South Florida and fully subscribe the remaining 345 Mdv/d of
firm capacity on the existing pipeline system on a long-term basis. The estimated capital cost of this project is
anticipated to be approximately $135 million. Gulfstream also has executed a precedent agreement and a related
firm transportation service agreement pursuant to which, subject to the receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals
and other conditions precedent therein, we intend to construct and fully subscribe on a long-term basis the first
incremental expansion of Gulfstream’s mainline capacity, increasing the current mainline capacity of 1.1 MMdud
1o 1.255 MMdt/d. The project will include the construction of additional pipeline in Florida and the installation of
new compression in Alabama and Florida. The estimated capital cost of this expansion is anticipated to be
approximately $117 million. No significant increase in operations personnel is expected as a result of these two
projects.

Midstream Gas & Liquids

Our Midstream segment, one of the nation's largest natural gas gatherers and processors, has primary service
areas concentrated in the major producing basins in Colorado, New Mexico, Wyoming, the Gulf of Mexico,
Venezuela and western Canada. Midstream's primary businesses — natural gas gathering, treating, and processing;
natural gas liquids (NGL) fractionation, storage and transportation; and oi! transportation — fall within the middle
of the process of taking natural gas and crude oil from the wellhead to the consumer. NGLs, ethylene and propylene
are extracted/produced at our plants, including our Canadian and Gulf Coast olefins plants. These products are used
primarily for the manufacture of plastics, home heating and refinery feedstock.

Although most of our gas scrvices are performed for a volumetric-based fee, a portion of our gas processing
contracts are commodity-based and include two distinct types of commodity exposurc. The first type includes
“Kecp Whole™ processing contracts whereby we own the NGLs extracted and replace the lost heating value with
natural gas. Under these contracts, we are exposed to the spread between NGLs and natural gas prices, The second
type consists of “Percent of Liquids™ contracts whereby we receive a portion of the extracted liquids with no direct
exposure 1o the price of natural gas. Under these contracts, we are only exposed to NGL price movements.

Our Canadian and Gulf Liquids olefin facilities have commodity exposure. In Canada, we are exposed to the
spread between the price for natural gas and the olefinic products we produce. In the Gulf Coast, our feedstock for
the cthane cracker is ethane and propane; as a result, we are exposed to the price spread between ethane and propane
and cthylene and propylene. In the Gulf Coast, we also purchase refinery grade propylene and fractionate it into
polymer grade propylene and propane; as a result we are exposed to the price spread between those commodities.

Key variables for our business will continue to be:
= retaining and attracting customers by continuing to provide reliable services;
+ revenue growth associated with additional infrastructure either completed or currently under construction;
+ disciplined growth in our core service areas,

» prices impacting our commodity-based processing and olefin activities.

Domestic gathering and processing

We own and/or operate domestic gas gathering and processing assets primarily within the western staies of
Wyoming, Colorado and New Mexico, and the onshore and offshore shelf and deepwater areas in and around the
Gulf Coast states of Texas, Louisiana, Mississippi and Alabama. These assets consist of approximately 8,200 miles
of gathering pipelines, nine processing plants (one partially owned) and five natural gas treating plants with a
combined daily inlet capacity of nearly 6.2 billion cubic feet per day. Some of these asscts are owned through our
interest in Williams Partners L.P. (see Williams Partners L.P. section below).
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Geographically, our Midstream natural gas assets are positioned to maximize commercial and operational
synergies with our other assets. For example, most of our offshore gathering and processing assets attach and
process or condition natural gas supplies delivered to the Transco pipeline. Also, our gathering and processing
facilities in the San Juan basin handle about 85 percent of our Exploration & Production group’s welthead
production in this basin. Both our San Juan Basin and Southwest Wyoming systems deliver gas volumes into
Northwest Pipeline’s interstate system.

In addition to these natural gas assets, we own and operate three crude oil pipelines totaling approximately
270 miles with a capacity of more than 300,000 barrels per day. This includes our Mountaineer, Alpine and BANJO
crude oil pipeline systems in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico.

The BANJO oil pipeline and Seahawk gas pipeline run parallel and deliver production across two producer-
owned spar-type floating production systems from the Kerr-McGee-operated Boomvang and Nansen field areas in
the western Guif of Mexico. These pipelines were placed in service on January 28, 2002.

Our 18 inch oil pipeline, Alpine, which became operational on December 14, 2003, is our second western gulf
crude oil pipeline. The pipeline extends 96 miles from Garden Banks Block 668 in the central Gulf of Mexico to our
shallow-water platform at Galveston Area Block A244. From this platform, the oil is delivered onshore through
ExxonMobil’s Hoover Offshore Oil Pipeline System under a joint tariff agreement. This production is coming from
the Gunnison field, which is {ocated in 3,150 feet of water and operated by Kerr-McGee,

Our Devils Tower floating production system and associated pipelines were placed in service on May 5, 2004,
Initially built to serve Dominion Exploration & Production’s Devils Tower field, the floating production system is
tocated in Mississippi Canyon Block 773, approximately 150 miles south-southwest of Mobile, Alabama. During
the fourth quarter of 2005, the platform’s service expanded to include tie-backs of production from the Triton and
Goldfinger fields in addition to the host Devils Tower field. Located in 5,610 feet of water, it is the world’s deepest
dry tree spar. The platform, which is operated by Dominion on our behalf, is capable of producing 60 MMcf/d of
natural gas and 60 Mbbls/d of oil.

The Devils Tower project includes gas and oil pipelines. The 102-mile Canyon Chief gas pipeline consists of
18-inch diameter pipe. The 118-mile Mountaineer oil pipeline is a combination of 18- and 20-inch diameter pipe.
The gas is delivered into Transco’s pipeline, and processed at our Mobile Bay plant to recover the NGLs. The oil is
transported to ChevronTexaco’s Empire Terminal in Plaquemines Parish, Louisiana. These associated pipelines are
significantly oversized relative to the Devils Tower spar top-side capacity.

Included in the natural gas assets listed above are the assets of Discovery Producer Services LLC and its
subsidiary Discovery Gas Transmission Services LLC (Discovery). We own a partial interest in Discovery and
operate its facilities. Discovery’s assets include a cryogenic natural gas processing plant near Larose, Louisiana, a
natural gas liquids fractionator plant near Paradis, Lovisiana and an offshore natural gas gathering and transpor-
tation system.

Gulf Coast petrochemical and olefins

We own a 5/12 interest in and are the operator for an ethane cracker at Geismar, Louisiana, with a total
production capacity of 1.3 billion pounds per year of ethylene. We also own an ethane pipeline system in Louisiana.
Our Gulf Liquids New River LLC (Gulf Liquids) business consists of a propylene splitter and its related pipeline
System.

Canada

Our Canadian operations include an olefin liquids extraction plant located near Ft. McMurray, Alberta and an
olefin fractionation facility near Edmonton, Alberta. Our facilities extract olefinic liquids from the off-gas produced
from third party oil sands bitumen upgrading and then fractionate, treat, store, terminal and sell the propane,
propylene, butane and condensate recovered from this process. We continue to be the only olefins fractionator in
Western Canada and the only treater-processor of oil sands upgrader off-gas. These operations extract valuable
petrochemical feedstocks from upgrader off-gas streams allowing the upgraders to burn cleaner natural gas streams
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and reduce overall air emissions. The extraction plant has processing capacity in excess of 100 MMcf/d with the
ability to recover in excess of 15 Mbbls/d of NGL products.

Venezuela

Qur Venezuelan investments involve gas compression and gas processing and natural gas liquids fractionation
operations. We own controlling interests and operate three gas compressor facilities which provide roughly
70 percent of the gas injections in eastern Venezuela, These facilities help stabilize the reservoir and enhance the
recovery of crude oil by re-injecting natural gas at high pressures. We also own a 49.25 percent interest in two
400 MMcf/d natural gas liquids extraction plants, a 50,000 barrels per day natural gas liquids fractionation plant and
associated storage and refrigeration facilities.

Other

We own interests in and/or operate NGL fractionation and storage assets. These assets include (wo partiaily
owned NGL fractionation facilities near Conway, Kansas and Baton Rouge, Louisiana that have a combined
capacity in excess of 167,000 barrels per day. We also own approximately 20 million barrels of NGL storage
capacity in central Kansas. Some of these assets are owned through our interest in Williams Partners L.P.

Williams Partners L.P.

Williams Partners L.P, (Williams Partners) was formed to engage in the business of gathering, transporting and
processing natural gas and fractionating and storing NGLs, We own approximately 22.5 percent of Williams
Partners. Williams Partners provides us with an acquisition currency that is expected to enable growth of our
Midstream business. Williams Partners also creates a vehicle to monetize our qualifying assets. Such transactions,
which are subject to approval by both our and Williams Partners’ general partner’s board of directors, allow us to
retain control of the assets through our ownership interest in Williams Partners,

During 2006, Williams Partners L.P. acquired Williams Four Corners, LL.C which includes a 3,500-mile
natural gas gathering system in the San Juan Basin in New Mexico and Colorado with capacity of nearly 2 billion
cubic feet per day; the Ignacio natural gas processing plant in Colorado and the Kutz and Lybrook natural gas
processing plants in New Mexico, which have a combined processing capacity of 760 million cubic feet per day;
and the Milagro and Esperanza natural gas treating plants in New Mexico, which are designed to remove carbon
dioxide from up to 750 million cubic feet of natural gas per day.

In addition, Williams Partners owns a 40 percent equity investment in the Discovery gathering, transportation,
processing and NGL fractionation system; the Carbonate Trend sour gas gathering pipeline; three integrated NGL
storage facilities near Conway, Kansas; and a 50 percent interest in an NGL fractionator near Conway, Kansas.

Expansion projects
Gathering and processing

In May 2006, we entered into an agreement to develop new pipeline capacity for transporting natural gas
liquids from production areas in southwestern Wyoming to central Kansas. The other party to the agreement
reimbursed us for the development costs we incurred to date for the proposed pipeline and initially will own
99 percent of the pipeline, known as Overland Pass Pipeline Company, LLC. We retained a 1 percent interest and
have the option to increase our ownership to 50 percent and become the operator within two years of the pipeline
becoming operational. Start-up is planned for early 2008. Additionally, we have agreed to dedicate our equity NGL
volumes from our two Wyoming plants for transport under a long-term shipping agreement. The terms represent
significant savings compared with the existing tariff and other alternatives considered.

We are constructing a fifth cryogenic processing train at our existing gas plant in Opal, Wyoming, which is
scheduled for start-up in the first quarter of 2007. The expansion is designed to boost the plant’s processing capacity
by more than 30 percent to 1.45 billion cubic feet per day. Opal also will be able to recover a total of approximately
67,000 barrels per day of natural gas liquids.
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Gathering and processing — deepwater projects

The deepwater Gulf continues to be an attractive growth area for our Midstream business. Since 1997, we have
invested almost $1 billion in new midstream assets in the Gulf of Mexico. These facilities provide both onshore and
offshore services through pipelines, platforms and processing plants. The new facilities could also attract
incremental gas volumes to Transco’s pipeline system in the southeastern United States,

Chevron and Kerr-McGee are dedicating to us the transport of production from their current and future
ownership in a defined area surrounding the Blind Faith discovery in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico. To
accommodate production from the Blind Faith acreage and the surrounding blocks, we have agreed to extend
our Canyon Chief and Mountaineer pipelines to the producer-owned floating production facility. We expect to have
the extensions ready for service in second quarter 2008. The approximately $200 million project will facilitate a
37-mile extension of each pipeline. The agreement also creates opportunities for us to move natural gas from the
Blind Faith discovery through our Mobile Bay, Alabama, processing plant and our Transco and Gulfstream
interstate pipeline systems. Recovered natural gas liquids from Blind Faith also could be fractionated at our
facilities in Baton Rouge or Paradis, Louisana.

Customers and operations

Our domestic gas gathering and processing customers are generally natural gas producers who have proved
and/or producing natural gas fields in the areas surrounding our infrastructure. During 2006, these operations
gathered and processed gas for approximately 220 gas gathering and processing customers. Qur top three gathering
and processing customers accounted for about 44 percent of our domestic gathering and processing revenue. Our
gathering and processing agreements are generally long-term agreements.

In addition to our gathering and processing operations, we market NGLs and petrochemical products to a wide
range of users in the energy and petrochemical industries. We provide these products to third parties from the
production at our domestic facilities. The majority of domestic sales are based on supply contracts of less than one
year in duration. The production from our Canadian facilities is marketed in Canada and in the United States.

Our Venezuelan assets were constructed and are currently operated for the exclusive benefit of Petréleos de
Venezuela S.A. The significant contracts have a remaining term between 11 and 15 years and our revenues are based
on a combination of fixed capital payments, throughput volumes, and, in the case of one of the gas compression
facilities. a minimum throughput guarantee. The Venezuelan government has continued its public criticism of
U.S. economic and political policy, has implemented unilateral changes to existing energy related contracts, and
continues to publicly declare that additional energy contracts will be unilaterally amended and privately held assets
will be expropriated, indicating that a level of political risk still remains.

Operating statistics

The following table summarizes our significant operating statistics for Midstream:

2006 2005 2004

Volumes(1):

Domestic Gathering (trillion British Thermal Units). . . ..o oo vnns 1,181 1,253 1,252
Domestic Natural Gas Liquid Production (Mbbls/d)(2). . ... .o 152 144 155
Crude Oil Gathering (MbbIs/d)(2) . . ..o 86 88 83
Processing Volumes (trillion British Termal Units). . .. ..o oo e 833 721 768

(1) Excludes volumes associated with partially owned assets that are not consolidated for financial reporting
purposes.

(2) Annual Average Mbbls/d




Power

Our Power business buys, sells, stores and transports energy and energy-related commodities, primarily power
and natural gas. Power’s focus is not only on its objective of maximizing expected cash flows, but also on executing
new contracts to hedge its portfolio and providing services that support our natural gas businesses across Williams.
Our contracts include physical forward purchases and sales, various financial instruments and structured trans-
actions. Our financial instruments include exchange-traded futures, as well as exchange-traded and
over-the-counter options and swaps. Structured transactions include tolling contracts, full requirements contracts,
tolling rcsales and heat rate options.

Tolling contracts represent the most significant portion of our portfolio. Under the tolling contracts, we have
the right to request a plant owner to convert our fuel (usually natural gas) to electricity in exchange for a fixed fee.
We have the right to request approximately 7,700 megawatts of electricity under six tolling agreements. The table
below lists the locations and available capacity of each of our tolling agreements. These capacity numbers are
subject to change, and our contractual rights to capacity may not reflect actual availability at the plants.

LT 3 22 217 WPV I R 4,141
AlLD A © ottt e e e 844
T T - I S I 758
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We use portions of the electricity produced under the folling agreements to supply obligations under various
arrangements such as power sales, tolling resales, and full requirements contracts. Under full requirements
contracts, we supply the electricity required by our counlerparties to serve their customers. Through full require-
ments contracts, we supply approximately 600 to 1,500 megawatts of electricity to our customers in Georgia and
approximatety 515 to 600 megawatts of electricity to our customers in Pennsylvania. The amount of electricity we
supply under these contracts varies year to year but is expected to grow annually. Each year, the amount of
electricity we supply is subject to a growth cap.

Through tolling resale agreements, we enter into transactions that mirror, to varying degrees, some or all of our
rights under our underlying tolling arrangements, which remain in place with our tolling counterparties. We have
resold part of our rights (1,934 to 3,875 megawatts) under the California tolling arrangement to two counterpartics
for periods through 2011. These volumes include amounts sold under contracts executed in 2007.

We also own two natural gas-fired electric generating plants located near Bloomfield, New Mexico (60
megawatts, Milagro facility) and in Hazleton, Pennsylvania (147 megawatts).

In 2006, we managed natural gas throughout North America with total physical volumes averaging 2.3 billion
cubic feet per day. We use approximately 10 percent of this natural gas to fuel electric generating plants we own or
in which we have contractual rights. We sell approximately 70 percent of this natural gas to customers including
local distribution companies, atilities, producers, industrials and other gas marketers. With the remaining 20 per-
cent, we procure gas supply for our Midstream operations.

In 2004. we substantially exited our crude oil and refined products activities.




Operating statistics

The following table summarizes marketing and trading gross sales volumes, including sales volumes to other
segments. for the periods indicated:

Year Ending December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Marketing and trading physical volumes:
Power (thousand megawatthours) .. ..., ... ... ... ..ot 53,866 66,779 93,998
Natural gas (billion cubic fest perday) ................. ... .. 2.1 2.1 23
Petroleum products (thousand barrels per day) ... .............. — — 50

In 2006. Power managed 2.3 billion cubic feet per day of natural gas. The natural gas volumes managed
include the following (in billion cubic feet per day):

2006
Sales to third Parties. . ... oot e 1.7
Sales to OthET SEEMENIS . L o .ottt it it e e a e a e 4
For use in tolling agrecments and by owned generation .. ... ... o 2
Total natural gas managed . .. ... .. i e 23

As of December 31, 2006, Power had approximately 350 customers compared with approximately 300
customers at the end of 2005.

Other

At December 31, 2004, we owned approximately 94.7 percent of the Class B Interests and 21.3 percent of the
Common Interests in Longhorn Partners Pipeline LP (Longhorn), which owned a refined petroleum products
pipeline from Houston, Texas to El Paso, Texas. The Class B Interests are preferred interests but subordinate to other
preferred interests, and the Common [nterests are subordinate to both.

During the first quarter of 2005, Longhorn became fully operational as deliveries commenced through both the
Odessa and E] Paso terminals. However, the pipeline’s throughput fell significantly short of management
expectations, The primary driver behind this volume shortfall was the narrowing of the refined product pricing
differentials between the Guif Coast and El Paso markets. During the second quarter of 2005, Longhomn
management indicated the shortfall was likely to continue and that the original business model was no longer
feasible.

As a result of the other-than-temporary decline in fair value identified in the second quarter of 2005, we
impaired the Common Interests by $16.2 million and the Class B shares by $32.7 million. After these adjustments.
the book value of our investment in Longhorn (as of June 30. 2005) totaled %51.6 million. comprised of
$25.0 million of Common Interests and $26.6 million of Class B shares. :

During the third quarter of 2005. we provided $10 million of a $50 million fully collateralized bridge loan to
fund operations of Longhorn until an economically feasible operational aiternative was developed. In the fourth
quarter of 2005, management of Longhorn concluded that its best aliernative would be to sell the Longhorn assets.
Accordingly. they directed a financial advisor to solicit offers from several entities. After reviewing the terms and
conditions of bids received, our management determined that a full impairment of our investment in the Class B and
Common Interests was appropriate. This decision resulted in a December 31, 2005 write-down of the remaining
$38.1 million in book value which had been further reduced by additional equity losses during the third and fourth
quarters.

The management of Longhorn completed an installment sale of the pipeline during the third quarter of 2006,
and as a result we received full payment of the $10 million secured bridge loan that we provided to Longhorn during
2005. 1t is uncertain whether we will ever receive any payments related to our Class B Interests or our Common
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Interests. however any such amounts related to these fully impaired interests will only be recognized as income
when received.

We continue to receive payments associated with the 2005 transfer of the First Amended and Restated Pipeline
Operating Services Agreement to a third party. The sale of the pipeline did not impact these ongoing payments
which are recognized as income when received.

Additional Business Segment Information

Our ongoing business segments are accounted for as continuing operations in the accompanying financial
statements and notes to financial statements included in Part II.

Operations related to certain assets in “Discontinued Operations™ sold in 2003 and 2004 have been reclassified
from their traditional business segment to “Discontinued Operations™ in the accompanying financial statements and
notes to financial statements included in Part 11.

Our corporate parent company performs certain management, legal, financial, tax, consultative, administrative
and other services for our subsidiaries.

OQur corporate parent company's principal sources of cash are from external financings, dividends and
advances from our subsidiaries, investments, payments by subsidiaries for services rendered. interest payments
from subsidiaries on cash advances and net proceeds from asset sales. The amount of dividends available to us from
subsidiaries largely depends upon each subsidiary’s earnings and operating capital requirements. The terms of
certain of our subsidiaries” borrowing arrangements limit the transfer of funds to our corporate parent.

We believe that we have adequate sources and availability of raw materials and commadities for existing and
anticipated business needs. In support of our energy commodity activities, primarily conducted through Power, our
counterparties require us to provide various forms of credit support such as margin, adequate assurance amounts and
pre-payments for gas supplies. Our pipeline systems are all regulated in various ways resulting in the financial
return on the investments made in the systems being limited to standards permitted by the regulatory agencies. Each
of the pipeline systems has ongoing capital requirements for efficiency and mandatory improvemcnis, with
expansion opportunities also necessitating periodic capital outlays.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Exploration & Production. Our Exploration & Production business is subject to various federal, state and
local laws and regulations on taxation, the development, production and marketing of oil and gas, and environ-
mental and safety matters, Many laws and regulations require drilling permits and govern the spacing of wells, rates
of production, water discharge, prevention of waste and other matters. Such laws and regulations have increased the
costs of planning, designing, drilling, installing, operating and abandoning our oil and gas wells and other facilities.
In addition, these laws and regulations, and any others that are passed by the jurisdictions where we have
production. could limit the total number of wells drilled or the allowable production from successtul wells. which
could limit our reserves.

Gas Pipeline. Gas Pipeline’s interstate transmission and storage activities are subject to FERC regulation
under the Natural Gas Act of 1938 (NGA) and under the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978, and, as such, its rates and
charges for the transportation of natural gas in interstate commerce, its accounting, and the extension, enlargement
or abandonment of its jurisdictional facilities, among other things, are subject to regulation. Each gas pipeline
company holds certificates of public convenience and necessity issued by the FERC authorizing ownership and
operation of all pipelines, facilities and properties for which cerlificates are required under the NGA. Each gas
pipeline company is also subject to the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968, as amended, which regulates safety
requirements in the design, construction, operation and maintenance of interstate natural gas transmission facilities.
FERC Standards of Conduct govern how our interstate pipelines communicate and do business with their marketing
affiliates. Among other things, the Standards of Conduct require that interstate pipelines not operate their systems to
preferentially benefit their marketing affiliates.
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Each of our interstate natural gas pipeline companies establishes its rates primarily through the FERC's
ratemaking process. Key determinants in the ratemaking process are:

+ costs of providing service, including depreciation expense;
« allowed rate of return. including the equity component of the capital structure and related income taxes;
+ volume throughput assumptions.

The allowed rate of return is determined in each rate case. Rate design und the allocation of costs between the
demand and commodity rates also impact profitability. As a result of these proceedings, certain revenues previously
collected may be subject to refund.

Midstream. For our Midstream segment, onshore gathering is subject to regulation by states in which we
operate and oftshore gathering is subject to the Outer Continental Shelf Lands Act (OCSLA). Of the states where
Midstream gathers gas, currently only Texas actively regulates gathering activities. Texas regulates gathering
primarily through complaint mechanisms under which the state commission may resolve disputes invelving an
individual gathering arrangement. Although gathering facilities located offshore are not subject to the NGA
(although offshore transmission pipelines may be), some controversy exists as to how the FERC should determine
whether offshore facilities function as gathering. These issues are currently before the FERC. Most gathering
facilities offshore arc subject to the OCSLA, which provides in part that outer continental shelf pipelines “must
provide open and nondiscriminatory access to both owner and non-owner shippers.”

Midstream also owns and operates two offshore transmission pipelines that are regulated by the FERC because
they are deemed to transport gas in interstate commerce. Black Marlin Pipeline Company provides transportation
service for offshore Texas production in the High Island area and redelivers that gas to intrastate pipeline
interconnects near Texas City. Discovery Gas Transmission LLC provides transportation service for offshore
Louisiana production from the South Timbalier, Grand Isle, Ewing Bank and Green Canyon (deepwater) areas to an
onshore processing facility and downstream interconnect points with major interstate pipelines. FERC regulation
requires all terms and conditions of service, including the rates charged, to be filed with and approved by the
Commission before any changes can go into effect. Currently, Black Marlin has a major rate change application
pending before the Commission 1o increase its rates for service.

Our remaining Midstream Canadian assets are regulated by the Alberta Energy & Utilities Board (AEUB) and
Alberta Environment. The regulatory system for the Alberta oil and gas industry incorporates a large measure of
self-regulation, providing that licensed operators are held responsible for ensuring that their operations are
conducted in accordance with all provincial regulatory requirements. For situations in which non-compliance
with the applicable regulations is at issue, the AEUB and Alberta Environment have implemented an enforcement
process with escalating consequences.

Power.  Our Power business is subject (o a variety of laws and regulations at the local, state and federal levels,
including FERC and the Commodity Futures Trading Commission regulation. In addition, electricity and natural gas
markets in California and elsewhere continue to be subject to numerous and wide-ranging federal and state regulatory
procecdings and investigations, We are also subject to various federal and state actions and investigations regarding,
among other things, market structure, behavior of market participants, market prices, and reporting to trade
publications. We may be liable for refunds and other damages and penalties as a result of ongoing actions and
investigations. The outcome of these matters could affect our creditworthiness and ability to perform contractual
obligations as well as other market participants creditworthiness and ability to perform contractual obligations to us.

Sce Note 15 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further details on our regulatory matters.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Our generation facilities, natural gas pipelines, and exploration and production operations are subject to
federal environmental taws and regulations as well as the state and triba} laws and regulations adopted by the
jurisdictions in which we operate. We could incur liability to governments or third parties for any unlawful
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discharge of oil, gas or other pollutants into the air. soil, or water, as well as liability for clean up costs. Materials
could be released into the environment in several ways including, but not limited to:

+ from a well or drilling equipment at a drill site;

+ leakage from gathering systems. pipelines, transportation facilities and storage tanks;
« damage to oil and gas wells resolting from accidents during normal operations;

* blowouts, cratering and éxplosions.

Because the requirements imposed by environmental laws and regulations are frequently changed, we cannot
assure you that laws and regulations enacted in the future, including changes to existing laws and regulations, will
not adversely affect our business. In addition we may be liable for environmenta! damage caused by former
operators of our properties.

We believe compliance with environmental laws and regulations will not have a material adverse effect on
capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position. However, environmental laws and regulations could affect
our business in various ways from time to time, including incurring capital and maintenance expenditures, imposing
limitations on generation facility availability, fines and penalties, and creating the need to seek relief from the FERC
for rate increases to recover the costs of certain capital expenditures and operation and maintenance expenses
{which we believe would be granted). :

For a discussion of specific environmental issues, see “Environmental” under Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and “Environmental Matters” in Note 15 of our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

COMPETITION |

Exploration & Production. Our Exploration & Production segment competes with other oil and gas
concerns. including major and independent oil and gas companies in the development, production and marketing
of natural gas. We compete in areas such as acquisition of oil and gas properties and obtaining necessary equipment.
supplies and services. We also compete in recruiting and retaining skilled employees.

Gas Pipeline.  Our Gas Pipeline segment faces increased competition as a result of various actions taken by
the FERC and several states in which we operate to strengthen market forces in the natural gas pipeline industry. Ina
number of key markets, interstate pipelines are now facing competitive pressures from other major pipeline
systems. enabling local distribution companies and end users to choose a supplier or switch suppliers based on the
short-term price of gas and the cost of transportation. We expect competition for natural gas transportation to
continue to intensify in future years duc (o increased customer access to other pipelines, rates, competitiveness
among pipelines, customers” desire to have more than one transporter, shorter contract terms, regulatory devel-
opments, and development of LNG facilities particularly in our market areas. Future utitization of pipeline capacity
will depend on competition from other pipelines and LNG facilities. use of alternative fuels, the general level of
natural gas demand. and weather conditions.

Supplicrs of natural gas are able to compete for any gas markets capable of being served by pipclines using
nondiscriminatory transportation services provided by the pipeline companies. As the regulated environment has
matured, many pipeline companies have faced reduced levels of subscribed capacity as contractual terms expire and
cuslomers opt to reduce firm capacity under contract in favor of alternative sources of transmission and related
services. This situation, known in the industry as “capacity turnback.” is forcing the pipeline companies to evaluate
the consequences of major demand reductions in traditional fong-term contracts. It could also result in significant
shifts in system utilization, and possible realignment of cost structure for remaining customers because all interstate
natural gas pipeline companies continue to be authorized to charge maximum rates approved by the FERC on a cost
of service basis. Gas Pipeline does not anticipate any significant financial impact from “capacity turnback.” We
anticipate that we will be able to remarket most future capacity subject to future capacity turnback. although
competition may cause some of the remarketed capacity to be sold at lower rates or for shorter terms.
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Midstream.  In our Midstream segment, we face regional competition with varying competitive factors in
each basin. Our gathering and processing business competes with other midstream companies, interstate and
intrastate pipelines. master limited partnerships (MLP), producers and independent gatherers and processors, We
primarily compete with five to ten companies across all basins in which we provide services. Numerous factors
impact any given customer’s choice of a gathering or processing services provider, including rate, location, term,
timeliness of well connections, pressure obligations and contract structure. We also compete in recruiting and
retaining skilled employees. In 2005 we formed Williams Partners to help compete against other master limited
partnerships for midstream projects. By virtue of the master limited parinership structure, Williams Partners
provides us with an alternative and low-cost source of capital. We expect the alternative, low-cost capital will allow
Williams Partners to compete with other MLPs when pursuing acquisition opportunities of gathering and
processing assets.

Power. In our Power segment, we compete directly with large independent energy marketers, marketing
affiliates of regulited pipelines and utilities. and natural gas producers. We also compete with brokerage houses.
energy hedge funds and other energy-based companies offering similar services.

EMPLOYEES

At February 1. 2007, we had approximately 4,313 full-time employees including 972 at the corporate level,
584 at Exploration & Production, 1.694 at Gas Pipeline, 928 at Midstream, and 135 at Power. None of our
employees are represented by unions or covered by collective bargaining agreements.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

See Note 17 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for amounts of revenues during the last three
fiscal years from external customers attributable to the United States and alt foreign countries. Also see Note 17 of
our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information relating to long-lived assets during the last three
fiscal years, other than financial instruments, long-term customer relationships of a financial institution, mortgage
and other servicing rights and deferred policy acquisition costs, located in the United States and all foreign
countries.

[tem tA. Risk Factors

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS/RISK FACTORS AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
FOR PURPOSES OF THE “SAFE HARBOR” PROVISIONS OF
THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

Certain matters contained in this report include “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of
section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securilies Exchange Act of
1934, as amended. These statements discuss our expected future resuits based on current and pending business
operations. We make those forward-looking statements in reliance on the safe harbor protections provided under the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included in this report which address activities. events
or developments that we expect, believe or anticipate will exist or may occur in the future, are forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements can be identified by various forms of words such as “anticipaies,”
“believes,” “could,” “may.” “should.” “continues,” “estimates,” “expects,” “forecasts,” “might,” “planned,” “poten-
tial.” “projects.” “scheduled” or similar expressions. These forward-looking statements include, among others,
statements regarding:

" LTS LRI

* amounts and nature of future capital expenditures;
+» expansion and growth of our business and operations:

* business strategy;




« estimates of proved gas and oil reserves;
* reserve potential;
= development drilling potential;

« cash flow from operations;

seasonality of certain business segments;
» power, natural gas and natural gas liquids prices and demand.

Forward-looking statements are based on numerous assumptions, uncertainties and risks that could cause
future events or fesults to be materially different from those stated or implied in this document. Many of the factors
that will determine these results are beyond our ability to control or project. Specific factors which could cause
actual results to differ from those in the forward-looking statements include:

« availability of supplies (including the uncertainties inherent in assessing and estimating future natural gas
reserves), market demand, volatility of prices, and increased costs of capital;

« inflation, interest rates, fluctuation in foreign exchange, and general economic conditions;
» the strength and financial resources of our competitors;

» development of alternative energy sources;

» the impact of operational and development hazards;

« costs of, changes in, or the results of laws, government regulations including proposed climate change
legislation. environmental liabilities, litigation, and rate proceedings;

+ changes in the current geopolitical situation;

» risks related to strategy and financing. including restrictions stemming from our debt agreements and our
lack of investment grade credit ratings;

« risk associated with future weather conditions and acts of terrorism.

Given the uncertainties and risk factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those
contained in any forward-looking statement. we caution investors not to unduly rely on our forward-looking
statements. We disclaim any obligations to and do not iniend to update the above list to announce publicly the result
of any revisions to any of the forward-looking statements to reflect future cvents or developments.

In addition to causing our actual results to differ, the factors Jisted above and referred to below may cause our
intentions to change from those statements of intention set forth in this report. Such changes in our intentions may
also cause our results to differ. We may change our intentions, at any time and without notice, based upon changes in
such factors, our assumptions, or otherwise.

Because forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties. we caution that there are important
factors. in additions to those listed above, that may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in
the forward-looking statements. These factors include the following:

RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following risk factors in addition to the other information in this report. Each
of these factors could adversely affect our business, operating results, and financial condition as well as adversely
affect the value of an investment in our securities,
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Risks Inherent to our Industry and Business

The long-term financial condition of our natural gas transmission and midstream businesses is dependent
on the continued availability of natural gas supplies in the supply basins that we access, demand for those
supplies in our traditional markets, and market demand Jor natural gas.

The development of the additional natural gas reserves that are essential for our gas transmission and
midstream businesses to thrive requires significant capital expenditures by others for exploration and development
drilling and the installation of production, gathering, storage, transportation and other facilities that permit natural
gas to be produced and delivered to our pipeline systems. Low prices for natural gas, regulatory limitations, or the
lack of available capital for these projects could adversely affect the development and production of additional
reserves, as well as gathering, storage, pipeline transmission and import and export of natural gas supplies,
adversely impacting our ability to fill the capacities of our gathering, transmission and processing facilities.
Additionally, in some cases, new LNG import facilities built near our markets could result in Jess demand for our
gathering and transmission facilities.

Estimating reserves and future nef revenues involves uncertainties. Negative revisions to reserve estimates
and oil and gas price declines may lead to decreased earnings, losses or impairment of oil and gas assets.

Reserve engineering is a subjective process of estimating underground accumulations of oil and gas that
cannot be measured in an exact manner. Reserves that are “proved reserves™ are those estimated quantities of crude
oil, natural gas, and natural gas liquids that geological and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty
are recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions, but should
not be considered as a guarantee of results for future drilling projects.

The process relies on interpretations of available geological, geophysical, engineering and production data.
There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves and in projecting future rates
of production and timing of developmental expenditures, including many factors beyond the control of the
producer. The reserve data included in this report represent estimates. In addition, the estimates of future net
revenues from our proved reserves and the present value of such estimates are based upor certain assumptions about
future production levels, prices and costs that may not prove to be correct over time.

Quantities of proved reserves are estimated based on economic conditions in existence during the period of
assessment. Lower oil and gas prices may have the impact of shortening the economic lives of certain fields because
it becomes uneconomic to produce all recoverable reserves on such fields, which reduces proved property reserve
eslimates.

I negative revisions in the estimated quantities of proved reserves were to occur, it would have the effect of
increasing the rates of depreciation, depletion and amortization on the affected properties, which would decrease
carnings or result in losses through higher depreciation, depletion and amortization expense. The revisions may also
be sufficient to trigger impairment losses on certzin properties which would result in a further non-cash charge to
carnings. The revisions could also possibly affect the evaluation of Exploration & Production’s goodwill for
impairment purposes.

Our past success rate for drilling projects and the historic performance of our exploration and production
business is no predictor of future performance.
Our past success rate for drilling projects in 2006 should not be considered a predictor of future performance.

Performance of our exploration and production business is affected in part by factors beyond our contro! {(any
of which could cause the results of this business to decrease materially), such as:

» regulations and regulatory approvals;

* availability of capital for drilling projects which may be affected by other risk factors discussed in this
report,

* cost-effective availability of drilling rigs and necessary equipment;
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» availability of skilled labor;

+ availability of cost-effective transportation for products;

« market risks (including price risks and competition} discussed in this report.

Qur drilling, production, gathering, processing and transporting activities involve numerous risks that might
result in accidents, and other operating risks and hazards.

Our operations are subject to all the risks and hazards typically associated with the development and
exploration for, and the production and transportation of oil and gas. These operating risks include, but are not
limited 10:

« blowouts, cratering and explosions;
« uncontrollable flows of oil, natural gas or well fluids;
« fires;
+ » formations with abnormal pressures;
« pollution and other environmental risks;
= natural disasters.

In addition, there are inherent in our gas gathering, processing and transporting properties a variety of hazards
and operating risks. such as leaks, spills, explosions and mechanical problems that could cause substantial financial
losses. In addition, these risks could result in loss of human life, significant damage to property, environmental
poltution, impairment of our operations and substantial losses to us. In accordance with customary industry
practice, we maintain insurance against some, but not all, of these risks and losses, and only at levels we believe to
be appropriate. The location of certain segments of our pipelines in or near populated areas, including residential
areas. commercial business centers and industrial sites, could increase the Jevel of damages resulting from these
risks. In spite of our precautions, an event could cause considerable harm to people or property, and could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations, particularly if the event is not fully
covered by insurance. Accidents or other operating risks could further result in loss of service available (o our
customers. Such circumstances could materially impact our ability to mect contractual obligations and retain
customers, with a resulting impact on our results of operations.

Costs of environmental liabilities and complying with existing and future environmental regulations could
exceed our current expectations.

Our operations are subject to extensive environmental regulation pursuant to a variety of federal, provincial,
state and municipal laws and regulations. Such laws and regulations impose, among other things, restrictions,
liabilities and obligations in connection with the generation, handling, use, storage. extraction, transportation,
treatment and disposal of huzardous substances and wasles, in connection with spills, releases and emissions of
various substances into the environment, and in connection with the operation, maintenance, abandonment and
reclamation of our facilities.

Compliance with environmental laws requires significant expenditures, including for clean up costs and
damages arising out of contaminated properties. In addition, the possible failure to comply with environmental Jaws
and regulations might result in the imposition of fines and penaities. We are generally responsible for all liabilities
associated with the environmental condition of our facilities and assets, whether acquired or developed, regardless
of when the liabilitics arose and whether they are known or unknown. In connection with certain acquisitions and
divestitures, we could acquire, or be required to provide indemnification against, environmental liabilities that
could expose us to material losses, which may not be covered by insurance. In addition, the steps we could be
required to take to bring certain facilities into compliance could be prohibitively expensive, and we might be
required to shut down, divest or alter the operation of those facilities, which might cause us to incur losses. Although
we do not expect that the costs of complying with current environmental laws will have a material adverse effect on
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our financial condition or resuits ol operations, no assurance can be given that the costs of complying with
environmental laws in the future will not have such an effect.

We make assumptions and develop expectations about possible expenditures related to environmental
conditions based on current liws and regulations and current interpretations of those laws and regulations. If
the interpretation of laws or regulations, or the laws and regulations themselves, change, our assumptions may
change. Our regulatory rate structure and our contracts with customers might not necessarily allow us to recover
capitud costs we incur to comply with the new environmental regulations. Also, we might not be able to obtain or
maintain from time to time ail required environmental regulatory approvals for certain development projects. If
there is a delay in obtaining any required environmental regulatory approvals or it we fail to obtain and comply with
them, the operation of our facilities could be prevented or become subject to additional costs, resulting in potentially
material adverse consequences 1o our results of operations,

Our operating results for certain segments of our business might fluctuate on a seasonal and quarterly
basis. '

Revenues from certain segments of our business, including gas transmission and the sale of electric power, can
have scasonal characteristics. In many parts of the country, demand for power peaks during the summer months,
with market prices also peaking at that time. In other areas, demand for power peaks during the winter. In addition,
demand for natural gas and other fuels peaks during the winter. As a result, our overall operating results in the future
might fluctuate substantially on a seasonal basis. Demand for natural gas and other fuels could vary significantly
from our expectations depending on the nature and location of our facilities and pipeline systems and the terms of
our power sale agreements and natural gas transmission arrangements relative to demand created by unusual
weather patterns. Additionally. changes in the price of natural gas could benefit one of our business units, but
disadvantage another. For example, our Exploration & Production business may benefit from higher natural gas
prices, and Power, which vses gas as a fuel source. may not.

Risks Related to the Current Geopolitical Situation

Our investments and projects located outside of the United States expose us to risks related to the laws of
other countries, and the taxes, economic conditions, fluctuations in currency rates, political conditions and
policies of foreign governments. These risks might delay or reduce our realization of value from our
international projects. :

We currently own and might acquire and/or dispose of material energy-related investments and projects
outside the United States. The economic and political conditions in certain countries where we have interests or in
which we might explore development, acquisition or investment opportunities present risks of delays in construc-
tion and interruption of business, as well as risks of war, expropriation, nationalization, renegetiation. trade
sanctions or nullification of existing contracts and changes in law or tax policy, that are greater than in the United
States. The uncertainty of the legal environment in certain foreign countries in which we develop or acquire projects
or make investments could make it more difficult to obtain non-recourse project financing or other financing on
suitable terms, could adversely affect the ability of certain customers to honor their obligations with respect to such
projects or investments and could impair our ability to enforce our rights under agreements relating to such projects
or investments. Recent events in certain South American countries, particularly the proposed nationalization of
ceriain energy-related assets in Venezuela, could have a material negative impact on our results of operations., We
may not receive adequate compensation, or any compensation, if our assets in Veneruela are nationalized.

Operations and investments in foreign countries also can present currency exchange rate and convertibility,
inflation and repatriation risk. In certain situations under which we develop or acquire projects or make investments,
economic and monetary conditions and other factors could affect our ability to convert to U.S, dollars our earnings
denominated in foreign currencies. In addition, risk from fluctuations in currency exchange rates can arise when our
foreign subsidiaries expend or borrow funds in one type of currency, but receive revenue in another. [n such cases, an
adverse change in exchange rates can reduce our ability to meet expenses, including debt service obligations.
Foreign currency risk can also arise when the revenues received by our foreign subsidiaries are not in U.S. dollars. In
such cascs, a strengthening of the U.S. dollar or a weakening of the foreign currency could reduce the amount of
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cash and income we receive from these foreign subsidiaries. We have put contracts in place designed to mitigate our
most significant foreign currency exchange risks. We have some exposures that are not hedged and which could
result in losses or volatility in our results of operations.

Risks Related to Strategy and Financing
Our debt agreements impose restrictions on us that may adversely affect our ability to operate our business.

Certain of our debt agreements contain covenants that restrict or limit among other things, our ability to create
liens, sell assets, make certain distributions, repurchase equity and incur additional debt. In addition. our debt
agreements contain, and those we enter into in the future may contain, financial covenants and other limitations with
which we will need to comply. Our ability to comply with these covenants may be affected by many events beyond
our control, and we cannot assure you that our future operating results will be sufficient to comply with the
covenants or, in the event of a default under any of our debt agreements, to remedy that default.

Our failure to comply with the covenants in our debt agreements and other related transactional documents
could result in events of default. Upon the occurrence of such an event of default, the lenders could elect to declare
all amounts outstanding under a particular facility to be immediately due and payable and terminate all commit-
ments, if any. to extend further credit. An event of default or an acceleration under one debt agreement could cause a
cross-default or cross-acceleration of another debt agreement. Such a cross-default or cross-acceleration could have
a wider impact on our liquidity than might otherwise arise from a default or acceleration of a single debt instrument.
If an event of default occurs, or if other debt agreements cross-default, and the lenders under the affected debt
agreements accelerate the maturity of any loans or other debt outstanding to us, we may not have sufficient liquidity
to repay amounts outstanding under such debt agreements.

Our lack of investment grade credit ratings increases our cosis of doing business in certain ways and attain-
ment of an investment grade rating is within the control of independent third parties.

Because we do not have an investment grade credit rating, our transactions in each of our businesses require
greater credit assurances, both to be given from, and received by, us to satisfy credit support requirements. In
addition, we are more vulnerable to the impact of market disruptions or a further downgrade of our credit rating that
might further increase our cost of borrowing or further impair our ability to access capital markets. Such disruptions
could include:

* economic downturns;

» deteriorating capital market conditions generally:

« declining market prices for electricity and natural gas;
« terrorist attacks or threatened attacks on our facilities or those of other energy companies;
« the overall health of the energy industry, including the bankruptcy or.insolvency of other companies.

Credit rating agencies perform independent analysis when assigning credit ratings. Given the significant
changes in capital markets and the energy industry over the last few years, credit rating agencies continue to review
the criteria for attaining investment grade ratings and make changes to those criteria from time to time. Our goal is to
attain investment grade ratios. However, there is no guarantee that the credit rating agencies will assign us
investment grade ratings even if we meet or exceed their criteria for investment grade ratios.

Long-term power generation purchase contracis without corresponding long-term purchase sale contracts
might expose us to fluctuations in the wholesale power markets and negatively affect our results of
operations.

We have entered into agreements with certain power generation facilities to purchase all or a substantial
portion of their generation capacity. These facilities operate as “merchant” facilities, many without corresponding
long-term power sales agreements, and therefore are exposed to market fluctuations, Without the benefit of such
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long-term power sales agreements, we cannot be sure that we will be able to sell any or all of the power gencrated by
these facilities at commercially attractive rates or that these power generation relationships will be profitable.

We sell all or a portion of the energy, capacity and other products from certain generation facilities to wholesale
power markels, including energy markets operated by independent system operators, or 1SOs, or regional
transmission organizations, or RTOs, as well as wholesale purchasers. We are not subject to traditional cost-
based regulation, therefore we sell electric generation capacity, power and ancillary services to wholesale
purchasers at prices determined by the market. As a result, we are not guaraniced any rate of return on our
capital investments through mandated rates, and our revenues and results of operations depend upon current and
forward market prices for power.

Prices for electricity, natural gas liquids, natural gas and other commodities are volatile and this volatility
could adversely affect our financial results, cash flows, access to capital and ability to maintain existing
businesses.

Our revenues, operating results, future rate of growth and the value of our power and gas businesses depend
primarily upon the prices we receive for electricity, natural gas liquids, natural gas, or other commodities, and the
dilferences between prices of these commodities. Prices also affect the amount of cash flow available for capital
expenditures and our ability to borrow money or raise additional capital. In particular, market prices for power,
generation capacity and ancillary services tend to fluctuate substantially. Unlike other commodities, electricily can
only be stored on a very limited basis and generally must be produced concurrently with its use. As a result, market
prices for electricity are subject to significant volatility from supply and demand imbalances. especially in the day-
ahead and spot markets,

The markets for electricity, natural gas tiquids, and natural gas are likely to continue to be volatile. Wide
fuctuations in prices might result from relatively minor changes in the supply of and demand for these
commadities, market uncertainty and other factors that are beyond our control, including:

* worldwide and domestic supplies of and demand for electricity, natural pas, petroleum, and reluted
commaodities:

« turmoil in the Middle East and other producing regions;

* terrorist attacks on production or transportation assets;

* weather conditions;

+ the level of consumer demand;

= the development of federal and state power markets, including actions of 1SOs and RTOs;

« the price and availability of other types of fuels;

« the availability of pipeline capacity:

= supply disruptions, including plant outages and transmission disruptions;

= the price and level of foreign imports:

+ domestic and foreign governmental regulations and taxes;

= volutility in the natural gas markets:

« the overall economic environment;

* the credit of participants in the markets where products are bought and sold.
We might not be able to successfully manage the risks associated with selling and marketing products in the
wholesale energy markets.

Our portfolio of derivative and other energy contracts consists of wholesale contracts to buy and sell
commodities, including contracts for electricity, natural gas, natural gas liquids and other commuodities that are
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settled by the delivery of the commodity or cash throughout the United States. If the values of these contracts change
in a direction or manner that we do not anticipate or cannot manage, it could negatively affect our results of
operations. In the past, certain marketing and trading companies have experienced severe ﬁnunsial problems due to
price volatility in the energy commodity markets. In certain instances this volatility has caused companies to be
unable to deliver energy commodities that they had guaranteed under contract. If such a delivery failure were to
oceur in one of our contracts, we might incur additionat losses to the extent of amounts, if any, already paid to, or
received from. counterparties. In addition, in our businesses, we often extend credit to our counterparties. Despite
performing credit analysis prior to extending credit, we are exposed to the risk that we might not be able to collect
amounts owed to us. 1f the counterparty to such a financing transaction fails to perform and any collateral that
secures our counterparty’s obligation is inadequate, we will suffer a loss.

If we are unable to perform under our energy agreements, we could be required to pay damages. These
damages generally would be based on the difference between the market price to acquire replacement energy or
encrgy services and the relevant contract price. Depending on price volatility in the wholesale energy markets, such
damages could be significant.

Risks Related to Regulations that Affect our Industry

Our natural gas sales, transmission, and storage operations are subject to government regulations and rate
proceedings that could have an adverse impact on our results of operations.

Our interstate natural gas sales, transmission, and storage operations conducted through our Gas Pipelines
business are subject to the FERC’s rules and regulations in accordance with the Natural Gas Act of 1938 and the
Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978. The FERC’s regulatory authority extends to:

» transportation and sale for resale of natural gas in interstate commerce,
« rates and charges;

* construction;

« acquisition, extension or abandonment of services or facilities;

» accounts and records;

+ depreciation and amortization policies;

+ operating terms and conditions of service.

Regulatory actions in these areas can affect our business in many ways, including decreasing tariff rates and
revenues, decreasing volumes in our pipelines, increasing our costs and otherwise altering the profitability of our
business.

The FERC has taken certain actions to strengthen market forces in the natural gas pipeline industry that have
led to increased competition throughout the industry. In a number of key markets, interstate pipelines are now facing
competitive pressure from other major pipeline systems, enabling local distribution companies and end users to
choose a transmission provider based on considerations other than location.

Competition in the markets in which we operate may adversely affect our results of operations.

We have numerous competitors in all aspects of our businesses, and additional competitors may enter our
markets. Other companies with which we compete may be able to respond more quickly to new laws or regulations
or emerging technologies, or to devote greater resources to the construction, expansion or refurbishment of their
facilities than we can. In addition, current or potential competitors may make strategic acquisitions or have greater
financial resources than we do, which could affect our ability to make investments or acquisitions. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to compete successfully against current and future competitors and any failure to do
so could have a material adverse effect on our businesses and results of operations.
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Expiration of firm transportation agreements.

A substantial portion of the operating revenues of our Gas Pipelines are gencrated'through firm transportation
agreemenis that exXpire periodically and must be renegotiated and extended or replaced. We cannot give any
assurance as (0 whether any of these agreemeats will be extended or replaced or that the terms of any renegotiated
agreements will be as favorable as the existing agreements. Upon the expiration of these agreements, should
customers turn back or substantially reduce their commitments, we counld experience a negative effect to our results
of operations.

Our revenues might decrease if we are unable to gain adequate, reliable and affordable access to transmis-
sion and distribution assets due to regulation by the FERC and regional authorities of wholesale market
transactions for electricity and natural gas.

We depend on transmission and distribution facilities owned and operated by utilities and other energy
companies to deliver the electricity and natural gas we buy and sell in the wholesale market. If transmission is
disrupted, if capacity is inadequate, or if credit requirements or rates of such utilities or energy companies are
increased, our ability to sell and deliver products might be hindered. The FERC has issued power transmission
regulations that require wholesale electric transmission services to be offered on an open-access, non-discrim-
inatory basis. Although these regulations are designed to encourage competition in wholesale market transactions
for electricity, some companies may fail to provide fair and equal access to their transmission systems or may not
provide sufficient transmission capacity to enable other companies to transmit electric power.

In addition, the independent system operators who oversee the transmission systems in regional power
markets, such as California, have in the past been authorized to impose, and might continue to impose, price
limitations and other mechanisms to address volatility in the power markets. These types of price limitations and
other mechanisms might adversely impact the profitability of our wholesale power marketing and trading. Given the
extreme volatility and lack of meaningful long-term price history in many of these markets and the imposition of
price limitations by regulators, 1ISOs. RTOs or other marker operators, we can offer no assurance that we will be able
to operate profitably in all wholesale power markets or that our results of operations will not be adversely affected
by the actions of these parties.

Our businesses are subject to complex government regulations. The operation of our businesses might be
adversely affected by changes in these regulations or in their interpretation or implementation.

Existing regulations might be revised or reinterpreted, new laws and regulations might be adopted or become
applicable to us or our facilities. and future changes in laws and regulations might have a detrimental effect on our
business. Over the past few years, certain restructured energy markets have experienced supply problems and price
volatility. In some of these markets, proposals have been made by governmental agencies and other interested
parties to re-regulate areas of these markets which have previously been deregulated. Various forms of market
controls and limitations including price caps and bid caps have already been implemented and new controls and
market restructuring proposals are in various stages of development, consideration and implementation. We cannot
assure you that changes in market structure and regulation will not adversely affect our business and results of
operations, We also cannot assure you that other proposals to re-regulate will not be made or-that legislative or other
attention to these restructured energy markets will not cause the deregulation process to be delayed or reversed or
otherwise adversely affect our business and resuits of operations.

The outcome of pending rate cases to set the rates we can charge customers on certain of our pipelines
might result in rates that do not provide an adequate return on the capitdl we have invested in those
pipelines. '

We have filed rate cases with the FERC to request changes to the rates we charge on Northwest Pipeline and
Transco. Although we have a pending settlement of our Northwest Pipeline rate case, we must still obtain approval
of the settlement. Theretore, the outcome of both rate cases remains uncertain. There is a risk that rates set by the
FERC will be lower than is necessary to provide us with an adequate return on the capital we have invested in these
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assets. There is also the risk that higher rates will cause our customers fo look for alternative ways to transport their
natural gas.

Legal and regulatory proceedings and investigations relating to the energy industry and capital markets
have adversely affected our business and may continue to do so.

Public and regulatory scrutiny of the energy industry and of the capital markets has resulted in increased
regulation being either proposed or implemented. Such scrutiny has also resulted in various inquiries, investigations
and court proceedings in which we are a named defendant. Both the shippers on our pipelines and regulators have
rights to challenge the rates we charge under certain circumstances. Any successful challenge could materially
affect our results of operations.

Certain inquiries, investigations and court proceedings are ongoing and continue to adversely affect our
business as a whole. We might see these adverse effects continue as a result of the uncertainty of these ongoing
inquiries and proceedings, or additional inquiries and proceedings by federal or state regulatory agencies or private
plaintiffs. In addition, we cannot predict the outcome of any of these inquiries or whether these inquiries will lead to
additional legal proceedings against us, civil or criminal fines or penalties, or other regulatory action, including
legislation, which might be materially adverse to the operation of our business and our revenues and net income or
increase our operating costs in other ways. Current legal proceedings or other matters against us arising out of our
ongoing and discontinued operations including environmental matters, disputes over gas measurement, royalty
payments, shareholder class action suits, regulatory appeals and similar matters might result in adverse decisions
against us. The result of such adverse decisions, either individually or in the aggregate, could be material and may
not be covered fully or at all by insurance.

Risks Related to Accounting Standards

Potential changes in accounting standards might cause us to revise our financial results and disclosures in
the future, which might change the way analysts measure our business or financial performance.

Accounting irregularities discovered in the past few years across various industries have forced regulators and
legislators to take a renewed look at accounting practices, financial disclosures, companies’ relationships with their
independent registered public accounting firms and retirement plan practices. We cannot predict the ultimate impact
of any future changes in accounting regulations or practices in general with respect to public companics or the
energy industry or in our operations specifically.

In addition, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) or the SEC could enact new accounting
standards that might impact how we are required to record revenues, expenses, assets. liabilities and equity.

Risks Related to Market Volatility and Risk Measurement and Hedging Activities

Our risk measurement and hedging activities might not be effective and could increase the volatility of our
results.

We manage our commodity price risk for our unregulated businesses as a whole. Although we have systems in
place that use various methodologies to quantify risk, these systems might not always be followed or might not
always be effective. Further. such systems do not in themselves manage risk, particularly risks outside of our
control. and adverse changes in energy commodity market prices, volatility, adverse correlation of commodity
prices, the liquidity of markets, changes in interest rates and other risks discussed in this report might still adversely
affect our earnings, cash flows and balance sheet under applicable accounting rules, even if risks have been
identified.

In an effort to manage our financial exposure related to commodity price and market fluctuations, we have
entered into contracts to hedge certain risks associated with our assets and operations, including our long-term
tolling agreements. In these hedging activities, we have used fixed-price. forward. physical purchase and sales
contracts, futures. financial swaps and option contracts traded in the over-the-counter markets or on exchanges, as
well as long-term structured transactions when feasible. Nevertheless, no single hedging arrangement can
adequately address all risks present in a given contract. For example, a forward contract that would be effective
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in hedging commodity price volatility risks would not hedge the tolling contract’s counterparty credit or perfor-
mance risk. Therefore, unhedged risks will always continue to exist. While we attempt to manage counterparty
credit risk within guidelines established by our credit policy, we may not be able to successfully manage all credit
risk and as such, future cash flows and results of operations could be impacted by counterparty default,

Our use of hedging arrangements through which we attempt to reduce the economic risk of our participation in
commodity markets could result in increased volatility of our reported results and could also result in reported cash
flows in future years not reflecting the realization of increases in the fair value of derivatives that have already been
reflected in our income statements, Changes in the fair values (gains and losses) of derivatives that qualify as hedges
under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” (SFAS 133) to the extent
that such hedges are not fully effective in offsetting changes to the value of the hedged commodity, as well as
changes in the fair value of derivatives that do not qualify as hedges under SFAS 133, must be recorded in our
income. This creates the risk of volatility in earnings even if no economic impact to the Company has occurred
during the applicable period. During the period from 2002 to 2004 when our Power business was for sale, most
changes in the fair value of derivatives used in our Power business were reflected in our earnings as net forward
unrealized mark-to-market gains. As a resuit, in future periods if the cash benefits associated with those hedges are
actually realized. the value will not be reflected as earnings on our income statement, having already been recorded
as earnings in prior years.

The impact of changes in market prices for naturai gas on the average gas prices received by us may be reduced
based on the level of our hedging strategies. These hedging arrangements may limit our potential gains if the market
prices for natural gas were to rise substantially over the price established by the hedge. In addition, our hedging
arrangenents expose us to the risk of financial loss in certain circumstances, including instances in which;

» production is less than expected;

* achange in the difference between published price indexes established by pipelines in which our hedged
production is delivered and the reference price established in the hedging arrangements is such that we are
required to make payments to our counterparties;

+ the counterparties to our hedging arrangements fail to honor their financial commitments.

Risks Related to Employees, Qutsourcing of Non-Core Support Activities, and Technology

Institutional knowledge residing with current employees nearing retirement eligibility might not be ade-
quately preserved, '

In certain segments of our business, institutional knowledge resides with employees who have many years of
service. As these employees reach retirement age, we may not be able to replace them with employees of
comparable knowledge and experience. In addition, we may not be able to retain or recrit cther qualified
individuals and our efforts at knowledge transfer could be inadequate. If knowledge transfer, recruiting and
retention ciforts are inadequate, access to significant amounts of internal historical knowiedge and expertise could
become unavailable (o us,

Failure of the outsourcing relationships might negatively impact our ability to conduct our business.

Some studies indicate a high failure rate of outsourcing relationships. Although we have taken steps to build a
cooperative and mutually beneficial relationship with our outsourcing providers and o closely monitor their
performance, a deterieration in the timeliness or quality of the services performed by the outsourcing providers or a
{ailure of all or part of these relationships could lead to loss of institutional knowledge and interruption of services
necessary for us 1o be able 1o conduct our business.
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Our ability to receive services from outsourcing provider locations outside of the United States might be
impacted by cultural differences, political instability, or unanticipated regulatory requirements in jurisdic-
tions outside the United States.

Certain of our accounting, information technology, application development, and helpdesk services are
currently provided by an outsourcing provider from service centers outside of the United States. The economic and
political conditions in certain countries from which our outsourcing providers may provide services to us present
similar risks of business operations located outside of the United States previously discussed, including risks of
interruption of business, war, expropriation, nationalization, renegotiation, trade sanctions or nullification of
existing contracts and changes in law or tax policy, that are greater than in the United States.

Our current information technology infrastructure is aging and may adversely affect our ability to conduct
our business. '

Limited capital spending for information technology infrastructure during 2001-2003 resulted in an aging
server environment that may be less efficient, may require more personnel and capital resources o maintain and
upgrade than more current systems, and may not be adequate for our current business needs. While efforts are
ongoing to update the environment, the current age and condition of equipment could result in loss of internal and
external communications, loss of data, inability to access data when needed, excessive software downtime
(including downtime for critical software applications), and other disruptions that could have a material adverse
impact on our business and results of operations,

Risks Related to Weather, other Natural Phenomena and Business Disruption
Our assets and operations can be adversely affected by weather and other natural phenomena.

Our assets and operations, including those located offshore, can be adversely affected by hurricanes,
earthquakes, tornadoes and other natural phenomena and weather conditions including extreme temperatures,
making it more difficult for us to realize the historic rates of return associated with these assets and operations.

Acts of terrorism could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows.

Our assets and the assets of our customers and others may be targets of terrorist activities that could disrupt our
business or cause significant harm to our operations, such as full or partial disruption to our ability to generate,
produce, process. transmit, transport or distribute electricity, natural gas or natural gas liquids. Acts of terrorism as
well as events occurring in response to or in comnection with acts of terrorism could cause environmental
repercussions that could result in a significant decrease in revenues or significant reconstruction or remediation
costs, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We own property in 32 states plus the District of Columbia in the United States and in Argentina, Canada and
Venezuela. :

Power’s primary assets are its term contracts, related systems and technological support. In addition, affiliates
of Power own the Hazelton and Milagro generating facilities described above. In our Gas Pipeline and Midstream
segments, we generally own our facilities, although a substantial portion of our pipeline and gathering facilities is
constructed and maintained pursuant to rights-of-way, casements, permits, licenses or consents on and across
properties owned by others. In our Exploration & Production segment, the majority of our ownership interest in
exploration and production properties is held as working interests in oil and gas leaseholds.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The information called for by this item is provided in Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements of this report, which information is incorporated by reference into this item.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The name, age, period of service, and title of each of our executive officers as of February 22, 2007, are listed

below.

Alan S. Armstrong

James J. Bender. .

Donald R. Chappel

Ralph A. Hill . . ..

William E. Hobbs

Senior Vice President. Midstream

Age: 44

Position held since February 2002,

From 1999 10 February 2002, Mr. Armstrong was Vice President,
Gathering and Processing for Midstream. From 1998 to 1999 he was
Vice President. Commercial Development for Midstream.

Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Age 50

Position held since December 2002.

Prior to joining us. Mr. Bender was Senior Vice President and General
Counsel with NRG Energy, Inc.. a position held since June 2000, prior
to which he was Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of
NRG Energy Inc. since June 1997. NRG Energy, Inc. filed a voluntary
bankruptcy petition during 2003 and its plan of reorganization was
approved in December 2003.

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Age: 55

Position held since April 2003,

Prior to joining us, Mr. Chappel during 2000 founded and served as
chief executive officer of a development business in Chicago, Illinois
through April 2003, when he joined us. Mr. Chappel joined Waste
Management, Inc. in 1987 and held various financial, administrative
and operational lcadership positions, including twice serving as chief
financial officer, during 1997 and 1998 and most recently during 1999
through February 2000.

Senior Vice President, Exploration & Production

Age: 47

Position held since December 1998,

Mr. Hill was vice president of the exploration and production unit from
1993 10 1998 as well as Senior Vice President Petroleum Services
from 1998 1o 2003.

Senior Vice President, Power

Age: 47 ' )

Position held since October 2002,

From February 2000 to October 2002, Mr. Hobbs was President and
Chiet Executive- Officer of Witliams Energy Marketing & Trading.
From 1997 to February 2000. he served as a Vice President of various
Williams subsidiaries.
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Michael P, Johnson, Sr. .. ..........

Steven J. Malcolm . . ........... ...

Phillip D. Wright

Senior Vice President and Chiet Administrative Officer

Age: 59

Position held since May 2004.

Mr. Johnson was named our Senior Vice President of Human
Resources and Administration in April 1999, Prior to joining us in
December 1998, he held officer level positions, such as Vice President
of Human Resources. Vice President for Corporate People Strategies,
and Vice President Human Resource Services, for Amoco Corporation
from 1991 10 1998.

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President

Age: 58

Position held since September 2001,

Mr. Malcolm was elected Chief Executive Officer of Williams in
January 2002 and Chairman of the Board in May 2002. He was elected
President and Chief Operating Officer in September 2001. Prior to that,
he was our Executive Vice President from May 2001, President and
Chief Executive Officer of our subsidiary Williams Energy Services.
LLC., since December 1998 and the Senior Vice President and General
Manager of our subsidiary, Williams Field Services Company, since
November 1994,

Senior Vice President, Gas Pipeline

Age: 51

Position held since January 2005.

From October 2002 to January 2005, Mr. Wright served as Chief
Restructuring Officer. From September 2001 to October 2002,
Mr. Wright served as President and Chief Executive Officer of our
subsidiary Williams Energy Services. From 1996 unti! September
2001, he was Senior Vice President, Enterprise Development and
Planning for our encrgy services group. Mr. Wright has held various
positions with us since 1989.
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PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities .

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and NYSE Arca Equities Exchanges under the
symbol “WMB.” At the close of business on February 22, 2007, we had approximately 11,875 holders of record of
our common stock. The high and low closing sales price ranges (New York Stock Exchange composite transactions)
and dividends declared by quarter for each of the past two years are as follows:

2006 2005
Quarter High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
Ist. .o $25.12 %1949 $.075 $19.29  $1529 $ .05
and ..o ... 82336 $20.33 $ .09 $19.21  $16.29 $ 05
Id $25.23  $22.51 3 .09 32505 $19.16 5.075
dth ... e $27.95  $22.95 .09 $2540  $19.97 3.075

Some of our subsidiaries’ borrowing arrangements limit the transfer of funds to us. These terms have not
impeded, nor are they expected to impede, our ability to pay dividends. However, until January 20, 2005. the credit
agreements underlying our two unsecured revolving credit facilities totaling $500 million prohibited us from paying
quarterty cash dividends on our common stock in excess of $0.05 per share. On January 20, 2005, these facilities
were terminated and replaced with two new facilities. As part of the transaction, the dividend restriction, along with
most of the other restrictive covenants, was removed from the new credit agreements.

4
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Performance Graph

Set forth below is a line graph comparing our cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock
(assuming reinvestment of dividends) with the cumulative total return of the S&P 500 Stock Index and the
Bloomberg U.S. Pipeline Index for the period of five fiscal years commencing January 1, 2002. The Bloomberg
U.S. Pipeline Index is composed of El Paso, Equitable Resources, Questar, Kinder Morgan, TransCanada, Spectra
Energy, Enbridge and Williams, The graph below assumes an investment of $100 at the beginning of the period.

Cumulative Total Shareholder Return

200
— The Williams Compunies, Inc
= S&P 300 Index
Lo o Blowmberg U.S. Pipelines Index
o
& A/a—/‘“/é
—
3 W
= 50 W .
0 ] T T T T T
2001 2002 2003 2004 2003 2006
200 2002 23 2004 2005 2006
The Williams Companies, Inc. 100.0 111 40.6 67.7 9715 111.5
S&P 500 Index 100.0 77.9 100.2 111.1 116.6 135.0
Bloomberg U.S. Pipelines Index 100.0 30.7 50.4 64.1 82.8 93.7
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following financial data as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and for the three years ended December 31, 2006,
are an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, the consolidated financial statements and related notes. All
other amounts have been prepared from our financial records. Certain amounts below have been restated or reclassified.
See Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part 11 Itemn 8 for discussion of changes in 2006, 2005 and
2004. Information concerning significant trends in the financial condition and results of operations is contained in
Management's Discussion & Analvsis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of this report.

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
{Millions, except per-share amounts)

Revenues(1) . ... ..o i, “$11,8129 $12,583.6 $12461.3 $16651.0 $ 34345
Income (loss) from continuing operations(2). . . .. 332.8 3174 93.2 (57.5) (618.4)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations(3) . . . (24.3) 2.1 70.5 326.6 (136.3)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principles(d) .. ... ... .. ... ... ... . . ..., — a.n — (761.3) —_
Diluted earnings {loss) per common share;

Income (loss) from continuing operations . . . . . 55 53 .18 17) (t.37)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . . (.04) —_— : 13 .63 (.26)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principles. . . ... ... .. L., — — — (1.47) —

Total assets at December 31 .. .............. 254024 294426 239930 27.021.8 34,988.5
Short-term notes payable and long-term debt due

within one year at December 31.,.......... 392.1 122.6 250.1 9385 2,077.1
Long-term debt at December 31 . ............ 7,622.0 7.590.5 7.711.9 11,0398 11,0757
Stockholders’ equity at December 31.......... 6,073.2 54275 49559 4,102.1 5,049.0
Cash dividends per common share ..., ........ 345 25 08 04 42

(1) As part of our adoption of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 02-3 “Issues Involved in Accounting for
Derivative Contracts Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Man-
agement Activities,” (EITF 02-3), we concluded that revenues and costs of sales from nonderivative contracts
and certain physically settled derivative contracts should generally be reported on a gross basis. Prior to the
adoption on January |, 2003, these revenues were presented net of costs. As permitted by EITF 02-3, prior year
amounts have not been restated. Additionally, revenues within our Power segment in 2003 includes approx-
imately $1 17 million related to the correction of the accounting treatment previously applied to certain third-
party derivative contracts during 2002 and 2001.

(2) See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of asset sales and other accruals in
2006, 2005, and 2004.

(3) See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements tor the analysis of the 2006, 2005 and 2004 income
(loss) from discontinued operations. Results for the years 2003 and 2002 also include amounts related to the
discontinued operations of certain gas processing and natural gas liquid operations in Canada, a soda ash
mining operation, our interest and investment in Williams Energy Partners, a bio-energy operation, certain
natural gas production properties, Texas Gas Transmission Corporation, refining and marketing operations in
the midsouth, retail travei centers in the midsouth, Central natural gas pipeline, Mid-America pipeline,
Seminole pipeline and Kern River pipeline.

(4) The 2005 cumulative effect of change in accounting principles s due to implementation of Interpretation (FIN)
47, "Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations — an Interpretation of FASB Statement No,
143.” The 2003 cumulative effect of change in accounting principles includes a $762.5 mitlion charge related to
the adoption of EITF 02-3, slightly offset by $1.2 million related to the adoption of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” The $762.5 million
charge primarily consisted of the then fair value of power tolling, load serving, gas transportation and gas
storage contracts. These contracts are not derivatives and, therefore, are no longer reported at fair value.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
General

We are primarily a natural gas company, engaged in finding, producing, gathering, processing, and trans-
porting natural gas. We also manage a wholesale power business. Our operations are located principally in the
United States and are organized into the following reporting segments: Exploration & Production, Gas Pipeline.
Midstream Gas & Liquids (Midstream), and Power. (See Note | of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion of reporting segments.)

Unless indicated otherwise. the following discussion of critical accounting estimates, discussion and analysis
of results of operations and financial condition and liquidity relates to our current continuing operations and should
be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Part Il {tem 8 of this
document.

Overview of 2006

Qur plan for 2006 was focused on continued disciplined growth. Objectives and highlights of this plan
included:

Objectives Highlights

Continuing to improve both EVA® and 2006 segment profit increased $185.8 million to

segment profil. $1,468.3 miilion, which contributed to improving

our EVA®,

Investing in our natural pas businesses in a way that | Total capital expenditures were approximately
improves EVA®, meets customer needs. and $2.5 billion, of which approximately $1.4 billion
enhances our competitive position. was invested in Exploration & Production.
Continuing to increase natural gas production in a Exploration & Production increased its average
responsible and efficient manner. daily production by approximately 21% over last

year and also added 597 billion cubic feet
equivalent in net reserves during 2006. Additionally.
we received 2006 industry awards including
Hydrocarbon Producer of the Year and North
America’s Best Fickd Rejuvenation.

Accelerating additional asset transactions between Williams Partners 1..P. acquired 100 percent of
us and Williams Partners L.P.. our master limited Williams Four Corners LLC for a wtal of
partnership. $1.583 bitlion.

Increasing the scale of our gathering and processing | We invested approximately $257 million in capital
business in key growth basins. expenditures in Midstream including Deepwater
Gulf expansion projects and completing the
expansion of our Opal gas processing facility.

Filing new rates to enable our Gas Pipeline segment | Northwest Pipeline and Transco each filed a general
to create additional value. rate case with the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC).

In January 2007, Northwest Pipeline reached a
settlement in its pending rate case. The setllement is
subject to FERC approval, which is expecied by
mid-2007.




Objectives Highlights

Executing power contracts that reduce risk while During 2006, Power completed several new power
adding new business and strengthening future cash sales contracts that increase the value of the
flow potential. portfolio and provide additional cash-flow certainty

in future pertods. Additionally, in early 2007, Power
executed power sales agreements in southern
California through 2011.

Our 2006 income from continuing operations increased to $332.8 million, as compared to $317.4 million in
2005. Our unet cash provided by operating activities was $1,889.6 million in 2006 compared to $1,449.9 million in
2005. These comparative results reflect the benefit of strong natural gas liquid margins partially offset with
resolution of certain legacy litigation issues. In addition to achieving these results, the following represent
significant actions or events that occurred during the year:

Recent Events

In June 2006, Williams Partners L.P. acquired 25.1 percent of our interest in Williams Four Corners LLC for
$360 million. The acquisition was completed after Williams Partners L.P. successtully closed a $150 million private
debt offering of senior unsecured notes due 2011 and an equity offering of approximately $225 million in net
proceeds. In December 2006, Williams Partners L.P. acquired the remaining 74.9 percent interest in Williams Four
Corners LLC for $1.223 billion. The acquisition was completed after Williams Partners L.P. successfully closed a
$600 million private debt offering of senior unsecured notes due 2017, a private equity offering of approximately
$350 million of common and Class B units, and a public equity offering of approximately $294 million in net
proceeds. The debt and equity issued by Williams Partners L.P. is reported as a component of our consolidated debt
balance and minority interest balance, respectively, Williams Four Comers LLC owns certain gathering, processing
and treating assets in the San Juan Basin in Colorado and New Mexico.

In December 2006, Northwest Pipeline completed and placed into service its capacity replacement project in
the state of Washington. The project involved abandoning 268 miles of 26-inch pipeline and replacing it with
approximately 80 miles of 36-inch pipeline constructed in four sections along the same pipeline corridor.,
Additionally, Northwest Pipeline modified five existing compressor stations and created additional net horsepower.

Northwest Pipeline and Transco have each filed a general rate case with the FERC. Northwest Pipeline reached
a settlement in its pending rate case. The settlement is subject to FERC approval, which is expected by mid-2007.
The new rates for Northwest Pipeline are effective in January 2007, subject to refund. The new rates for Transco are
eXpected to be effective in March 2007, subject to refund. ‘

In April 2006, Transco issued $200 million aggregate principal amount of 6.4 percent senior unsecured notes
due 2016 to certain institutional investors in a private debt placement. In October 2006, Transco completed an offer
to exchange all of these notes for substantially identical notes registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended.

in April 2006, we retired a secured floating-rate term loan for $488.9 million, including outstanding principal
and accrued interest. The loan was due in 2008 and secured by substantially all of the assets of Williams Production
RMT Company. The loan was retired using a combination of cash and revolving credit borrowings.

In May 2006. we replaced our $1.275 billion secured revolving credit facility with a $1.5 billion unsecured
revolving credit facility. The new facility contains similar terms and financial covenants as the secured facility, but
contains certain additional restrictions. (See Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

In May 2006, our Board of Directors approved a regular quarterly dividend of 9 cents per share of common
stock, which reflects an increase of 20 percent compared with the 7.5 cents per share paid in each of the three prior
quarters.

ln June 2006, Northwest Pipeline issued $175 million aggregate principal amount of 7 percent senior
unsecured notes due 2016 to certain institutional investors in a private debt placement. In October 2006, Northwest
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Pipcline completed an offer to exchange all of these notes for substantially identical notes registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

In June 2006, we reached an agreement-in-principle to settle class-action securities litigation filed on behalf of
purchasers of our securities between July 24, 2000, and July 22, 2002, for a total payment of $290 million to
plaintifts. We funded our $145 million portion of the settlement with cash-on-hand in November 2006, with the
balance funded directly by our insurers. We recorded a pre-tax charge for approximately $161 million in second
quarter 2006. This settlement did not have a material effect on our liguidity position. (See Note 15 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.)

On July 31, 2006, and August 1, 2006, we received a verdict in civil litigation related to a contractual dispute
surrounding certain natural gas processing facilities known as Gulf Liquids. We recorded a pre-tax charge for
approximately $88 million in second quarter 2006 related to this loss contingency. (See Note 13 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Our property insurance coverage levels and premiums were revised during the second quarter of 2006. In
general. our coverage levels have decreased while our premiums have increased. These changes reflect general
trends in our industry due to hurricane-related damages in recent years.

In November 2005, we initiated an offer to convert our 5.5 percent junior subordinated convertible debentures
into our common stock. In January 2006, we converted approximately $220.2 million of the debentures in exchange
for 20.2 million shares of common stock, a $25.8 million cash premium, and $1.5 million of accrued interest.
Outlook for 2007

Our plan for 2007 is focused on coatinued disciplined growth. Objectives of this plan include:

« Continue to improve both EVA® and segment profit.

« Invest in our natural gas businesses in a way that improves EVA®, meets customer needs, and enhances our
compeltitive position.

« Continue to increase natural gas production and reserves.

Increase the scale of our gathering and processing business in key growth basins.
« Successfully resolving the rate cases for both Northwest Pipeline and Transco.

+ Execute power contracts that offset a significant percentage of our financial obligations associated with
our tolling agreements.

Potential risks and/or obstacles that could prevent us from achieving these objectives include:
» Volatility of commedity prices;

« Lower than expected levels of cash flow from operations;

Decreased drilling success at Exploration & Production;

+ Exposure associated with our efforts to resolve regulatory and litigation issues (see Note 15 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements);

+ General economic and industry downturn.

We continue to address these risks through utilization of commodity hedging strategies, focused efforts to
resolve regulatory issues and litigation claims, disciplined investment strategies, and maintaining our desired level
of at least $1 billion in liquidity from cash and revolving credit facilities.

39




New Accounting Standards and Emerging Issues

Accounting standards that have been issued and are not yet effective may have a material effect on our
Consolidated Financial Statements in the future. These include:

* SFAS No. 157 “Fair Value Measurements™ (SFAS 157). The effective date for this Statement is for fiscal
vears beginning after November 15, 2007, We will assess the impact on our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

* FASB Interpretation No. 48 “Accounting for Uncentainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109" (FIN 48).

FIN 48 prescribes guidance for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. To recognize a tax position, the enterprise determines whether it is more likely
than not that the tax position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or
litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. A tax position that meets the more likely than not
recognition threshold is measured to determine the amount of berefit to recognize in the financial statements. The
tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit. determined on a cumulative probability basis, that is
greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement.

We adopted FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007. The cumulative effect of applying the Interpretation will be reported
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. The net impact of the cumulative effect of adopting
FIN 48 is expected 10 be in the range of a $10 million to $20 million decrease in retained carnings.

See Recent Accounting Standards in Note | of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information on these and other recently issued accounting standards,

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of tinancial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts therein. We have discussed the
following accounting estimates and assumptions as well as related disclosures with our Audit Committee. We
believe thut the nature of these estimates and assumptions is material due to the subjectivity and judgment
necessary, or the susceptibility of such matters to change, und the impact of these on our financial condition or
results of operations.

Revenute Recognition — Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We hold a substantial portfolio of energy trading and nontrading contracts for a variety of purposes. We review
these contracts 1o determine whether they are nonderivatives or derivatives. If they are derivatives, we further assess
whether the contracts qualify for either cash flow hedge accounting or the normal purchases and normal sales
exception.

The determination of whether a derivative contract qualifies as a cash flow hedge includes an analysis of
historical market price information to assess whether the derivative is expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting cash flows attributed to the hedged risk. We also assess whether the hedged forecasted transaction is
probable of occurring. This assessment requires us to exercise judgment and consider a wide variety of factors in
addition to our intent, including internal and external forecasts, historical experience, changing market and business
conditions, our financial and operational ability to carry out the torecasted transaction, the length of time until the
forecasted transaction is projected to occur, and the quantity of the forecasted transaction. In addition, we compare
actual cash flows to those that were expected from the underlying risk. If a hedged forecasted transaction is not
probable of occurring, or if the derivative contract is not expected to be highly effective, the derivative does not
qualify for hedge accounting.

For derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges. we do not reflect changes in their fair value in earnings
until the associated hedged item affects earnings. For those that have not been designated as hedges or do not qualify
{for hedge accounting, we recognize the net change in their fair value in income currently (marked to market).
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For derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges. we prospectively discontinue hedge accounting and
recognize future changes in fair value directly in earnings if we no longer expect the hedge to be highly effective, or
if we believe that the hedged forecasted transaction is no longer probable of occurring. If the torecasted transaction
becomes probable of not occurring, we must also reclass amounts previously recorded in other comprehensive
income into earnings in addition to prospectively discontinuing hedge accounting. If the effectiveness of the
derivative improves and is again expected to be highly cffective in offsetting cash flows attributed to the hedged risk,
or if the forecasted transaction again becomes probable, we may prospectively re-designate the derivative as a hedge
of the underlying risk.

Derivatives for which the normal purchases and normal sales exception has been elected are accounted for on
an acerual basis. In determining whether a derivative is eligible for this exception, we assess whether the contract
provides for the purchase or sale of a commodity that will be physically delivered in quantities expected to be used
or sold over a reasonable period in the normal course of business. In making this assessment, we consider numerous
factors, including the quantities provided under the contract in relation to our business needs, delivery locations per
the contract in relation to our operating locations, duration of time between entering the contract and delivery, past
rends and expected future demand, and our past practices and customs with regard to such contracts. Additionally,
we assess whether it is probable that the contract will result in physical delivery of the commodity and not net
financial settlement.

The fair value of derivative contracts is determined based on the nature of the transaction and the market in
which transactions are executed. We also incorporate assumptions and judgments about counterparty pertormance
and credit considerations in our determination of their fair value. Contracts are executed in the following
environments:

* Organized commodity exchange or over-the-counter markets with quoted prices;

+ Organized commodity exchange or over-the-counter markets with quoted market prices but limited price
transparency, requiring increased judgment to determine fair value;

« Markets without quoted market prices.

The number of transactions executed without quoted market prices is limited. We estimate the fair value of
these contracts by using readily available price quotes in similar markets and other market analyses. The fair value
of all derivative contracts is continually subject to change as the underlying commuodity market changes and our
assumptions and judgments change.

Additional discussion of the accounting for energy contracts at fair value is included in Energy Trading
Activities within Iiem 7 and Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

0il- and Gas-Producing Activities

We use the successful efforts method of accounting for our oil- and gas-producing activities. Estimated natural
gus and oil reserves and forward market prices for oil and gas are a significant part of our financial calculations.
Following are examples of how these estimates affect financial results:

» An increase (decrease) in estimated proved oil and gas reserves can reduce (increase) our unit-of-pro-
duction depreciation. depletion and amortization rates.

» Changes in oil and gas reserves and forward market prices both impact projected future cash flows from our oil
and gas properties. This, in turm, can impact our periodic impairment analyses, including that for goodwill.

The process of estimating natural gas and oil reserves is very complex, requiring significant judgment in the
evaluation of all available geological, geophysical. engineering, and economic data. After being estimated
internally. 99.9 percent of our reserve estimates are either audited or prepared by independent experts. The data
may change substantially over time as a result of numerous factors, including additional development activity.
evolving production history, and a continual reassessment of the viability of production under changing economic
conditions. As a result, material revisions to existing reserve estimates could occur from time to time. A revision of
our reserve estimates within reasonably likely parameters is not expected to result in an impairment of our oil and

41




pas properties or goodwill. However, reserve estimate revisions would impact our depreciation and depletion
expense prospectively. For exainple, a change of approximatety 10 percent in oil and gas reserves for each basin
would change our annual depreciation, depletion and amortization expense between approximately $25 million and
331 million. The actual impact would depend on the specific basins impacted and whether the change resulted from
proved developed, proved undeveloped or a combination of these reserve categories,

Forward market prices, which are utilized in our impairment analyses. include estimates of prices for periods that
extend beyond those with quoted market prices. This forwurd market price information is consistent with that
generally used in evaluating our drilling decisions and acquisition plans. These market prices for future periods impact
the production economics underlying oil and gas reserve estimates, The prices of natural gas and oil are volatile and
change from period to period, thus impacting our estimates. An unfavorable change in the forward price curve within
reasonably likely parameters is not expected to result in an impairment of our oil and gas properties or goodwill.

Contingent Liabilities

We record liabilities for estimated loss contingencies, including environmental matters, when we assess that a
loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Revisions to contingent liabilities are
retlected in income in the period in which new or different facts or information become known or circumstances
change that affect the previous assumptions with respect 1o the likelihood or amount of loss. Liabilities for
contingent losses are based upon our assumptions und estimates and upon advice of legal counsel, engineers, or
other third parties regarding the probable outcomes of the matter. As new developments occur or more information
becomes avatlable, our assumptions and estimates of these liabilities may change. Changes in our assumptions and
estimates or outcomes different from our current assumptions and estimates could materially affect {uture results of
operations for any particular quarterly or annual period. See Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets and Tax Contingencies

We have deferred tax assets resulting from certain investments and businesses that have a tax basis in excess of
the book basis and from tax carry-forwards generated in the current and prior years. We must evaluate whether we
will ultimately realize these tax benefits and establish a valuation allowance for those that may not be realizable.
This evaluation considers tax planning strategies, including assumptions about the availability and character of
future taxable income. At December 31, 2006, we have approximately $926 million of deferred tax assets for which
a $36 million valuation allowance has been established. When assessing the need for a valuation allowance, we
considered forecasts of future company performance, the estimated impact of potential asset dispositions and our
ability and intent to execute tax planning strategies to utilize tax carryovers. Based on our projections. we believe
that it is probable that we can utilize our year-end 2006 federal tax net operating losses carryovers and charitable
contribution carryovers prior 1o their expiration. We do not expect to be able 10 utilize $36 million of foreign
deferred tax assets related to carryovers. See Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information regarding the tax carryovers. The ultimate amount of deferred tax assets realized could be materially
different from those recorded. as influenced by potential changes in jurisdictional income tax laws and the
circumstances surrounding the actual realization of related tax assets.

We regularly face challenges from domestic and foreign tax authorities regarding the amount of taxes due.
These challenges include questions regarding the timing and amount of deductions and the allocation of income
among various tax junsdictions. In evaluating the liability associated with our various filing positions, we record a
liability for probable tax contingencies. The ultimate disposition of these contingencies could have a significant
impact on net cash flows. To the extent we were to prevail in matters for which uccruals have been established or
were required to pay amounts in excess of our accrued liability, our effective tax rate in a given financial statement
period may be materially impacted.

Pension and Postretirement Obligations

We have employee benefit plans that include pension and other postretirement benetits. Pension and other
postretirement benefit plan expense and obligations are calculated by a third-party actuary and are impacted by
various estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions include the expected long-term rates of return
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on plan assets, discount rates. expected raie of compensation increase, health care cost trend rates, and employec
demographics, including retirement age and mortality. These assumptions are reviewed annually and adjustments
are made as needed. The assumptions utilized to compute expense and the benefit obligations are shown in Note 7 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The following table presents the estimated increase (decrease) in
pension and other postretirement benefit expense and obligations resulting from a one-percentage-point change in
the specified assumption.

Benefit Expense Benefit Obligation
One-Percentage- (Ome-Percentage- One-Percentage- One-Percentage-
Point Increase Point Decrcase Point Increase Point Decrease
{Millions)
Pension benefits:
DiSCOUNt TAtE . . .. oo v i e e mvaas $(12) $14 3(129) 3151
Expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets. .. ... e (10) 10 —- —
Rate of compensation increase. ... ... 2 (2) 14 (13)
Other postretircment benefits:
Discountrate .........««.cc.ou.n H 1 41) 47
Expected long-term rate of return on
planassets. .. ..., ... (2) 2 — —
Assumed health care cost trend rate . . . 6 (5) 61 (48)

The expected long-term rates of return on plan assets are determined by combining a review af historical
returns realized within the portfolio. the investment strategy included in the plans’ Investment Policy Statement, and
the capital market projections provided by our independent investment consultant for the asset classifications in
which the portfolio is invested as well as the target weightings of each asset classification. These rates are impacted
by changes in general market conditions, but because they are long-term in nature, short-term market swings do not
significantly impact the rates. Changes to our target asset allocation would also impact these rates. Our expected
long-term rate of return on plan assets used for our pension plans is 7.75 percent for 2006 and was 8.5 percent from
2002-2005. Over the past ten years, our actual average return on plan assets for our pension plans has been
approximately 7.9 percent.

The discount rates are used to discount future benefit cash flows to today’s dollars. Decreases in these rates
increase the obligation and, generally, increase the related expense. The discount rates for our pension and other
postretirement benefit plans were determined separately based on an approach specific to our plans and their
respective expected benefit cash flows as described in Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Our
discount rate assumptions are impacted by changes in general economic and market conditions that affect interest
rates on long-term high-quality corporate bonds.

The expected rate of compensation increase represents average long-term salary increases. An increase in this
rate causes pension obligation and expense to increase.

The assumed health care cost trend rates are based on our actual historical cost rates that are adjusted for
expected changes in the health care industry.
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Results of Operations
C’onsafidated Overview

The following table and discussion is a summary of our consolidated results of operations for the three years
ended December 31. 2006. The results of operations by segment are discussed in further detail following this
consolidated overview discussion.

Yeurs ended December 31,

$ Change % Change $ Change % Change
from from frum from
2006 2005(1) 2005(1) 2005 2004(1) 2004(1) 2004
(Millions) (Millions) (Millions)
Revenues . ........... ... ... ... ..... Si1.8129 §-770.7 —6% §$12,583.6 $+1223 +1% $12.461.3
Costs and expenses:
Costs and operating expenses . ... .... .. 99736 +8974 +3% 108710 —1193 —-1% 10,7517
Selling, general and adminisirative
CXPEMSES . ..ot 4492  —1238 —38% 3254 +30.1 - +8% 355.5
Other (income) expense —nel, , .. ...... 20.7 +40.5 +66% 6F2 —1128 NM (51.6)
General corporate expenses . . ... ... .. .. 1321 +13.4 +9% 145.5 =257  ~21% 119.8
Securities litigation settlement and refated -
COSES . o Lo e i _ 1673 -—1579 NM 94 ~94 NM -
Total costs and expenses. . . ........... 10,742.9 11,412.5 . 11,1754
Operating income .. .................. 1,070.0 . 1LI71.1 1.285.9
Interest accrued —net .. .. ... ... ... .. (658.9) +3.6 +1% (664.5) +163.2 +20% (827.7)
Investing income . . . ................ .. 1730 +1493 NM 23.7 243  -51% 48.0
Early debt retirement costs . ... ........... 314y -31.0 NM . (4) +281.7 +100% (282.1)
Minority interest in income of consoelidated ‘
subsidiaries . . ... ... . L 400y —-143 -56% (25.7) -43  —-20% (21.4)
Other income —net. .. ................ 26.4 -0.7 -3% 27.1 +53 +24% 21.8
Inceme from continuing operations before
income taxes and cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle ... ... ... 539.1 531.3 224.5
Provision for income taxes . .. ........ ... 206.3 +71.6° +4% 213.9 —82.6 —63% 1313
Income from continuing operations . .. .. ... 3328 3174 93.2
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . 243y =222 NM 2.1y -726 NM 70.5
Income betore cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle . ... ... L. L. L 308.5 3153 163.7
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle . .. . ... ... ... — +1.7  +100% (1.7) —1.7 NM —
Netincome. ............ ... ... ..... $ 3085 $ 3136 ° $ 1637
(1) +=Favorable change to net income; — = Unfavorable change to ner income; NM = A percentage calculation is

not meaningful due to change in signs, a zero-value denominator or a percentage change greater than 200.

2006 vs. 2005

The decrease in revenues is primarily due to lower power and natural gas realized revenues at Power. These
revenues declined due to lower sales volumes associated with reducing the scope of our trading activities and lower
natural gas sales prices. Partially offsetting these decreases are increased crude, olefin and natural gas liquid (NGL)
marketing revenues and higher NGL production revenue at Midstream and increased production revenue at
Exploration & Production.

The decrease in costs and operating expenses is largely due to decreased power purchase volumes and reduced
natural gas purchase prices at Power. Partially offsetting these decreases are increased crude, olefin and NGL
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marketing purchases and operating expenses at Midstream and increased depreciation, depletion and amortization
and lease operating expense at Exploration & Production.

The increase in selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses is primarily due 10 increased personnel
costs, insurance expense, higher information systems support costs and the absence of a $17.1 million reduction of
pension expense at Gas Pipeline in 2005. Additionally, Exploration & Production experienced higher costs due to
increased staffing in support of increased drilling and operational activity.

Other (income) expense — net within operating income in 2006 includes:
« A $72.7 million accrual for a Gulf Liquids litigation contingency;

+ Income of $12.7 million due to reducing contingent obligations associated with our former distributive
power generation business at Power;

« Tncome of $9 million due to a settlement of an international contract dispute at Midstream:
Other (income) expense — net within operating income in 2005 includes:

« An $82.2 million accrual for litigation contingencies at Power, associated primarily with agreements
reached to substantially resolve exposure related to certain natural gas price and volume reporting issues;

« Gains totaling $29.6 million on the sale of certain natural gas properties at Exploration & Production,;
« A gain of $9 million on a sale of land in our Other segment.

General corporate expenses decreased primarily due to the absence of $13.8 million of insurance settlement
charges in 2005 associated with certain insurance coverage allocation issues.

The securities litigation settlement and related costs is the result of settling class-action securities litigation
filed on behalf of purchasers of our securities between July 24, 2000 and July 22, 2002,

Interest accrued — net in 2006 includes $22 million in interest expense associated with our Gulf Liquids
litigation contingency.

‘The increase in investing income is due to:

The absence of an $87.2 million impairment in 2005 on our investment in Longhorn Partners Pipeline,
L.P. (Longhorn);

The absence of a $23 million impairment in 2005 of our Aux Sable Liquid Products, L.P. {Aux Sable)
equily investment;

An approximate $37 million increase in interest income primarily associated with increased earnings on
cash and cash equivalent balances associated with higher rates of return;

Increased equity earnings of $33.3 million due largely to the absence of equity losses in 2006 on Longhorn
and increased earnings of our Discovery Producer Services LLC (Discovery) and Aux Sable investments;

These increases are partially otfset by:
« A $16.4 million impairment of a Venezuelan cost-based investment at Exploration & Production;

+ The absence of an $8.6 million gain on sale of our remaining Mid-America Pipeline (MAPL)} and
Seminole Pipeline (Seminole) investments at Midstream in 2005.

Early debt retirement costs in 2006 includes $25.8 million in premiums and $1.2 million in fees related to the
January 2006 debt conversion and $4.4 million of accelerated amortization of debt expenses related to the
retirement of the debt secured by assets of Williams Production RMT Company.

The increase in minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries is primarily due to the growth of
Wiltiams Partners L.P,, our consolidated master limited partnership.
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Provision for income taxes changed favorably during the year. The effective income tax rate for 2006 is slightly
higher than the federal statutory rate primarily due to state income taxes, the effect of taxes on forcign operations,
nondeductible convertible debenture expenses and an accrual for income tax contingencies. partially offset by the
favorable resolution of federal income tax litigation and the utilization of charitable contribution carryovers not
previously benefited. The 2006 effective income tax rate has been increased by an adjustment to increase overall
deferred income tax liabilities. The effective income tax rate for 2005 is higher than the federal statutory rate due
primarily to state income taxes, nondeductible expenses, the effect of taxes on foreign operations and the inability to
utilize charitable contribution carryovers. The 2005 effective income tax rate was reduced by an adjustment to
reduce overall deferred income tax liabilities and favorable settlements on federal and stale income tax matters.
(See Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. )

Income (loss) from discontinued operations in 2006 includes:
« An $11.9 million net-of-tax litigation settlement related to our former chemical feriilizer business:

* A $3.7 million net-of-tax charge associated with the settlement of a loss contingency related to a former
explorition business;

* A 39.1 million net-of-tax charge associated with an oil purchase contract related to our former Alaska
rcfinery,

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle in 2005 is due to the implementation of FIN 47, (See
Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. )

20035 vs. 2004

The increase in revenues is due primarily to increased revenues at Exploration & Production due to higher
natural gas prices and production volumes sold and gas management income, and at Midstream due primarily to
increased NGL prices and crude marketing revenue. Partially offsetting these increases is decrcased revenue at
Power duc primarily to the absence of crude and refined products activity and reduced net forward unrealized
mark-to-market gains.

The increase in costs and operating expenses is due primarily to increased crude marketing costs and increased
NGL costs at Midstream in addition to increased depreciation, depletion and amortization and gas management
expense at Exploration & Production. Partially offsetting these increases are decreased costs at Power primarily due
to the absence of crude and refined products activity.

The decrease in SG&A expenses is primarily due to the $17.1 million reduction in expenses at Gas Pipeline to
record the cumulative impact of a correction to pension expense attributable to the periods 2003 and 2004 and a $9.7
reduction of bad debt expense a1 Power resulting from the sale of certain receivables to a third party. Partialiy
offsenting these items is increased staffing costs at Exploration & Production in support of increased operational
drilling activity.

Other (income) expense — net, within operating income, in 2004 includes:
+ Income of $93.6 million from an insurance arbitration award associated with Gulf Liquids at Midstream;

+» Gains of $16.2 million from the sale of Exploration & Production’s securities, invested in a coal seam
royally trust, that were purchased for resale;

» A $9.5 million gain on the sale of Louisiana olefins assets at Midstream;

* A $15.4 million loss provision related to an ownership dispute on prior period production included at
Exploration & Production:

= An $11.8 million environmental expense accrual related to the Augusta refinery tacility included in our
Other segment;

* A $9 million write-off of previously capitalized costs on an idled segment of Northwest Pipeline’s system
included at Gas Pipeline.
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The increase in general corporate expenses is due primarily to the $13.8 million of expense related to the
settlement of certain insurance coverage issues and a $16 million increase in outside legal costs associated primarily
with securities class action matters.

The decrease in interest accrued — net is due primarily to lower average borrowing levels in 2005 as compared
to 2004.

The decrease in investing income is due primarily to a $76.4 increase in impairment charges on our investment
in Longhorn, a $13.9 million increase in Longhorn equity losses, and the $23 million impairment of our Aux Sable
equity investment. Partially offsetting these decreases are the following increases:

* A $30.4 million increase in domestic and international equity earnings, excluding Longhorn and Aux
Sable;

¢ The absence in 2005 of a $20.8 million impairment of an international cost-based investment;

» The absence tn 2005 of a $16.9 million impairment of our Discovery equity investment;

The $8.6 million gain on the sale of our remaining interests in the MAPL and Seminole assets;
» The absence in 2005 of & $6.5 million Longhorn recapitalization fee.
Early debr retirement costs include premiums, fees and expenses related to the retirement of debt.

Provision for income taxes changed unfavorably primarily due to increased pre-tax income in 2005 as
compared to 2004. The effective income tax rate for 2005 is higher than the federal statutory rate due primarily to
state income taxes, nondeductible expenses, the effect of taxes on foreign operations and the inability to utilize
charitable contribution carryovers. The 2005 effective income tax rate has been reduced by an adjustment to reduce
the overall deferred income tax liabilities and favorable settlements on federal and state income tax matters. The
effective income tax rate for 2004 is higher than the federal statutory rate due primarily to state income taxes, a
charge associated with charitable contribution carryovers and the effect of taxes on foreign operations. A 2004
accrual for income tax contingencies was offset by favorable settlements of certain federal and state income tax
matlers. (See Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

{ncome (loss) from discontinued operations in 2004 is comprised of gains on the sales of the Canadian straddle
plants and the Alaska refinery of $189.8 million and $3.6 million, respectively, as well as $22 million in income
from our Canadian straddles discontinued operation. Partially offsetting these are 3153 million of charges to
increase our accrued liability associated with certain Quality Bank litigation matters.
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Results of Operations — Segments

We are currently organized into the following segments: Exploration & Production, Gas Pipeline, Midstream,
Power. and Other. Other primarily consists of corporate operations. Our management currently evaluates performance
based on segment profil (loss) from operations. (See Note 17 of Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements.)’

Exploration & Production
Overview of 2006

In 2006, we focused on our objective to rapidly expand development of our drilling inventory. This resulted in
significant growth as evidenced by the following accomplishments:

» We increased average daily domestic production levels by approximately 23 percent over last year,
surpassing our goal of 135 to 20 percent. The average daily domestic production was approximately
752 million cubic feet of gas equivalent (MMcfe} compared to 612 MMcfe in 2005. The increased
production is primarily due to incrcased development within the Piceance and Powder River basins.

Domestic Production
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2006 domestic production grew 23 percent or 140 MMcfe per day over 2005

« We continued to increase our development drilling program during 2006. We drilled 1,783 gross wells in
2006 compared to 1,627 in 2005. This contributed to the addition of 597 billion cubic feet equivalent
(Bcfe) in net reserves — a replacement rate for our domestic production of 216 percent in 2006 compared
1o 277 percent in 2005. Capital expenditures for domestic drilling, development, gathering facilities and
acquisition activity in 2006 were approximately $1.4 billion compared to approximately $768 million in
2005.

The benefit of higher production volumes to operating results was more than offset by the downward trending
of natural gas market prices during the year and increased operating costs. The increase in operating costs reflects an
increase in our production volumes combined with a general industry condition of greater demand for services and
products as production activities increase in our key basins.

Significant events

At December 31. 2006. all ten new state-of-the-art FlexRig4® drilling rigs have been placed into service
pursuant to our fease agreement with Helmerich & Payne. The March 2005 contract provided for the operation of
the drilling rigs. cach for a primary lease term of three years. This arrangement supports our continuing objective to
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accelerate the pace of natural gas development in the Piceance basin through both deployment of the additional rigs
and through the drilling and operational efficiencies of the new rigs.

In 2006, we increased our position in the Fort Worth basin by acquiring producing properties and undeveloped
leasehold interests for approximately $64 million. These acquisitions increased our diversification into the Mid-
Continent region and will allow us to use our horizontal drilling expertise to develop wells in the Barnett Shale
formation.

Outlook for 2007
Our expectations and objectives for 2007 include:

+ Maintaining our development drilling program in our key basins of Piceance, Powder River, San Juan,
Arkoma, and Fort Worth through planned capital expenditures of $1.3 to $1.4 billion.

» Continuing to grow our domestic average daily production level with a goal of 10 to 20 percent annual
growth.

Approximately 172 MMcfe, or 18 percent, of our forecasted 2007 daily production is hedged by NYMEX and
basis fixed price contracts at prices that average $3.90 per Mcfe at a basin level. In addition, we have collar
agreements for each month in 2007 as follows:

= NYMEX collar agreement for approximately 15 MMcfe per day at a weighted-average floor price of
$6.50 per Mcfe and a weighted-average ceiling price of $8.25 per Mcfe.

= Northwest Pipeline/Rockies collar agreement for approximately 50 MMcfe per day at a floor price of
$5.65 per Mcfe and a ceiling price of $7.45 per Mcfe at a basin level.

« El Paso/San Juan collar agreements totaling approximately 130 MMcfe per day at a weighted average
floor price of $5.98 per Mcfe and a weighted average ceiling price of $9.63 per Mcfe at a basin level.

= Mid-Continent {PEPL) cotlar agreements totaliﬁg approximately 75 MMcfe per day at a weighted average
floor price of $6.82 per Mcfe and a weighted average ceiling price of $10.80 per Mcfe at a basin level.

We have recently entered into a five-year unsecured credit agreement with certain banks in order to reduce
margin requirements related to our hedging activities as well as lower transaction fees. Margin requirements, if any.
under this new facility are dependent on the level of hedging and on natural gas reserves value.

Additional risks to achieving our expectations include weather conditions at certain of our locations during the
first and fourth quarters of 2007, drilling rig availability, obtaining permits as planned for drilling. and market price
movements, :

Year-Over-Year Operating Results
Years Ended December 31,

2000 2005 2004

(Millions)
Segment rEVENUES . . o v\ttt it et e e e e $1.487.6  $1.269.1 %7776
Segment profit. . .. ... oooo ... I $ 5515 $ 587.2  $235.8

2006 vs. 2005
Total segment revenues increased $218.5 million, or 17 percent, primarily due to the following:

« $165 million, or 15 percent, increase in domestic production revenues reflecting $245 miltion primarily
associated with a 23 percent increase in natural gas production volumes sold, offset by a decrease of
$80 million associated with a 6 percent decrease in net realized average prices. The increase in produciion
volumes is primarily from the Piceance and Powder River basins and the decrease in prices reflects the
downward trending of market prices in the latter part of 2006.
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» $10 million increase in production revenues from our international operations primarily due to increases
in net realized average prices for crude oil production volumes sold.

+ $14 million of net unrealized gains in 2006 from hedge ineffectiveness and forward mark-to-market gains
on certain basis swaps not designated as hedges as compared to $10 million in net unrealized losses
attributable to hedge ineffectiveness from NYMEX collars in 2005.

To manage the commodity price risk and volatility of owning producing gas properties, we enter into derivative
sales contracts that fix the sales price relating to a portion of our future production. Approximately 40 percent of
domestic production in 2006 was hedged by NYMEX and basis fixed price contracts at a weighted average price of
$3.82 per Mcfe at a basin level compared to 47 percent hedged at a weighted average price of $3.99 per Mcfe in
2005. In addition, approximately 15 percent of domestic production was hedged by the following collar agreements
in 2006: '

« NYMEX collar agreement for approximately 49 MMcfe per day at a floor price of $6.50 per Mcfe and a
ceiling price of $8.25 per Mcfe. '

» NYMEX collar agreement for approximately 15 MMcfe per day at a floor price of $7.00 per Mcfe and a
ceiling price of $9.00 per Mcfe.

« Northwest Pipeline/Rockies collar agreement for approximately 50 MMcfe per day at a floor price of
$6.05 per Mcfe and a ceiling price of $7.90 per Mcfe at a basin level.

In 2005, approximately 10 percent of domestic production was hedged by a NYMEX collar agreement for
approximately 50 MMcfe per day at a floor price of $7.50 per Mcfe and a ceiling price of $10.49 per Mcfe in the first
quarter and at a floor price of $6.75 per Mcfe and a ceiling price of $8.50 per Mcfe in the second, third, and fourth
quarters, and a Northwest Pipeline/Rockies collar agreement for approxnmalely 50 MMcfe per day in the fourth
guarter at a floor price of $6.10 per Mcfe and a ceiling price of $7.70 per Mcfe.

Our hedges are executed with our Power segment, which, in turn, executes offsetting derivative contracts with
unrelated third parties. Generally, Power bears the counterparty performance risks associated with unrelated third
parties. Hedging decisions are made considering our overall commodity risk exposure and are not executed
independently by Exploration & Production.

Total costs and expenses increased $257 mllllon primarily due to the followmg

« $107 million higher depreciation, depletion and amortization expense primarily due to higher production
volumes and increased capitalized drilling costs;

» $54 million higher lease operating expense primarily due to the increased number of producing wells and
higher well service and industry costs due to increased demand and approximately $6 million for
out-of-period expenses related to 2005. Qur management has concluded that the effect of this item is not
material to our consolidated results for 2006, or prior periods, or to our trend of earnings;

= $19 million higher operating taxes primarily due to higher production volumes sold and increased tax
rates;

« $33 million higher selling, general and administrative expenses primarily due to higher compensation for
additional staffing in support of increased drilling and operational activity. In addition, we incurred higher
legal. insurance, and information technology support costs related to the increased activity;

» The absence in 2006 of $29.6 million of gains on the sales of properties in 2005.

The $35.7 million decrease in segment profit is primarily due to lower net realized average prices and higher
costs and expenses as discussed previously, and the absence in 2006 of $29.6 million of gains on the sales of
properties in 2005. Partially offsetting these decreases are a 23 percent increase in domestic production volumes
sold and an increase in income from ineffectiveness and forward mark-to-market gains. Segment profit also includes
an $8 million increase in our international operations primarily due to higher revenue and equity earnings as a result
of increases in net realized average prices for crude oil production volumes sold.
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2005 vs. 2004

The $491.5 million. or 63 percent increase in s ern nt revernies is primarily due to an increase in domestic
production revenues of $434 million during 2005 retlecting higher net realized average prices and higher
production volumes sold. Also contributing to the increase is a 358 million increase in revenues from gas
management activities, offset in costs and expenses, and 513 million increased production revenues from our
international operations. Partially offsetting these increase. s %10 million in net unrealized losses attributable to
NYMEX collars from hedge ineffectiveness.

The increase in domestic production revenues primarily results from $319 million higher revenues associated
with a 42 percent increase in net realized average prices for production sold as well as a $115 million increase
associated with an 18 percent increase in average daily preduction volumes. The higher net realized average prices
reflect the benefit of the lower volumes hedged in 2005 as compared to 2004 coupled with higher market prices for
natural gas in 2005, The increase in production velumes primarily reflects an increase in the number of producing
wells resulting from our successful 2005 drilling program.

Approxumately 77 percent of doniestic production in 2004 was hedged at a weighted average price of $3.65 per
Mcfle at a basin level.

Total costs and expenses increased $147 million, primarily due to the following:

+ $62 million higher depreciation, depletion and amortization expense primarily due to higher production
volumes and increased capitalized drilling costs;

+ %16 million higher lease operating expense from the increased number of producing wells and generaily
higher industry costs;

« $23 million higher operating taxes primarily due to increased market prices and production volumes sold;

+ $18 million higher selling, general and administrative expenses primarily due to higher compensation and
increased staffing in 2005 in support of increased drilling and operational activity;

« $58 million higher gas management expenses associated with higher revenues from gas management
activities, offset in segment revenues;

* $11 million lower gain in 2005 than in 2004 on the sale of securities associated with our coal seam royalty
trust that were previously purchased for resale.

These increased costs and expenses are partially offset by the absence in 2005 of a $15.4 million loss provision
related to an ownership dispute on prior period production in 200 1, a $7.9 million gain on the sale of an undeveloped
leasehold position in Colorado in the first quarter of 2005, and a $21.7 million gain on the sale of certain outside
operated properties in the Powder River basin area of Wyoming in the third quarter of 2003,

The $351.4 million increase in segment profit is primarily due to increased revenues from higher volumes and
higher net realized average prices, as well as the gains on sales of assets, partially offset by higher expenses as
discussed above. Segment profit also includes a $19 million increase in our international operations refleciing higher
revenue and equity earnings resulting from higher net sealized oil and gas prices,

Gas Pipeline

Overview

We operate, through our Northwest Pipeline and "rant ~o subsidiaries, approximately 14,400 miles of pipeline
from the Gulf Coast to the northeast United States and fion northern New Mexico to the Pacific Northwest with a
total annual throughput of approximately 2,500 trillion 8TEs. Additionally, we hold a 50 percent interest in
Gulfstream Natural Gas System, L.L.C. (Gulfstream). This asset, which extends from the Mobile Bay area in
Alabazma to markets in Florida, has current transportation capacity of 1.1 MMdt/d.

Our strategy to create value for our shareholders focuses on maximizing the utilization of our pipeline capacity
by providing high quality, low cost transportation of natural gas to large and growing markets,
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Gas Pipeline’s interstate transmission and storage activities are subject to regulation by the FERC and as such,
our rates and charges for the transportation of natural gas in interstate commerce, and the extension, expansion or
abandonment of jurisdictional facilities and accounting. among other things, are subject to regulation. The rates are
established through the FERC's ratemaking process. Changes in commodity prices and volumes transported have
little impact on revenues because the majority of cost of service is recovered through firm capacity reservation
charges in transportation rates.

Significant events of 2000 include:

Filing of rate cases

During 2006, Northwest Pipeline and Transco each filed general rate cases with the FERC for increases in rates
due to higher costs in recent years. The new rutes are cffective, subject to refund, in January 2007 for Northwest
Pipeline and in March 2007 for Transco. We expect the new rates to result in significantly higher revenues.

In January 2007, Northwest Pipeline reached 2 settlement in its pending rate case. The settlement is subject 10
FERC approval, which is expected by mid-2007.

Gulfstream

fn March 2006, our equity method investee, Guifstream, announced a new long-term agreement with a Florida
utility company, which fully subscribed the pipeline’s mainline capacity on a long-term basis. Under the agreement,
Gulfstream will extend its existing pipeline approximately 35 miles within Florida. The agreement is subject to the
approval of various authorities. Construction of the extension is anticipated to begin in early 2008 with a targeted
completion of summer 2008.

In May 2006, Gulfstream announced a new agreement to provide 155 Mdt/d of natural gas to a Florida utility.
In December 2006, Gulfstream filed an application with the FERC seeking approval to expand its pipeline system 1o
provide the additional capacity. Under this agreement, Gulfstream will constnict approximately 17.5 miles of
20 inch pipeline and the installation of a new compressor facility. If approved, all of the facilities will be placed into
service by January 2009.

Parachute Lareral project

In August 2006, we received FERC approval to construct @ 37.6-mile expansion that will provide additional
natural gas transportation capacity in northwest Colorado. The planned expansion will increase capacity by
450 Mdt/d through the 30-inch diameter line and is estimated to cost approximately $86 million. The expansion is
expected to be in service in March 2007. :

Grays Harbor

Effective January 2005, Duke Energy Trading and Marketing, LLC (Duke) terminated its firm transportation
agreement related (o Northwest Pipeline’s Grays Harbor lateral. In January 2005, Duke paid Northwest Pipeline
$94 million for the remaining book value of the asset and the related income taxes. We and Duke have not agreed on
the amount of the income taxes due Northwest Pipeline as a result of the contract termination. We have deferred the
%6 million difference between the proceeds and net book value of the lateral pending resolution of the disputed early
termination abiigation,

On June 16. 2005. we filed a Petition for a Declaratory Order with the FERC requesting that it rule on our
interpretation of our tariff to aid in resolving the dispute with Duke. On July 15, 2005, Duke filed a motion to
intervene and provided comments supporting its position concerning the issues in dispute.

On Qctober 4, 2006, the FERC issued its Order on Petition for Declaratory Order. providing clarification on
issues relating to Duke’s obligation to reimburse us for future tax expenses. We reviewed the Order and filed
request for rehearing requesting further clarification of certain items. Based upon the order, as written. we do not
anticipate any adverse impact to our results of operations or financial position.
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Nortinwest Pipeline capacitv replacement project

In September 2003, we received FERC approval to construct and operate approximately 80 miles of 36-inch
pipeline loop as a replacement for most of the capacity previously served by 268 miles of 26-inch pipeline in the
Washington state area. The capacity replacement as well as the abandonment of the old capacity was completed in
December 2006. In addition to the capacity replacement. five existing compressor stations were modified, and we
increased net horsepower,

Outlook for 2007
Leidv to Long Island expansion project

In May 2006, we received FERC approval to expand Transco’s natural gas pipeline in the northeast United
States. The estimated cost of the project is approximately $141 million with three-quarters of that spending
expected to occur in 2007. The expansion will provide 100 Mdt/d of incremental firm capacity and is expected to be
in service by November 2007.

Potomdac expansion project

~In July 2006, we filed an application with the FERC to expand Transco’s existing facilities in the Mid-Atlantic
region of the United States by constructing 16.5 miles of 42-inch pipeline. The project will provide 165 Mdi/d of
incremental firm capacity. The estimated cost of the project is approximately $74 million, with an anticipated in-
service date of November 2007,

Year-Over-Year Operating Results

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Millions)
SCEIMENLFEVENUES . . oo vttt e i e $1,347.7 514128  $1.362.3
Sepment profil ... .o e $ 4674 % 5858 § 5858

Significant 2005 adjustments
Operating results tor 2005 included:

+ Adjustments of $17.7 million reflected as a $12.1 million reduction of costs and operating expenses and a
$5.6 million reduction of SG&A expenses. These cost reductions were corrections of the carrying value of
certain liabilities that were recorded in prior periods. Based on a review by management, these liabilities
were no longer required.

= Pension expense reduction of $17.1 million in the second quarter of 2005 to reflect the cumulative impact
of a correction of an error attributable to 2003 and 2004, The error was associated with our third-party
actuarial computation of annual net periodic pension expense and resulted from the identification of errors
in certain Transco participant data involving annuity contract information utilized for 2003 and 2004,

» Adjustments of $37.3 million reflected as increases in costs and operating expenses related to $32.1 million
of prior period accounting and valuation corrections for certain inventory items and an accrual of
$5.2 million for contingent refund obligations.

Our management concluded that the effects of these adjustments were not material to our consolidated results
for 2005 or prior periods, or to our trend of earnings.
2006 vs. 2005

Revenues decreased $63.1 million, or 5 percent, due primarily to $75 million lower revenues associated with
exchange imbalance settlements (oftset in costs and operating expenses). Partially oifsetting this decrease is a
$9 million increase in revenue due to an adjustment for the recovery of state income tax rate changes (offset in
provision for income taxes).
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Costs and operating expenses decreased $17 million, or 2 percent. due primarily to:
« A decrease in costs of $75 million associated with exchange imbalance settlements (offset in revenues):

« A decrease in costs of $37.3 million related to the absence of $32.1 million of 2005 prior period
accounting and valuation corrections for certain inventory items and an accrual of $5.2 miltion for
contingent refund obligations.

Partially offsetting these decreases are:

« An increase in contract and outside service costs of $23 million due primarily to higher pipeline
assessment and repair costs:

An increase in depreciation expense of $15 million due to property additions;

« An increase in operating and maintenance expenses of $15 million:

« An increase in operating taxes of $10 million;

« The absence of $14.2 million of income in 2005 associated with the resolution of litigation;

+ The absence of $12.1 million of expense reductions during 2003 related to the carrying value of certain
liabilities.

SG&A expenses increased $77 million, or 92 percent, due primanly to:
= An increase in personnel costs of $18 million;
« The absence of a 2005 $17.1 million reduction in pension costs to correct an error in prior periods:
+ An increase in information systems support costs of $16 million:
« An increase in property insurance expenses of $14 million:

« The absence of $5.6 million of cost reductions in 2005 that related to correcting the carrying value of
certain habilities.

‘The $118.4 million, or 20 percent, decrease in segment profit is due primarily to the absence of significant 2005
adjustments as previously discussed. increases in costy and operating expenses and SG&A expenses as previously
discussed. and the ubsence of a $4.6 million construction completion fee recognized in 2005 related to our
investment in Guifstream.

2005 vs. 2004

The $50.5 miltion. or 4 percent, increase in Gas Pipeline revenues is due primarily to $86 million higher
revenues associated with cxchange imbalance cash-out settlements (offset in costs and operating expenses).
Partially offsetting this increase is $24 million lower transportation revenues due primarily to the termination of the
Grays Harbor contract, and $11 million lower revenues associated with reimbursable costs, which are passed
through to custonters (offset in costs and operating expenses and SG&A expenses).

Costs and operating expenses increased $109 million, or 16 percent, due primarily to:
« An increase in costs of $86 million associated with exchange imbalances (offset in revenues).

« The increase in costs of $32.1 mitlion due to prior period accounting und valuation corrections related to
inventory, as previously discussed,

« An increase in operating and maintenance expense of $14 million due primarily to increased contract
service costs. materials and supplies and rental fees:

« The increase in costs of $5.2 million due to an accrual for contingent refund obligations, as previously
discussed,
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Partially offsetting these increases are decreases due to:
» Income of $14.2 million associated with the resolution of the litigation related 1o recovery of gas costs;

= The cost reduction of $12.1 million due to adjusting the carrying value of certain liabilities, as previously
discussed;

» Lower reimbursable costs of $5 million (offset in revenues).

SG&A expenses decreased approximately $38 million, or 31 percent. due to the $17.1 million reduction in
pension costs to correct a prior period error. $6 million lower reimbursable costs (offset in revenues). and the
reversal of $5.6 million of prior period accruals.

Comparative segment profit is unchanged from 2004. The following are significunt components of 2005
segment profit:

= The reduction in pension costs of $17.1 million to correct a prior period error, as previously discussed,

* An increase in Gulfstream equity earnings of 314 million due to the realization of a $4.6 million
construction fee award on the completion of the Phase 11 expansion project coupled with increased
revenues associated with the Gulfstream expansions;

* Income of $14.2 million from the reversal of the contingency related to recovery of gas costs;
» The $17.7 million reversal of prior period accruals:

» The increase in costs of $32.1 million due to prior period accounting and valuation corrections related (o
inventory;

* An increase in operating and maintenance expense of $14 million due primarily to increased contract
service costs, materials and supplies and rental fees;

¢ A decrease in transportation revenue of $24 million due primarily to the termination of the Grays Harbor
contract,

Midstream Gas & Liquids
Overview of 2006

‘Midstream’s ongoing strategy is to safely and reliably operate large-scale midstream infrastructure where our
assets can be fully utilized and drive low per-unit costs. Our business is focused on consistently attracting new
business by providing highly reliable service to our customers.

Significant events during 2006 included the following:

Favorable commodity price margins

The actual realized NGL per unit margins at our processing plants exceeded Midstream’s rolling five-year
average for the last four quarters. The geographic diversification of Midstream assets contributed significantly to
our actual realized unit margins resulting in margins generally greater than that of the industry benchmarks for gas
processed in the Henry Hub area and fractionated and sold at Mont Belvicu. The largest impact was realized at our
western United States gas processing plants, which benefited from lower regional market natural gas prices. During
2006, NGL production rebounded from levels experienced in fourth-quarter 2005 in response to improved gas
processing spreads as crude prices, which correlate to NGL prices, averaged $66 per barrel and natural pas prices
decreased. -
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Domestic Gathering and Processing Per Unit NGL Margin with Production and
Sales Volumes by Quarter
{excludes partially owned plants)
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Expansion efforts in growth areas

Consistent with our strategy, we continued to expand our midstream operations where we have large-scale
assets in growth basins.

We continued construction at our existing gas processing plant located near Opal, Wyoming, to add a fifth
cryogenic train capable of processing up to 350 MMcf/d, bringing total Opal capacity to approximately
1 450 MMcf/d. This plant expansion is being placed into service during the first quarter of 2007 to begin
processing gas from the Pinedale Anticline field.

Also, we continued construction on a 37-mile extension of our oil and gas pipelines from our Devils Tower spar
to the Blind Faith prospect located in Mississippi Canyon. This extension, estimated to cost approximately
$200 million, is expected to be ready for scrvice by the second quarter of 2008.

In May 2006, we entered into an agreement to develop new pipeline capacity for transporting natural gas
liquids from production arcas in southwestern Wyoming to central Kansas. The other panty to the agreement
reimbursed us for the development costs we incurred to date for the proposed pipeline and initially will own
99 percent of the pipeline, known as Overland Pass Pipeline Company, LLC. We retained a | percent interest and
have the option to increase our ownership 1o 50 percent and become the operator within two years of the pipeline
becoming operational. Start-up is planned for early 2008. Additionally. we have agreed to dedicate our equity NGL
volumes from our two Wyoming plants for transport under a long-term shipping agreement. The terms represent
significant savings compared with the existing tariff and other alternatives considered.

Williams Parters L.P. acquires Four Corners gathering and processing business

In June 2006. Williams Partners L.P. acquired 25.1 percent of our interest in Williams Four Corners LLC for
$360 million. The acquisition was completed after Williams Partners L.P. closed a $150 million private debt
offering of senior unsecured notes due 201 | and an equity offering of approximately $225 million in net proceeds.
In December 2006. Williams Partners L.P. acquired the remaining 74.9 percent interest in Williams Four Corners
LLC for $1.223 billion. The acquisition was completed after Williams Partners L.P. closed a $600 million private
debt offering of senior unsecured notes due 2017, a private equity offering of approximately $350 million of
common and Class B units, and a public equity offering of approximately $294 million in nct proceeds. Williams
Four Corners LLC owns certain gathering, processing and treating assets in the San Juan basin in Colorado and New
Mexico.

We currently own approximately 22.5 percent of Williams Partners L.P,, including the interests of the general
partner, which is wholly owned by us. Considering the presumption of control of the general partner in accordance
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with EITF Issue No. 04-5, Williams Partners L.P. is consolidated within the Midstream segment. (See Note 1 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.) Midstream’s segment profit includes 100 percent of Williams
Partners L.P.'s segment profit, with the minority interest’s share deducted below segment profit. The debt and equity
issued by Williams Partners L..P. is reported as a component of our consolidated debt balance and minority interest
balance, respectively.

Gulf Coast operations return to normal after 2005°s hurricanes

In 2005, Hurricanes Dennis, Katrina and Rita caused temporary shut-downs of most of our facilities and our
producers’ facilities in the Gulf Coast region, which reduced product flows in the second half of 2005. Our major
facilities resumed normal operations shortly after the passage of each hurricane except for our Devils Tower spar
which returned to service in early November 2005 and our Cameron Meadows gas processing plant which returned
to partial service in February 2006 and achieved full service in January 2007. Generally, overall product flows
returned to pre-hurricane levels during the first quarter of 2006.

Gulf Ligquids litigation

We recorded pre-tax charges totalling $94.7 million resulting from jury verdicts in civil litigation. (See Note 15
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.) These charges reflect our estimated exposure for actual damages of
$72.7 million, including estimated legal fees of $4.7 million, and potential pre-judgment interest of $22 million.
Midstream Other segment profit reflects the $72.7 million charge for the estimated actual damages and legal fees.
The matier is related to a contractual dispute surrounding construction in 2000 and 2001 of certain refinery off-gas
processing facilities by Gulf Liquids. In addition, it is reasonably possible that any ultimate judgment may include
additional amounts of $199 million in excess of our accrual, which represents our estimate of potential punitive
damage exposure under Texas law. The jury verdicts are subject to trial and appellate court review. Entry of a
judgment in the trial court is expected in the second or third guarter of 2007. If the trial court enters a judgment
consistent with the jury’s verdicts against us, we will seek a reversal through appeal.

Outlook for 2007
The following factors could impact our business in 2007 and beyond,

» Asevidenced in recent years, natural gas and crude oil markets are highly volatile. NGL margins earned at
our gas processing plants in the last four quarters were above our rolling five-year average, due to global
economtics maintaining high crude prices which correlate to strong NGL prices in relationship to natural
gas prices. Forecasted domestic demand for ethylene and propylene, whose feedstock are ethane and
propane, along with political instability in many of the key oil producing countries will continue to
support unit margins in 2007 exceeding our rolling five-year average. We do not expect to achieve the
record levels we experienced in 2006,

» Margins in our olefins unit are highly dependent upon continued economic growth within the U.§. and any
significant slow down in the economy would reduce the demand for the petrochemical products we
produce in both Canada and the U.S. Based on recent market price forecasts, we anticipate olefins unit
margins to be slightly lower than 2006 levels.

» Gathering and processing revenues at our facilities are expected to be at or above levels of previous years
due to continued strong drilling activities in our core basins.

» Revenues from deepwater production areas are often subject to risks associated with the interruption and
timing of product flows which can be influenced by weather and other third-party operational issues.

» We will continue to invest in facilities in the growth basins in which we provide services. We expect
continued expansion of our gathering and processing systems in our Gulf Coast and West regions 1o keep
pace with increased demand for our services.

* We expect continued growth in the deepwater areas of the Gulf of Mexico to contribute to, and become a
larger component of, our future segment revenues and segment profit. We expect these additional fee-
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based revenues to lower our proportionate exposure to commodity price risks. We expect revenues from
our deepwater production areas to decrease as volumes decline in 2007 and increase in 2008 as the
extension of our oil and gas pipelines from our Devils Tower spar to the Blind Faith prospect is placed into
service.

+ In 2007 we will begin construction on our Perdido Norte project which includes oil and gas lines that
expand the scale of our existing infrastructure in the western deepwater of the Gulf of Mexico.
Additionally, we will be expanding our Markham gas processing facility to adequately serve this new
gas production. The project is estimated to cost approximately $480 miilion and be in service in the third
quarter of 2009

* We are currently negotiating with our customer in Venezuela to resolve approximately $14 million in past
due invoices related to labor escalation charges. The customer is not disputing the index used to calculate
these charges and we have calculated the charges according to the terms of the contract. The customer
does. however. believe the index has resulted in 4 disproportionate escalation over tinic. We believe the
receivables. net of associated reserves, are fully collectible. Although we believe our negotiations will be
successful. failure to resolve this matter could ultimately trigger default noncompliance provisions in the
services agreement.

* The Venezuclan government continues its public criticism of U.S. economic and political policy, has
implemented unilateral changes to existing energy related contracts, continues to publicly declare that
additional energy contracts will be unilaterally amended, and that privately held assets will be expro-
priated, indicating that a level of political risk still remains.

Year-Over-Year Results

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
{Millions)

SEEMENE FEVEMUES . . o o oo i ee oot am e e ann e ne e $4,124.7  $3,232.7 52,8826
Segment profit

Domestic gathering & processing . ......... ... ..o 626.8 379.7 385.8

Venezhela . . e 98.4 94.7 85.6

OO e e 34 623 134.0

Indirect general and administrative expense . .. . ......... .. (70.3) (65.5) (55.7})

Total . . e e $ 6583 § 4712 § 5497

In order to provide additional clarity, our management’s discussion and analysis of operating results separately
reflects the portion of generat and administrative expense not allocated to an asset group as indirect general and
administrative expense. These charges represent any overhead cost not directly attributable to one of the specific
asset groups noted in this discussion. '

2006 vs. 2005
The $892.0 million increase in segment revenues is largely due to:

« A $561 million increase in crude marketing revenues, which is offset by a similar change in costs,
resulting from additional deepwater production coming on-line in November 2005;

A $165 million increase in revenues associated with the production of NGLs, primarily due to higher NGL
prices combined with higher volumes; '

« A $137 miltion increase in the marketing of NGLs and olefins, which is offset by a similar change in costs;

An $83 million increase in fee-based revenues including $52 million in higher production handling
revenues, :
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* A $44 million increase in revenues in our olefins unit due to higher volumes.

These increases were partially offset by an $84 million reduction in NGL revenues due to a change in
classification of NGL transportation and fractionation expenses from costs of goods sold to net revenues (offset in
costs and operating expenses).

Sepment costs and expenses increased $707.3 million primarily as a result of:

+ A $561 million increase in crude marketing purchases, which is offset by a similar change in revenues;

A $137 million increase in NGL and olefins marketing purchases, offset by a similar change in revenues;

An $82 million increase in operating expenses including a $10.6 million accounts payable accrual
adjustment, higher system losses. depreciation, insurance expense, personne! and related benefit
expenses, turbine overhauls, materials and supplies, compression and post-hurricane inspection and
survey costs required by a government agency;

A $59 million increasc in other expense including the $68 million estimated exposure for actual damages
for the Gulf Liquids litigation, partially offsct by a $9 million favorable settlement of a contract dispute;

A $20 million increase in costs associated with production in our olefins unit.
These increases were partially offset by:

« An $84 million reduction in NGL transportation and fractionation expenses due to the above-noted
change in classification (offset in revenues),

+ A $77 million decrease in plant fuel and costs associated with the production of NGLs due primarily to
lower gas prices.

The $187.1 miilion increase in Midstream segment profit is primarily due to higher NGL. margins, higher
deepwater production handling revenues, higher gathering and processing revenues, higher margins from our
olefins unit, and a settlement of an intemational contract dispute, largely offset by the $72.7 million charge related
to the Guif Liquids litigation contingency combined with higher operating costs and lower margins related to the
} marketing of olefins and NGLs. A more detailed analysis of the segment profit of Midstream’s various operations is
presented as follows.

4 Domestic gathering & processing

The $247.1 million increase in domestic gathering and processing segment profir includes a $143 million
increase in the West region and a $104 million increase in the Gulf Coast region,

The $143 million increase in our West region’s segment profit primarily results from higher produet margins
and higher gathering and processing revenues, partially offset by higher operating expenses, The significant
components of this increase include the following:

» NGL margins increased $166 million compared to 2005. This increase was driven by a decrease in costs
associated with the production of NGLs, an increase in average per unit NGL prices and higher volumes
resulting from lower NGL recoveries during the fourth quarter of 2005 caused by intermitient periods of
uneconomical market commodity prices and a power outage and associated operational issues at our Opal,
Wyoming facility. NGL margins are defined as NGL revenues less BTU replacement cost. plant fuel,
transportation and fractionation expense.

+ Gathering and processing fee revenues increased $26 million. Gathering fees are higher as a result of
higher average per-unit gathering rates. Processing volumes are higher due to customers electing to take
liquids and pay processing fees.

s Operating expenses increased $51 million including $11 million in higher net system product losses as a
result of system gains in 2005 compared to losses in 2006, a $7 million accounts payable accrual
adjustment; $8 million in higher personnel and related benefit expenses; $6 million in higher materials
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and supplies; $6 million in higher gathering fuel, $4 million in higher leased compression costs; $4 million
in higher turbine overhau! costs; and $4 million in higher depreciation.

The 5104 million increase in the Gulf Coast region’s segment profit is primarily a result of higher NGL
margins, higher volumes from our deepwater facilities, partially offset by higher operating expenses.. The
significant components of this increase include the following:

* NGL margins increased $77 million compared to 2005. This increase was driven by an increase in average
per unit NGL prices and a decrease in costs associated with the production of NGLs,

* Fee revenues from our deepwater assets increased $52 million as a result of $51 million in higher volumes
flowing across the Devils Tower facility and $22 million in higher Devils Tower unit-of-production rates
recognized as a result of a new reserve study. These increases are partially offset by a $2 1 million decline
in other gathering and production handling revenues due to volume declines in other areas.

* Operating expenses increased $25 million primarily as a result of $12 million in higher insurance costs,
$4 million in higher depreciation expense on our deepwater assets, $3 million in higher net system product
losses as a result of lower gain volumes in 2006, $2 million in post-hurricane inspection and survey costs
required by a government agency, and a $1 million accounts payable accrual adjustment.

Venezuela

Segment profit for our Venezuela assets increased $3.7 million and includes $9 million resuiting from the
settlement of a contract dispute and $1 million in higher revenues due to higher natural gas volumes and prices at our
compression facility. These are pantially offset by $4 million in higher expenses related to higher insurance,
personnel and contract labor costs and a $2 million increase in the reserve for uncollectible accounts.

Other

The $58.9 million decrease in segment profit of our other operations is largely due (o the $72.7 million of
charges related to the Gulf Liquids litigation contingency combined with $13 million in lower margins related to the
marketing of olefins. The decrease also reflects $12 million in lower margins related to the marketing of NGLs due
1o more favorable changes in pricing while product was in transit during 2005 as compared to 2006, These were
partially offset by $24 million in higher margins in our olefins unit, $7 million in higher earnings from our equity
investment in Discovery Producer Services, L.L.C. {Discovery), $7 million in higher tractionation, storage and
other fee revenues, and a $4 million favorable transportation settlement. ‘

2005 vs, 2004

The $350.1 million increase in segment revenues is largely due to:

* A §196 million increase in crude marketing revenues, which is offset by a similar change in costs,
resulting from the start up of a deepwater pipeline in the second quarter of 2004;

+ A $72 million increase in revenues associated with production of NGLs, primarily due to $180 million in
higher NGL prices partially offset by $108 million in Jower sales volumes. The decline in sales volumes in
our Gulf Coast region is largely due to the impact of summer hurricanes, while the decline in the West
region is largely due to.the higher levels of NGL rejection as well as maintenance issues with our gas
processing facility at Opal, Wyoming;

= A $58 million increase in the marketing of NGLs, which is offset by a similar change in costs, resulting
from higher prices and additional spot sales;

* A $21 million increase in fee-based revenues in part due to higher customer production volumes flowing
10 our West region and deepwater assets.

Costs and operating expenses increased $364.1 million primarily as a result of:

* A 5196 million increase in crude marketing purchases, which is offset by a similar change in revenues;
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* A $92 million increase in costs related to the production of NGLs as a result of $100 million in higher
natural gas purchases due largely to higher prices. partially offset by lower volumes:

* A $58 million increase related 10 the marketing of NGLs and additional spot purchases, which is offsct by
a similar change in revenues:

* A $33 million increase in operating expenses mostly due to higher fuel expense und commodity costs
associated with our NGL storage and fractionation business and higher depreciation expense,

The $78.5 million decline in Midstream segment profit is primarily due to the absence of the $93.6 million gain
from the Gulf Liquids™ insurance arbitration award in 2004, The offsetting increase in segment profit is primarily
due to higher fee revenues from our domestic gathering and processing and Venezuela businesses and higher
earnings from our investment in the Discovery partnership, partially offset by lower NGL margins and higher
operating costs. A more detailed analysis of the segment profit of Midstream’s various operations is presented
below.

Domestic_gathering & processing

The $6.1 million decrease in domestic gathering and processing segment profit includes a $30 million decline
in the Gulf Coast region. largely offset by a $24 million increase in the West region.

The $24 million increase in our West region’s segment profit primarily results from higher gathering and
processing fee revenues, and the absence of an asset write-down and other 2004 charges, offset partially by higher
operating expenses and lower NGL margins. The significant drivers to these items are as follows:

* Gathering and processing fee revenues increased $18 million primarily as a result of higher average
per-unit gathering and processing rates and higher volumes in the Rocky Mountain production area due to
increased drilling activity. A portion of this increase is also due to the increase in volumes subject Lo fee-
based processing contracts,

* A favorable variance due o the absence of the write-down of $7.6 million for an idle treating facility in
2004,

* NGL margins decreased $6 million due to a $17 million impact from lower sales volumes resulting from
lower fourth quarter 2005 NGL recoveries caused by intermittent periods of uneconomical market
commaodity prices and a power outage and associated operational issues at our Opal. Wyoming facility.
NGL margins are defined as NGL revenues less BTU replacement cost, plant fuel, transportation and
fractionation expense. The impact of lower volumes is partially offset by an $11 million impact of higher
per unit NGL margins,

The $30 million decrease in the Gulf Coast region’s segment profitis primarily a result of higher operating and
depreciation expenses and lower NGL margins. The significant components of this decline include the following:

* Operating expenses increased $10 million primarily due to higher maintenance expenses reilated to our
gathering assets, compressor overhauls, and an increase in hurricane-related costs of $2 million, Inspec-

} tion und repair expenses related to the hurricanes were recorded as incurred up to the level of our insurance
deductible.
* Depreciation expense increased $13 million primarily due to placing in service our Devils Tower spar and
L associated deepwater gas and oil pipelines in May and June 2004. respectively.

* NGL margins declined $14 million due to lower volumes, largely due 1o the impact of summer hurricanes,
and the increase in natural gas prices. While revenues from the Devils Tower deepwater facility are
recognized as volumes are delivered over the life of the reserves, cash payments from our customers are
based on a contractual fixed fee received over a defined term. As a result, $44 million of cash received in
2005. which is included in cash flow from operations, was deferred at December 31. 2005 and will be
recognized as revenue in periods subsequent to 2005. The total amount deferred for all years as of
December 31. 2005 was $80 miilion.
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Venczuela

Segment profit for our Venezuela assets increased $9.1 million as a result of higher plant volumes and higher
equity earnings from our investment in the ACCROVEN partnership. The higher equity earnings are largely due to
the renegotiation of a power supply contract and the absence of 2004 legal fees associated with the Jose Terminal.

Other

The $71.7 million decrease in segment profit of our other operations is largely due to the absence of the
$93.6 million gain from the Gulf Liquids’ insurance arbitration award and a $9.5 million gain on the sale of the
Choctaw ethylene distribution assets in 2004 partially offsct by $7 million in higher olefins and commodity
margins. $6 million in higher earnings from our equity investment in the Discovery partnership. and the absence of a
2004 $16.9 million impairment charge also related to our equity investment in the Discovery partnership.

Indirect general and administrative expense

The $9.8 million unfavorable variance for our indirect general and administrative expenses is primarily due to
higher cmployee expenses and administrative costs associated with the creation of Williams Partners L.P.

Power
Overview of 2006

Power’s operating results for 2006 reflect an accrual gross margin loss on its nonderivative tolling contracts.
Power’s results in 2006 were also influenced by a decrease in forward power prices against a net long derivative
position, which caused net forward unrealized mark-to-market (MTM) losses. Power’s results do not reflect,
however, cash flows that Power realized in 2006 from hedges for which mark-to-market gains or losses had been
previously recognized.

In 2006. Power continued to focus on its objectives of minimizing financial risk, maximizing cash flow,
meeting contractual commitments. executing new contracts to hedge its portfolio and providing services that
support our natoral gas husinesses.

Outlack for 2007

For 2007. Power intends 10 service its customers’ needs while increasing the certainty of cash flows from its
long-term tolling contracts by executing new long-term electricity and capacity sales contracts. In the first quarter of
2007, Power exccuted agreements to sell dispatch and tolling rights and supply natural gas in southern California
for periods through 201 1. These contracts mirror Power’s rights under its California tolling agreement and represent
up to 1,920 megawatts of power.

As Power continues to apply hedge accounting in 2007, its future earnings may be less volatile. However, not
all of Power's derivative contracts qualify for hedge accounting. Application of hedge accounting requires
quantitative and qualitative analysis. To qualify for hedge accounting, Power must assess derivatives tor their
expected effectiveness in offsetting the risk being hedged. In addition, it must assess whether the hedged forecasted
transaction is probable of occurring. If Power no longer expects the hedge to be highly effective, or if it believes that
the hedged forecasted transaction is no longer probable of occurring, it would discontinue hedge accounting
prospectively and recognize future changes in fair value directly to earnings.

Because certain derivative contracts qualifying for hedge accounting were previously marked-to-market
through carnings prior to their designation as cash flow hedges, the amounts recognized in future carnings under
hedge accounting will not necessarily align with the expected cash flows to be realized from the settlement of those
derivatives. For cxample, future earnings may reflect losses from underlying transactions, such as natural gas
purchases and power sales associated with our tolling contracts, which have been hedged by derivatives. A portion
of the offsetting gains from these hedges, however, has already been recognized in prior periods under
mark-to-market accounting. So, while earnings in a reported period may not retlect the full amount realized
from our hedges. cash flows will continue o reflect the total amount from both the hedged transactions and the
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hedges. In 2006. 2005 and 2004 Power had positive cash flows from operations, and expects to continué to have
positive cash flows from operations in 2007.

Even with the application of hedge accounting, Power's earnings will continue 1o reflect mark-to-market
volatility from uarealized gains and losses resulting from:

* Market movements of commodity-based derivatives that represent economic hedges but which do not
quality for hedge accounting;

* Ineffectiveness of cash flow hedges, primarily caused by locational differences between the hedging
derivative and the hedged item or changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties;

* Market movements of commodity-based derivatives that are held for trading purposes.

The fair value of Power's toliing. ful] requirements, transportation, storage and transmission contracts is not
reflected on the bulance sheet since these contracts are not derivatives. Some of these contracts have a significant
negative esiimated fair value and could result in future operating losses. Power's estimate of fair value may differ
significantly from a third party’s estimate. Power’s estimate of fair value is based on internal valuation assumptions,
which include assumptions of natural gas prices, electricity prices, price volatility, correlation of gas and electricity,
and many other inputs. Some of these assumptions are readily available in the market. while others are not.

Key factors that may influence Power’s financial condition and operating performance include:

* Prices of power and natural gas, including changes in the margin between power and natural gas prices;
* Changes in power and natural gas price volatility;
* Changes in power and natural gas supply and demand:;

* Changes in the regulatory environment;

* The inability of counterparties to perform under contractual obligations due to their own credit
constraints;

» Changes in interest rates:
* Changes in market liquidity, including changes in the ability to effectively hedge commodity price risk;

* The inability 10 apply hedge accounting.

Year-Over-Year Results

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Millions)
Realized revenues . . .. ... ... .. ... . ... . . ... ... .. $7484.6  $8,921.8 $8.954.7
Net forward unrealized mark-to-market gains (losses) ......... (22.2) 172.} 304.0
Segment revenues . .. ... ... ... 74624 9,093.9 9.258.7
Costofsales. ... ... ... . . 7.619.8 9.150.3 9,073.3
Gross Margin ... ... ... .. (157.4) {56.4) 185.4
Operating expenses . .. ... ... 18.0 222 237
Selling. general and administrative expenses .. .............. 62.2 64.5 83.2
Other (income) expense —net. .. . ... .. (26.8) 113.6 1.8
Segment profit (10s8) . . ... ... ... . .. . $2108) 5@256.7) 3 7167




2006 vs. 2005

The $1.4 billion decrease in realized revenues is primarily due to a decrease in power and natural gas realized
revenues. Realized revenues represent (1) revenue from the sale of commodities or completion of energy-related
services and (2) gains and losses from the net financial settlement of derivative contracts.

Power and natural gas realized revenues decrcased primarily due to a 20 percent decrease in power sales
volumes and a 17 percent decrease in average natural gas sales prices. Power sales volumes decreased because
certain long-term physical contracts were not replaced due to reducing the scope of trading activities subsequent to
2002,

Net forward unrealized mark-to-market gains (losses) represent changes in the fair values of certain derivative
contracts with a future settlement or delivery date that have not been designated as cash flow hedges and the impact
of the ineffectiveness of cash flow hedges. The effect of changes in forward prices on power contracts not
designated as cash flow hedges primarily caused the $194.3 million decrease in ner Jorward unrealized
mark-to-market gains (losses). A 2005 increase in forward power prices caused gains on the net forward purchase
position, while a 2006 decrease in forward power prices caused losses on the net forward power purchase contracts.

The $1.5 billion decrease in Power’s cost of sales is primarily due to a 20 percent decrease in power purchase
volumes and an 18 percent decrease in average natural gas purchase prices.

The decrease in selling. general and administrative expenses is due primarily to increased gains from the sale
of certain Enron receivables to a third party. Power recognized a $24.8 million gain in 2006 compared to a
$9.7 million gain in 2005.

Other (income) expense — net in 2006 includes a $12.7 million reduction of contingent obligations associated
with our former distributive power generation business.

Other (income) expense — net in 2005 includes:

» An $82.2 million accrual for estimated litigation contingencies, primarily associated with agreements
reached to substantially resolve exposure related to natural gas price and volume reporting issues (see
Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

« A $4.6 million accrual for a regulatory settlement:

« A $23 million impairment of an equity investment (see Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements).

The decrease in segment loss is primarily due to favorable changes in other (income) expense — net described
above. partially offset by a decrease in gross margin.

2005 vs. 2004

The $164.8 million decrease in revenues includes a $32.9 million decrease in realized revenues and a
$131.9 million decrease in ner forward unrealized mark-to-market gains (losses).

The $32.9 million decrease in realized revenwes is primarily due to the absence in 2005 of $471 million in
crude and refined products realized revenues, partially offset by a $444 million increase in power and natural gas
realized revenues. The absence of crude and refined products revenues is due to the sale of the refined products
business in 2004. Power and natural gas realized revenues increased primarily due to a 33 percent increase in
average natural gas sales prices and a |7 percent increase in average power sales prices. Hurricane Katrina, among
other factors, contributed to the increase in prices. A 29 percent decrease in power sales volumes partially offsets the
increase in prices. Power sales volumes decreased because Power did not replace certain long-term physical
contracts that expired or were terminated and because of mild weather in California, which resulted in lower
demand.

The $131.9 million decrease in net forward unrealized mark-to-market gains (losses) is primarily due to a
$165 million decrease associated with power and gas derivative contracts, partially offset by the absence in 2005 of
a $38 million unrealized loss on the interest rate portfolio in 2004,
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‘The decrease in power and gas unrealized mark-to-market gains primarily results from the impact of cash flow
hedge accounting, which was prospectively applied to certain of Power's derivative contracts beginning October 1,
2004. Net unrealized gains of $711 million related to the effective portion of the hedges are reported in accumudated
other comprehensive loss in 2005 compared to $15 million in 2004. If Power had not applied cash flow hedge
accounting in 2005, we would have reported the $711 million in revenues instead of in accumulated other
comprehensive loss. Also in 2005, Power recognized losses of $6.8 million representing a correction of unrealized
losses associated with a prior year. Our management concluded that the effects of this correction are not material 1o
prior periods, 2005 results, or our trend of earnings. Partially offsetting these decreases is the effect of a greater
increase in forward power prices on a greater volume of power purchase contracts in 2005 compared to 2004,
resulting in increased unrealized mark-to-market gains on net power derivatives that are not accounted for as cash
flow hedges.

The absence in 2005 of the unrealized loss on the interest rate portfolio is due to the termination and liquidation
of all remaining interest-rate derivatives in fourth quarter 2004. A decrease in forward interest rates caused
unrealized losses in the interest rate portfolio in 2004.

The $77 million increase in Power’s cost of sales is primarily due to an increase in power and natural gas costs
of $563 million, partially offset by a decrease in crude and refined products costs of $486 million. Power and natural
gas costs increased primarily due to a 32 percent increase in average power purchase prices and a 44 percent
increase in average natural gas purchase prices, partially offset by a 29 percent decrease in power purchase volumes.
Hurricane Katrina, among other factors, contributed to the increase in prices. Costs in 2005 include approximately
$8 million in purchases due to an outage at an electric generating facility that Power has access to via a fuel
conversion service agreement. A 2004 reduction to certain contingent loss accruals of $10.4 million associated with
power marketing activities in California during 2000 and 2001 also contributes to the increase in costs, Costs in
2004 include $486 million of crude and refined products costs, which are absent in 2005 due to the sale of the
refined products business in 2004. Costs in 2004 also reflect a $13 million payment made to terminate a
nonderivative power sales contract.

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased primarily due to decreased employee incentive
compensation and decreased costs for outside services. A $9.7 million reduction of allowance for bad debis
resulting from the sale of certain receivables to a third party also contributed to the decrease in SG&A expenses.
SG&A expenses in 2004 include a $6.3 million reduction of allowance for bad debts resulting from a 2004
settlement with certain California utilities,

Other {income) expense — net in 2004 includes $6.1 million in fees paid related to the sale of certain
receivables to a third party.

Although increased gas prices favorably impacted the fair vatue of Power’s derjvative natural gas hedges, the
$333.4 million change from a segment profit to a segment loss is primarily due to the impact of cash flow hedge
accounting. Additionally, plant outages and depressed margin spreads between the cost of gas and sales price of
electricity contributed to lower segment profit. Accruals in 2005 for litigation contingencies and an impairment of
an equity investment also contributed to the change in segment profit (loss). Partially offsetting the decrease in
segment profit is the absence in 2005 of unrealized and realized losses from the interest rate portfolio, which was
liquidated in the fourth quarter of 2004.

Other

Overview of 2006

While we continue to have an equity ownership interest in Longhorn, the management of Longhorn completed
an asset sale of the pipeline during the third quarter of 2006. As a result, we received full payment of the $10 million
secured bridge loan that we provided Longhorn during 2005. The carrying value of our equity investment in
Longhorn is zero as of December 31, 2006.

We continue to receive payments associated with the 2005 transfer of the Longhorn operating agreement to a
third party. These payments totaled approximately $3.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Any ongoing

65




payments received or through monetization of the contract will be recognized as income when received. These
ongoing puyments were not impacted by the sale of the pipeline.

Year-Over-Year Operating Results

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
{Millions)
Segment revenues. . . ......... e $265 & 272 §$328
Segment profit (J0SS) ... ... $ 19  S$(105.0) $(41.6)

2006 vs. 2005

Other segment profit for 2006 includes $3.3 million in payments received related to the 2005 transfer of the
Longhorn operating agreement.

Other segment foss for 2005 includes $87.2 million of impairment charges, of which $38.1 million was
recorded during the fourth quarter, related to our investment in Longhorn. In a related matter, we wrote off $4 million
of capitalized project costs associated with Longhorn. We also recorded $23.7 million of equity losses associated
with our investment in Longhorn. Partially offsetting these charges and losses was a $9 million fourth quarter gain
on the sale of land,

2005 vs. 2004

Other segment loss for 2005 includes various items which are discussed above.

Other segment loss for 2004 includes $11.8 million of accrued environmental remediation expense associated
with the Augusta refinery. Also included in Other segment loss is $10.8 million of impairment charges related to our
investment in Longhorn, $9.8 million of equity losses associated with our investment in Longhorn, and $6.5 million
of net unreimbursed advisory fees related to the recapitalization of Longhorn.

Energy Trading Activities
Fair Value of Trading and Nontrading Derivatives

The chart below reflects the fair value of derivatives held for trading purposes as of December 31, 2006. We
have presented the fair value of assets and liabilities by the period in which we expect them to be realized.

Net Assets (Liabilities) — Trading

(Milfions}
To be To he To he To be To be
Realized in Realized in Realized in Realized in Realized in
1-12 Months 13-36 Months 37-60 Months 61-120 Months 121+ Months Net
(Year 1) (Years 2-3) (Years 4-5) s (Years 6-10) (Years 11+) Fair Value
$3 $— $— s $— $3

As the table above illustrates, we are not materially engaged in trading activities. However, we hold a
substantial portfolio of nontrading derivative contracts. Nontrading derivative contracts are those that hedge or
could possibly hedge forecasted transactions on an economic basis. We have designated certain of these contracts as
cash flow hedges of Power’s forecasted purchases of gas, its purchases and sales of power related to its long-term
structured contracts and owned generation, and Exploration & Production’s forecasted sales of natural gas
production, Certain of Power’s other derivatives have not been designated as or do not qualify as SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133) cash flow hedges. The chart below
reflects the fair value of derivatives held for nontrading purposes as of December 31. 2006, for the Power and
Exploration & Production businesses. Of the total fair value of nontrading derivatives, SFAS 133 cash flow hedges
had a net asset value of $360 million as of December 31, 2006, which includes the existing fair value of the
derivatives at the time of their designation as SFAS 133 cash flow hedges.
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Net Assets (Liabilities) — Nontrading

{Millions)
To be To bhe To be To be To be
Realized in Realized in Realized in Realized in Realized in
1-12 Months 13-36 Months 37-60 Months 61-120 Months 121+ Months Net
(Year 1} (Years 2-3) {Years 4-5) {Years 6-10) (Years 11+) Fair Value
$94 $227 $88 $24 $— $433

Methods of Estimating Fair Value

Most of the derivatives we hold setile in active periods and markets in which quoted market prices are
available. These include futures contracts, oplion contracts, swap agreements and physical commodity purchases
and sales in the commodity markets in which we transact. While an active market may not exist for the entire period,
quoted prices can generally be obtained for natural gas through 2012 and power through 2011.

These prices reflect current economic and regulatory conditions and may change because of market condi-
tions. The availability of quoted market prices in active markets varies between periods and commodities based
upon changes in market conditions. The ability to obtain quoted market prices also varies greatly from region to
region. The time periods noted above are an estimation of aggregate availability of quoted prices. An immaterial
portion of our total net derivative value of $436 million relates to periods in which active quotes cannot be obtained.
We estimate energy commodity prices in these illiquid periods by incorporating information about commodity
prices in actively quoted markets. quoted prices in less active markets, and other market fundamental analysis.
Modeling and other valuation techniques, however, are not used significantly in determining the fair value of our
derivatives.

Counterparty Credit Considerations

We include an assessment of the risk of counterparty nonperformance in our estimate of fair value for ail
contracts. Such assessment considers (1) the credit rating of each counterparty as represented by public rating
agencies such as Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investors Service, (2) the inherent default probabilities within
these ratings. (3) the regulatory environment that the contract is subject to and (4) the terms of each individual
contract.

Risks surrounding counterparty performance and credit could ultimately impact the amount and timing of
expected cash flows. We continually assess this risk. We have credit protection within various agreements to call on
additional collateral support if necessary. At December 31, 2006, we held collateral support, including letters of
credit, of $695 miliion.

We also enter into master netting agreements (0 mitigate counterparty performance and credit risk. During
2006 and 2005, we did not incur any significant losses due to recent counterparty bankruptcy filings.

The gross credit exposure from our derivative contracts as of December 31, 2006, is summarized below.

Investment
Counterparty Type Grade{(a) Total
{Millions)
Gas and electric UHHUES . . . . . o i e e $ 2480 % 2499
Energy marketers and traders . .. .. ... ... ... oo 412.7 1,784.3
Financial INSUILORS . . . . ot vt et e e et ot e e e v e 22194 2,219.4
L 1317 233 29.8

$2,903.4 4,283.4

Credit TESEIVES . . o o o o e e e e e e e (20.3)

Gross credit exposure from derivatives ... ... ... . L L o $4.263.1




We assess our credit exposure on a net basis to reflect master netting agreements in place with certain
counterparties. We offset our credit exposure 1o cach counterparty with amounts we owe the counterparty under
derivative contracts. The net credit exposure from our derivatives as of December 31, 2006, is summarized below.

Invesiment .
Counterparty Type - : Grade{a) ‘Total
(Millions)
Gas and electric UHHUES . . oo oo e e e et e 51204 $120.5
Energy marketers and traders . ... ... ..o 209.0 455.4
Financial INStIUUONS . . . o vy et ettt e m e e e e it e m e 3255 325.5
OIRET . . e e e e e e 204 20.4

$675.3 9218

el TESETVES © o o v e e e e et e e e e e e et e e e (20.3)

Net credit exposure from derivatives ... ... ... o i $901.5

(a) We determine investment grade primarily using publicly available credin ratings. We included counterparties
with a minimum Standard & Poor’s rating of BBB- or Moody's Investors Service rating of Baa3 in investment
grade. We also classify counterparties that have provided sufficient collateral, such as cash, stundby letiers of

" credit, adequate parent company guarantees, and property interests, as investment grade.

Trading Folicy

We have policies and procedures that govern our trading and risk management activities. These policies cover
authority and delegation thereof in addition to control requirements. authorized commodities and term and exposure
limitations. Power's value-at-risk is limited in aggregate and calculuted at a 95 percent confidence level.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
Qutlook

We believe we have. or have access to. the financial resources and liquidity necessary to meet future
requirements for working capital. capital and investment expenditures and debt payments while maintaining a
sufficient level of liguidity to reasonably protect against unforeseen circumstances requiring the use of funds. In
2007. we expect t0 maintain liquidity from cash and cash equivalents and unused revolving credit facilities of at
Jeast $1 billion, We maintain adequate liquidity to manage margin requirements related to significant movements in
commodity prices. unplanned capital spending needs. near term scheduled debt payments, and litigation and other
settlements. We expect 1o fund capital and investment expenditures, debt payments, dividends, and working capital
requirements through cash flow from operations, which is currently estimated to be between $2 billion and
$2.3 billion in 2007. proceeds from debt issuances and sales of units of Williams Partners L.P., as well as cash and
cash equivalents on hand as needed.

We enter 2007 positioned for growth through disciplined investments in our natural gas businesses. Examples
of this planned growth include:

« Exploration & Production will continue to maintain its development drilling program in its key basins of
Piceance. Powder River, San Juan, Arkoma, and Fort Worth. During 2006, all ten statc-of-the-art
FlexRigd® drilling rigs were placed in service in the Piceance basin pursuant to our March 2005 contract
with Helmerich & Payne. Each rig is leased for three years.

» Gas Pipeline will continue 10 expand its system to meet the demand of growth markets.

« Midstream will continue to pursue significant deepwater production commitments and expand capacity in
the western United States.

We estimate capital and investment expenditures will total approximately $2.2 billion to $2.4 billion in 2007.
As a result of increasing our development drilling program, $1.3 billion to §1.4 billion of the to1al estimated 2007
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capital expenditures is related to Exploration & Production. Also within the total estimuted expenditures for 2007 is
approximately $215 mitlion to $270 million for maintenance-related projects at Gas Pipeline, including pipeline
replacement and Clean Air Act compliance. Commitments for construction and acquisition of property, plant and
equipment are approximately $406 million at December 31. 2006.

Potential risks associated with our planned levels of liquidity and the planned cupital and investment
expenditures discussed above include:

» Lower than expected levels of cash flow from operations due to commaodity pricing volatility. To mitigate
this exposure, Exploration & Production has economically hedged the price of natural gas for approx-
imately 172 MMcfe per day of its expected 2007 production. In addition, Exptoration & Production has
collar agreements for each month of 2007 which hedge approximatcly 270 MMcfe per day of expected
2007 production. Power has entered into various sales contracts that economically cover substantially all
of its tixed demand obligations through 2010.

« Sensitivity of margin requirements ussociated with our marginable commodity contracts, As of
December 31, 2006, we cstimate our expuosure 1o additional margin requirements through 2007 to be
no more than $521 million. using a statistical analysis at a 99 percent confidence level.

» Exposure associated with our efforts to resolve regulatory and litigation issues (seec Note 15 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements).

In August 2006, the Pension Protection Act of 2006 was signed into law. The Act makes significant changes to
the requirements for employer-sponsored retirement plans. inctuding revisions affecting the funding of defined
benefit pension plans beginning in 2008, We are assessing the impact of the legislation on our future funding
requirements, but do not expect a significant increase in required contributions over current levels, assuming long-
term rates of return on assets and current discount rates do not experience a significant decline.

Overview

1n November 2003, we initiated an offer (o induce conversion of up to $300 million of the 5.5 percent junior
subordinated convertible debentures into our common stock. The conversion was executed in January 2006 and
approximately $220.2 million of the debentures were exchanged for common stock. We paid $25.8 miilion in
premiums that are included in early debt retirement costs in the Consolidated Statement of Income. See Note 12 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

In April 2006, Transco issued $200 million aggregate principal amount of 6.4 percent senior unsecured notes
duc 2016 to certain institutional investors in a private debt placement to fund general corporate expenses and capital
expenditures. In October 2006, Transco completed an exchange of these notes for substantially identical new notes
that arc registered under the Securities Act of 1933, us amended.

In April 2006, we retired a secured floating-rate term loan for $488.9 million. including outstanding principal
and accrued interest. The loan was due in 2008 and secured by substantially all of the assets of Williams Praduction
RMT Company. The loan was retired using a combination of cash and revolving credit borrowings.

In May 2006, we replaced our $1.275 billion secured revolving credit facility with a $1.5 billion unsecured
revolving credit facility. The new facility contains similar terms and financial covenants as the secured facility. but
contains certain additional restrictions. {(See Note 11 of Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Statements.)

In June 2006, Northwest Pipeline issued $175 million aggregate principal amount of 7 percent senior
unsecured notes due 2016 to certain institutional investors in a private debt placement to fund general corporate
expenses and capital expenditures. In October 2006, Northwest Pipeline completed an exchange of these notes for
substantialty identical new notes that are registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

[n June 2006, we reached an agreement-in-principle to settle class-action securities litigation filed on behalf of
purchasers of our securities between July 24, 2000 and July 22, 2002, for a total payment of $290 million to
plaintiffs. On February 9, 2007. the court gave its final approval of the settlement. We recorded a pre-tax charge for
approximately $161 million in second quarter 2006. Our portion of the total payment was $145 miilion.
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On June 1. 2006, the FERC entered its final order (FERC Final Crder) concerning the Trans-Alaska Pipeline
System (TAPS) Quality Bank litigation. The Quality Bank Administrator will determine and invoice for amounts
due based on the FERC Final Order, subject to the final disposition of the FERC Final Order appeals. We estimate
that our net obligation could be as much as $116 million. (See Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.)

[n June 2006, Williams Partners L.P. acquired 25.1 percent of our interest in Williams Four Corners LLC for
$360 million. The acquisition was completed after Williams Partners 1.P. successfully closed a $£150 million private
debt offering of 7.5 percent scnior unsecured notes due 2011 and an cquity offering of approximately $225 million
in net proceeds. In December 2006, Williams Partners L.P. acquired the remaining 74.9 percent interest in Williams
Four Corners LLC for $1.223 billion. The acquisition was completed after Williams Partners L.P. successfully
closed a $600 million private debt offering of 7.25 percent senior unsecured notes due 2017, a private equity
offering of approximately $350 million of common and Class B units, and a public equity offering of approximately
$294 million in net proceeds. The debt and equity issued by Williams Partners L..P. is reported as a component of our
consolidated debt balance and minority interest balance, respectively. Williams Four Corners LLC owns certain
gathering, processing and treating assets in the San Juan Basin in Colorado and New Mexico.

Exploration & Production has recently entered into a five-year unsecured credit agreement with certain banks
in order to reduce margin requirements related to our hedging activities as well as lower transaction fees. Margin
requirements, if any, under this new facility are dependent on the level of hedging and on natural gas reserves value.

Credit ratings

On May 4, 2006, Standard & Poor’s raised our senior unsecured debt rating from a B+ to a BB- with a positive
ratings outlook. With respect to Standard & Poor’s. 4 rating of *BBB™or above indicaties an investment grade rating.
A rating below “BBB” indicates that the security hos significant speculative characteristics. A “BB" rating indicates
that Standard & Poor’s believes the issuer has the vapacily to meet its financial commitment on the obligation, but
adverse business conditions could lead to insutficient abiliiy to meet financial commitments. Standard & Poor’s
may modify it’s ratings with a “+” or a “-" sign v show e obligor’s relative standing within a major rating
category.

On June 7, 2006, Moody’s Investors Service raisco o.ur «nior unsecured debt rating from a B1 to a Ba2 with a
stable ratings outlook. With respect to Moody’s, a rat 5i; oi "ua” or above indicates an investment grade rating. A
rating below “Baa™ is considered to have speculative < i-ments. A “Ba” rating indicates an obligation that is judged
to have speculative elements and is subject to substanual credit risk. The “17, =2 and “3” modifiers show the
relative stunding within a major category. A “17 indicates that an obligation ranks in the Higher end of the broad

rating category, 2" indicates a mid-range ranking, and “3” ranking at the lower end of the category.
4 gory g g g gory.

On May 15, 2006, Fitch Ratings raised our senior unsecured rating from BB to BB+ with a stable ratings
outlovk. With respeet to Fitch, a rating of “BBB” or above indicates an investment grade rating. A rating below
“BBRB" is considered speculative grade. A “BB” rating from Fitch indicates that there is a possibility of credit risk
developing, particularly as the result of adverse economic change over time: however, business or financial

alternatives may be available to allow financial commitments to be met. Fitch may add a “+” or a =" sign to show
the obligor’s relative standing within a major rating category. '

Our goal is to attain investment grade ratios at some point in the future.

Liguidity

Our internal and external sources of liquidity include cash generated from our operations, bank financings. and
proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt and equity securities, and proceeds from asset sales. While most of our
sources are available o us at the parent level, others are available to certain of our subsidiaries, including equity and
debt issuances from Williams Partners L.P. Our ability to raise funds in the capital markets will be impacted by our
financial condition, interest rates, market conditions, and industry conditions.
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Available Liquidity

Year Ended
December 31, 2006
{Millions)
Cash and cash equivalents® ... ... ... . . . s $2.268.6
Auction rate securities and other liquid securities ... ......... ... ... .. .. ... 103.2
Available capacity under our four unsecured revolving and letter of credit facilities
totaling $1.2 billion .. ... ... L Ll e 3049
Available capacity under our $1.5 billion unsecured revolving and letter of credit
facility ™™ L e 1,471.2
$4.147.9

* Cash and cash equivalents includes $128.7 million of funds received from third parties as colfateral. The
obligation for these amounts is reported as customer margin deposits payable on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet. Also included is $347 million of cash and cash equivalents that is being utilized by certain subsidiary and
international operations.

** This factlity is guaranteed by Williams Gas Pipeline Company, L.L.C. Northwest Pipeline and Transco each
have access to $400 million under this facility to the extent not utilized by us. Williams Partners L.P. has access
to $75 million, to the extent not utilized by us, that we guarantee.

In addition to the above, Northwest Pipeline and Transco have shelf registration statements available for the
issuance of up to $350 million aggregate principal amount of debt securities. The ability of Northwest Pipeline to
utilize their registration statement to issue debt securities is restricted by certain covenants of its debt agreements. If
the credit rating of Noerthwest Pipeline or Transco is below investment grade, they can only use their shelf
registration statements to issue debt if such debt is guaranteed by us.

Witliams Partners L.P. has a shelf registration statement available for the issuance of approximately $1.2 billion
aggregate principal amount of debt and limited partnership unit securities.

In addition, at the parent-company level, we have a shelf registration statement that allows us to issue publicly
registered debt and equity securities as needed. This registration statement, filed May 19, 2006, replaces our
previously filed shelf registration.

Sources (Uses) of Cash
Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Millions)
Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities. . ... ... .o o i $1,8806 $1,4499 $ 14879
Financing activities. . . ... .. ... ... ... .. L 1,103.2 36.5 (3,505.5)
Investing activities . ... ...... ... ... ... . i (2.321.4) (819.2) 6294
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ... ... ... $ 6714 % 6672 $(1,388.2)

Operating Activities

Our ner cash provided by operating activities in 2006 increased from 2005 due largely to higher operating
income at Midstream, partially offset by a $145 million securities litigation settlement payment in fourth quarter
2006.

Our 20035 net cash provided by operating activities decreased slightly from 2004. A primary driver in ner cash
provided by operating activities is income from continuing operations, which increased primarily as a result of
higher gas production volumes and net average realized prices for production sold. Also contributing 1o the increase
in income from continuing operations is the reduction in interest expense due to lower average borrowing levels.
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Cash payments for interest decreased $224 million from 2004. In addition to the changes in resulls of operations, net
cash inflows from margin deposits and customer margin deposits payable decreased significantly from 2004. In
2004. our Power subsidiary issued a significant number of letters of credit to replace its cash margin deposits. As the
letters of credit were issued, the counterparties returned our cash margin deposits to us, Due to fewer letters of credit
being issued to replace cash margin deposits in 2005, we have tewer receipts of margin deposits than in 2004,

Other, including changes in noncurrent assets and liabilities, includes contributions to our tax-qualified
pension plans of $42.1 million in 2006, $52.1 million in 2005 and $136.8 million in 2004. It is our policy to make
annual contributions to our tax-qualified pension plans in an amount at least equal to the greater of the actuarially
computed annual normal cost plus any unfunded actuarial accrued liability, amortized over approximately five
years, or the minimum required contribution under existing laws. Additional amounts may be contributed to
increase the funded status of the plans. In an effort to strengthen our funded status and take advantage of strong cash
flows. we contributed approximately $26.5 million, $41.1 million and $98.9 million more than our funding policy
required in 2006, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

Financing Activities

During the first quarter of 2006, we paid $25.8 million in premiums for early debt retirement costs relating to
the debt conversion previously discussed.

Sce Overview, within this section, for a discussion of 2006 debt issuances, debt retirement, and additional
financing by Williams Partners L.P.

During January 2005, we retired $200 million of 6.125 percent notes issued by Transco, which matured
January 15.2005. In the first quarter of 2005, we received approximately $273 million in proceeds from the issuance
of common stock purchased under the FELINE PACS equity forward contracts. During August 2005, we completed
an initial public offering of approximately 40 percent of our interest in Williams Partners L..P. resulting in net
proceeds of $111 million.

During 2004, we repaid long-term debt through tender offers and carly retirements. We also reduced our debt
through our FELINE PACS exchange. This noncash exchunge resulted in payments of fees and expenses reported as
premiums paid on tender offer, early debt retirements and FELINE PACS exchange.

Quarterly dividends paid on common stock increased from 7.5 cents to 9 cents per common share during the
second quarter of 2006 and totaled $206.6 million for year ended December 31, 2006. For the fourth quarter of
2005, dividends paid on common stock were 7.5 cents per share and totaled %143 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005,

Investing Activities

During 2006, capital expenditures totaled $2,509.2 million and were primarily related to Exploration &
Production’s increased drilling activity. mostly in the Piceance basin, and Northwest Pipeline’s capacity replace-
ment project. '

During 2006. we purchased $386.3 million and received $414.1 million from the sale of auction rate securities.
These instruments are utilized as a component of our overall cash management program.

In January 2005, Northwest Pipeline received an $87.9 million contract termination payment, representing
reimbursement of the net book value of the related assets. '

In January 2005, we received approximately $54.7 million proceeds from the sale of our note with Williams
Communications Group. our previously owned subsidiary (WilTel). '

During 2005, we received $310.5 million in proceeds from the Gulfstream recapitalization.

In 2004. we sold all of our restricted investments resulting in proceeds of $851.4 million. When our
$800 million revolving and letter of credit facility that required 105 percent cash collateral was replaced with
a new revolving credit facility in January 2005, we were no longer required to hold the restricted investments.
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In 2004, we had numerous asset sales resulting in proceeds in 2004 of $877.8 million.

Off-balance sheet financing arrangements and guarantees of debt or other commitiments

In January 2005, we terminated our two unsecured revolving and letter of credit facilities totaling $500 million
and replaced them with two new facilities that contain similar terms but fewer restrictions. In September 2005. we
also entered into two new revolving and letter of credit facilities that have a similar structure. (See Note 11 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

We have provided a guarantee for obligations of Williams Partners L.P. under the $1.5 billion unsecured
revolving and letter of credit facility.

We have various other guarantees and commitments which are disclosed in Notes 3, 10, 11, 14, and i5 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements. We do not believe these guarantees or the possible fulfillment of them will
prevent us from meeting our liquidity needs.

Contractual Obligations

The table below summarizes the maturity dates of our contractual obligations by period.

2008- 2010- .
2007 2009 2011 Thereafter Total
{Millions)

Long-term debt, including current portion:

Principal . ... ... ... .. $ 391 % 291 $1,385 $ 5974 § 8,041

Interest . ... ... .. ... 606 1.147 1.083 5.713 8.549
Capital leases .. ... ... ... .. ... ....... 2 3 — — 3
Operating leases(1}. .. ... ... ... . ... 227 433 366 1.121 2.147
Purchase obligations:

Fuel conversion and other service

contracts(2)(8) . ... ... .. L 249 505 495 2,377 3,626

Other(5}(6) . . ... oo 877 1.134 1,144 29434y 6,098
Other long-term liabilities, including current

portion:

Physical and financial derivatives(3}(5) .. .. 628 392 204 304 1.528

Other(7) . .. o e 72 31 16 — 119
Total, . e e e e e $3,052  $3936  $4,693 $18.432 $30,113

(1} Excludes sublease income of $1.2 billion consisting of $331 million in 2007, $564 million in 2008-2009, and
$258 million in 2010-2011. Includes a Power tolling agreement that is accounted for as an operating lease.

(2) Power has entered into certain contracts giving us the right to receive fuel conversion services as well as certain
other services associated with electric generation facilities that are currently in operation throughout the
continental United States. Certain of Power’s tolling agreements could be considered leases pursuant io the
guidance in EITF Issue 01-8, “Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease,” if in the futurc the
agreements are modified for any reason. If deemed to be a capital lease, the net present value of the fixed
demand payments would be reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheet consistent with other capital lease
obligations. and as an asset in property, plant and equipment — net. See Note 1 of Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for further information.

(3) The obligations for physical and financial derivatives are based on market information as of December 31,
2006. Because market information changes daily and has the potential to be volatile, significant changes to the
values in this category may occur. .

(4) Includes one year of annual payments totaling $2 million for contracts with indefinite termination dates.
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(5) Expected offsetting cash inflows of $7.2 billion at December 31, 2006, resuiting from product sales or net
positive settlements, are not reflected in these amounts. In addition, product sales may require additional
purchase obligations to fulfill sales obligations that are not reflected in these amounts.

(6) Includes $4.5 billion of natural gas purchase obligations at market prices at our Exploration & Production
segment. The purchased natural gas can be sold at market prices.

(7) Does not include estimated contributions to our pension and other postretirement benefit plans. We made
contributions to our pension and other postretirement benefit plans of $58 million in 2006 and 373 million in
2005. In 2007, we expect to contribute approximately $57 million to these plans (see Note 7 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements), including $40 million to our tax-qualified pension plans. There were no
minimum funding requirements to our tax-qualified pension plans in 2006 or 2003, and we do not expect any
minimum funding requirements in 2007. We anticipate that future contributions will not vary significantly from
recent historical contributions, assuming actual results do not differ significantly from estimated results for
assumptions such as discount rates, returns on plan assets, retirement rates, mortality and other significant
assumptions, and assuming no further changes in current and prospective legislation and regulations. Based on
these anticipated levels of future contributions, we do not expect to trigger any minimum funding requirements
in the future.

Effects of Inflation

Our operations in recent years have benefited from relatively low inflation rates. Approximately 46 percent of
our gross property. plant and equipment is at Gas Pipeline and the remainder is ai other operating units, Gas Pipeline
is subject to regulation, which limits recovery to historical cost. While amounts in excess of historical cost are not
recoverable under current FERC practices, we anticipate being allowed to recover and earn a return based on
increased actual cost incurred to replace existing assets. Cost-based regulation, along with competition and other
market lactors, may limit our ability to recover such increased costs. For the other operating units, operating Costs
are influenced to a greater extent by both competition for specialized services and specific price changes in oil and
natural gas and related commodities than by changes in general inflation, Crude, refined product, natural gas,
natural gas liquids and power prices are particularly sensitive to OPEC production levels and/or the market
perceptions concerning the supply and demand balance in the near future. However, our exposure to these price
changes is reduced through the use of hedging instruments.

Environmental

We are a participant in certain environmental activities in various stages including assessment studies, cleanup
operations and/or remedial processes at certain sites, some of which we currently do not own. (Sec Note |5 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.) We are monitoring these sites in a coordinated effort with other potentially
responsible parties, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), or other governmental authorities. We are
jointly and severally liable along with unrelated third parties in some of these activities and solely responsible in
others. Current estimates of the most likely costs of such activities are approximately $52 million, all of which are
recorded as liabilities on our balance sheet at December 31, 2006. We will seek recovery of approximately
$11 million of the accrued costs through future natural gas transmission rates. The remainder of these costs will be
funded from operations. During 2006. we paid approximately $12 million for cleanup and/or remediation and
monitoring activities, We expect to pay approximately $17 million in 2007 for these activities. Estimates of the most
likely costs of cleanup are generally based on completed assessment studies, preliminary results of studies or our
experience with other similar cleanup operations. At December 31, 2006, certain assessment studies were still in
process for which the ultimate outcome may yield significantly different estimates of most likely costs. Thercfore,
the actual costs incurred will depend on the final amount, type and extent of contamination discovered at these sites,
the final cleanup standards mandated by the EPA or other governmental authorities, and other factors.
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We are subject to the federal Clean Air Act and to the federal Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990, which
require the EPA to issue new regulations. We are also subject to regulation at the state and local level. In September
1998, the EPA promulgated rules designed to mitigate the migration of ground-level ozone in certain states. In
March 2004 and June 2004, the EPA promulgated additional regulation regarding hazardous air pollutants, which
may impose additional controls. Capital expenditures necessary to instail emission control devices on our Transco
gas pipeline system to comply with rules were approximately $41 million in 20606 and are estimated to be between
$35 million and $40 million through 2010. The actual costs incurred will depend on the final implementation plans
developed by each state to comply with these regulations. We consider these costs on our Transco system associated
with compliance with these environmental laws and regulations to be prudent costs incurred in the ordinary course
of business and, therefore, recoverable through its rates.
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Item 7A. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Our current interest rate risk exposure is related primarily to our debt portfolio. The majority of our debt
portfolio is comprised of fixed rate debt in order to mitigate the impact of fluctuations in interest rates. The maturity
of our long-term debt portfolio is partially influenced by the expected lives of our operating assets.

The tables below provide information about our interest rate risk-sensitive instruments as of December 31,
2006 and 2005. Long-term debt in the tables represents principal cash flows, net of (discount) premivm, and
weighted-average interest rates by expected maturity dates. The fair value of our publicly traded long-term debt is
valued using indicative year-end traded bond market prices. Private debt is valued based on the prices of similar
securities with similar terms and credit ratings.

Fair Value
December 31,
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafterl) _Total 2006
(Dollars in millions)
Long-term debt, including current
portion{4):
Fixedrate . . ............. ... $381 $153 $41 $205 81,161 $5,922 $7.863 $8,343
Interestrate. . . .....«cccvunn.. 7% 1.7% 1.7% 1.5% 7.6% 7.8%
Variablerate . .. ........... .. $10 $8 $12 $12 % 7 5 23 5 149 $ 137
Interest rate(2} ..............
Fair Value
December 31,
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010  Thereafter(l) Total 2005
{Dollars in millions)
Long-term debt, including current
portion(4):
Fixedrate ................... $104 $381 $153 $41 $205 $6,179 $7.063 $7,952
Interestrate . . . ... ... n.. 79% 77% 8% 7.8% 7.8% 7.8%
Variablerate ... ... .. .. ... ... $15 $15 $563 $12 $ 12 $ 30 $ 647 $ 647

Imterest rate(3) . ... ............

(1) Including unamortized discount and premium.

(2) The weighted-average interest rate for 2006 is LIBOR plus 1 percent.
(3) The weighted-average interest rate for 2005 was LIBOR plus 2 percent.
(4) Excludes capital leases.

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to the impact of fluctuations in the market price of natural gas, electricity, and natural gas liquids, as
well as other market factors, such as market volatility and commodity price correlations, including correlations between
natural gas and power prices. We are exposed to these risks in connection with our owned energy-related assets, our long-
term energy-related contracts and our proprietary trading activities. We manage the risks associated with these market
fluctuations using various derivatives and nonderivative energy-related contracts. The fair value of derivative contracts is
subject to changes in energy-commodity market prices, the liquidity and volatility of the markets in which the contracts
are transacted, and changes in interest rates. We measure the risk in our portfolios using a value-at-risk methodology to
estimate the potential one-day loss from adverse changes in the fair value of the portfolios.

Value at risk requires a number of key assumptions and is not necessarily representative of actual losses in fair
value that could be incurred from the portfolios. Our value-at-risk model uses a Monte Carlo method to simulate
hypothetical movements in future market prices and assumes that, as a result of changes in commodity prices, there
is 2 95 percent probability that the one-day loss in fair value of the portfolios will not exceed the value at risk. The
simulation method uses historical correlations and market forward prices and volatilities. In applying the
value-at-risk methodology, we do not consider that the simulated hypothetical movements affect the positions

76




or would cause any potential liquidity issues, nor do we consider that changing the portfolio in response to market
conditions could affect market prices and could take longer than a one-day holding period to execute. While a
one-day holding period has historically been the industry standard, a longer holding period could more accurately
represent the true market risk given market liquidity and our own credit and liquidity constraints.

We segregate our derivative contracts into trading and nontrading contracts, as defined in the following paragraphs.
We calculate value at risk separately for these two categories. Derivative contracts designated as normal purchases or
sales under SFAS 133 and nondérivative energy contracts have been excluded from our estimation of value at risk.

Trading

Our trading portfolio consists of derivative contracts entered into for purposes other than economically
hedging our commodity price-risk exposure. Qur value at risk for contracts held for trading purposes was
approximately $1 million at December 31, 2006, and $4 million at December 31, 2005. During the year ended
December 31, 2006, our value at risk for these contracts ranged from a high of $4 million to a low of $1 million.

Nontrading

Our nontrading portfolio consists of derivative contracts that hedge or could potentially hedge the price risk
exposure from the following activities;

Segment I Commodity Price Risk Exposure
Exploration & Production _ » Natural gas sales
Midstream ~* Natural gas purchases

J Power * Natural gas purchases and sales

*» Electricity purchases and sales

The value at risk for derivative contracts held for nontrading purposes was $12 million at December 31, 20006,
and $28 million at December 31, 2005. During the year ended December 31, 2006, our value at risk for these
contracts ranged from a high of $25 million to a low of $12 million. Certain of the derivative contracts held for

nontrading purposes are accounted for as cash flow hedges under SFAS 133. Though these contracts are included in
our value-at-risk calculation, any change in the fair value of these hedge contracts would generally not be reflected
in earnings until the associated hedged item atfects earnings.

Foreign Currency Risk

We have international investments that could aftect our financial results if the investments incur a permanent
decline in value as a result of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and/or the economic conditions in foreign
countries.

Internationa! investments accounted for under the cost method totaled $42 million at December 31, 2006, and
$45 million at December 31, 2005. These investments are primarily in nonpublicly traded companies for which it is
not practicable to estimate fair value. We believe that we can realize the carrying value of these investments
considering the status of the operations of the companies underlying these investments. If a 20 percent change
occurred in the value of the underlying currencies of these investments against the U.S. dollar. the fair value at
December 31, 2006, could change by approximately $8.3 million assuming a direct correlation between the
currency fluctuation and the value of the investments.

Net assets of consolidated foreign operations whose functional currency is the local currency are located
primarily in Canada and approximate 6 percent of our net assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005. These foreign
operations do not have significant transactions or financial instruments denominated in other currencies. However,
these investments do have the potential to impact our financial position, due to fluctuations in these local currencies
arising from the process of re-measuring the local functional currency into the U.S. dollar. As an example, a
20 percent change in the respective functional currencies against the U.S. dollar could have changed stockholders’
cquity by approximately $68 million at December 31, 2006.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Williams™ management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) and for the
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our internal control system was
designed to provide reasonable assurance to our management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States. Our internal controi over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
our assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are
being made only in accordance with authorization of our management and board of directors; and (3ii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of our
assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those
systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect o financial statement
preparation and presentation. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of Williams’ internal contro! over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework.
Management's assessment included an evaluation of the design of our internal control over financial reporting and
testing of the operational effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. Based on our assessment we
believe that, as of December 31, 2006, Williams’ internai control over financial reporting is effective based on those
criteria.

Ernst & Young, LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an audit report on our
assessment of the company’s internal control over financial reporting. A copy of this report is included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING
FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROI. OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The Williams Companies, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that The Williams Companies, Inc. maintained effective internal contro! over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO
criteria). The Williams Companies, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 10 obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principies. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary Lo permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely defection of unauthorized acquisition. use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the tinancial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
contrels may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that The Williams Companies, Inc, maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the
COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, The Williams Companies, [nc. maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSQ criteria,

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). the consolidated balance sheet of The Williams Companies, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and
2003, and the related consolidated statements of income. stockholders’ equity. and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2006 of The Williams Companies. Inc. and our report dated February 22,
2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thercon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
February 22, 2007
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTEREY PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Dircctors and Stockholders of
The Williams Companies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of The Williams Comnpanices, Inc. as of
December 31. 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders™ equity. and cash
flows for cach of the three vears in the period ended December 31, 2006. Our audits also included the financial
statement schedule listed in the index at ltem 153(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements and
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bourd
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well us evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion. the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of The Williams Companies. Inc. at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2006. in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial
statement schedule. when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents faicly in
all material respects the information set forth therein.

As explained in Note | to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R). Share-Based Payment and as explained in Note 7
1o the consolidated financial statements, effective December 31, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 158, Employers™ Accownting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirenent
Plans. Also. as explained in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements. effective December 31. 2005, the
Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 47. Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations.

We also have audited., in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). the effectiveness of The Williams Companies, fnc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006. based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 22, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Tulsa. Oklahoma
February 22, 2007
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(Millions, exeept per-share amounts)

Revenues:
Exploration & Production. .. .. ... ... oL e $ 14876 §$ 12691 § 7776
Gas Pipeline . .. ... 1.347.7 1.412.8 1,362.3
Midstream Gas & Liquids ... ... ... ... . . L 41247 3,232.7 2,882.6
POWeT . . 74624 9,093.9 92724
Other . e 26.5 212 328
Intercompany eliminations . . . ... .. . . (2.636.0) (2.452.1) (1.866.4)
Total revenues . . ... .. L 11,812.9 12.583.6 12.461.3
Scgment costs and expenses:
Costs and Operating eXPenses . .. . . ... .ottt e 99736 108710 10.751.7
Selling, general and administralive eXpenses. .. .o v vve it w e oo 4492 3254 3555
Other (income) eXpense — Net . . .. .. .. i 20.7 61.2 (51.6)
Total segment costs and eXPENSES . ... oottt i e 10.443.5 11.257.6 11.055.6
General corporale eXpenses .. ... ... 132.1 145.5 119.8
Securities [itigation sctelement and related costs . . .. ... .. L L 167.3 9.4 —
Operating income (loss):
Exploration & Production. .. ... ... ... ... 529.7 568.4 2239
Gas Pipeline . ... . 4303 542.2 557.6
Midstream Gas & Liquids .. ... .. .. ... . . ... ... 631.3 446.6 552.2
POWET L (223.8) (236.8) 86.5
Other . o e e 1.9 5.6 (14.5)
General COTPOTALE CXPENSES . . ... vttt ettt it e e e e, (132.1) (145.5) (119.8)
t Securities litigation settlement and related costs .. . ... ... (167.3} (9.4) —
Total operating income . .. ... 1.070.0 1.171.1 1.285.9
Interest accrued ... ... L e (676.1) 671.7) (834.4)
Interest capitalized . ... .. ... . . 17.2 7.2 6.7
Investing income . .. ... ... .. 173.0 237 48.0
Early debt retirement CoSS. . .. vt e e e (31.4) (0.4) (282.1)
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries . .. ... ... ... .. ... ... (40.0) (25.7) 21.4)
Other income —NEL . . ... 26.4 27.1 21.8
Income from continuing operations before income 1axes and cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle . . ... .. ... .. L 539.1 531.3 224.5
Provision for income taxes. ... ... ... e 206.3 2139 131.3
Income from CONUNUINE OPErations . . . ... v vt it e it e e e ans 3328 3174 93.2
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . . .. .. ... ... . . ... (24.3) 2.1) 70.5
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. . . .. .. ... ... 308.5 3153 163.7
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . .. ... .. ... ... ... ... — (1.7) —
Net inCome . ... $ 3085 § 3136 S 1637
Basic earnings {loss) per common share:
Income from continuing operations . . .. .. ... ... .. .. 5 56 % S5 0% 18
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . ... ....... ... ... ......... (.04 — 13
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . .. ... .. .. 52 35 3l
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .. ... ... . .......... — — —
Netincome . .. .o e $ 52 8 S35 0§ 31
Weighted-average shares (thousands). . ... ... .. . i 595,053 570,420 529,188
Diluted eamings (loss) per common share:
Income from continuing operations . . . .. . ... .. e 3 535 0§ 53 0% 18
Income (loss) from discontinued operations . . . ... ... ... ... ... (.04) — 13
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ... . ... ... .51 53 31
Cumulative cffect of change in accounting principle . ... ..... ... .. ... .. — — —
Netincome . ... e 5 T 53 0% 31
Weighted-average shares (thousands). . ... .. ... . .. 608.627 605.847 535611

See accompanying notes.
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
Current ussets:

Cash and cash equivalents .. ... ..o
Restricted Cashi. o o ot e it e e e
Accounts and notes receivable (net of allowance of $15.9 million in 2006 and

S86.6 million in 2005) .. ..o e
IAVEMEOMIES « + v v v v e e et e oo a e e
DErIVILIVE ASSEIS . « v o o et ettt e e e e e
Margin depoSits . . .. ..o o i
Deferred INCOME TAXES .+ o v v v v ot tnr e in e ais o s
Other current assets and deferred charges .. ... ... .o

TOtal CUTTCNE ASSELS « + o v v e e e e e m s m et e s am e e e
Restricted Cash. « oottt e
TEVESHITICTIES © « v v v v e e e e e b n et mm e e a e e e
Property. plant and equipment — el .. .. ..o
DIETIVITIVE @SSEIS « « v v o s et et e e e it e
GOOAWIIL . . o e e
Other assets and deferred Charges. . .. ...

Tl S8 . + v o v e et e e et e e e e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES Payable . . ..o
Accrued HabIlilies . .. o oo e
Customer margin deposits payable ... ... ..o i
Derivative Habilities . . ..ot v e e
Long-term debt due within ONe YEar . ... ... oerievarn s

Total current Habilities . ... . oo
Long-term debl . ...
Deferred iNCOME LIXES « o o v v v va b i ananeenenamo e s e
Derivative Habilities . .« vt oo e
Other liabilities and deferred INCOME .. ... oo v o
Contingent liabilities and commiuments (Note 15)

Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries. ..o
Stockholders™ equity:

Common stock (960 million shares authorized at $1 par value; 602.8 million
shares issued wt December 31, 2006, and 579.1 million shares issued at
December 31.2005). . .ottt e

Capital in excess of par valtie . ... oo

Accumulated defiCit . . oo ut e

Accumulated other comprehensive Joss ... ..o e

[ T

Less treasury stock. at cost (5.7 million shares of common stock in 2006 and 2005). .
Total stockholders” equity . . . ..o oot
Total liabilities and stockholders’ Bquity ... ...t

See accompanying notes.
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December 31,

2006

2005

(Dollars in millions, except
per-share amounts)

$ 22686 $ 1.597.2
91.6 92.9
1.212.9 1.613.8
241.4 272.6
1,878.2 5.299.7
59.3 349.2
3372 241.0
232.8 230.9
63220  9.697.3
34.5 36.5
866.0 887.8
14.180.7 124092
23849 46569
1.011.4 1.014.5
602.9 740.4
$25,402.4  $29.442.6
$ 1.1485 3 1.360.6
1.241.4 1.123.1
128.7 320.7
1.782.9 5.523.2
392.1 1226
4693.6 8.450.2
7.622.0 7.590.5
2.879.9 2.508.9
2.043.8 4,331.]
1.009.1 920.3
1,080.8 214.1
602.8 579.1
6.605.7 6.327.8
(1,0340)  (1.135.9)
(60.1) (297.8)

_ (4.5)
6,114.4 5,468.7
(41.2) (41.2)
6.073.2 5427.5
$25.402.4  $29.442.6




THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

Accumulated
Capital in Other
Common  Excess of Accumulated Comprehensive Treasury
Stock Par Vatue Deficit Loss Other Stock Total
(Dollars in millions)
Balunce, December 31,2003, .. .. ... ... . ... $5240  $5195.0 - $(1.426.8) $121.0) F28.0 3412y 54,1021
Comprehensive income:
Netincome — 2004 .. ... ... ... ..., . — — 163.7 — — — 163.7
Other comprehensive loss:
Net unrealized losses on cash flow hedges, net of
reclassification adjustments .. ... ... ... — — — (142.7 — — (142.n
Net unrealized appreciation on marketable equity
securities, net of reclassification adjustments . . — — — LY — — 1.9
Foreign currency transhation adjustments . . . . . . — — — 15.8 — — 15.8
Minimum pension liability adjustment . . .. .. .. — — -— 1.8 — — 1.8
Total other comprehensive loss . ... ... ... ... (123.2)
Total comprehensive income ... ... oL 40.5
Issuance of common stock and settlement of forward
contracts as a result of FELINE PACS exchange . . . 33.1 7829 — — — — 3t16.0
Cash dividends — Commen stock ($.08 per share) . . . — — (43.4) —_ — — (43.4)
Allowance for and repayment of stockholders™ notes . . — — — — 6.1 — 6.1
Stock award trunsactions, including tax benefit . . . .. 6.7 279 — — — — 346
Balance. December 31,2004, ... .. . ... .. ... 563.8 6.005.9 (1,306.5) (244.2) (21.9)  1.2) 49559
Comprehensive income:
Netincome — 20005 .. .. ... ... ... ...... — — 3136 — — — 3i3.6
Other comprehensive loss:
Net unrealized losses on cash fluw hedges. net of
reclassification adjustments . .. ... ... ... — — —_ (65.4) — — (65.4)
Foreign currency trapslation adjustments . .. .. . — — — 11.4 — - 1.4
Minimum pension liability adjustment . . . .. ... — — 4 — 4
Total other comprehensive loss .. ... ... ... (53.6)
Total comprehensive income .. ... ... L L 260.0
lssuance of common stock and setttement of forward
contracts as a result of FELINE PACS exchange . . . 10.9 2619 — — — - 2728
Cash dividends — Common stock ($.25 per share) . . . — _— (143.00 —_ _ — (143.0)
Allowance for and repayment of stockholders™ notes . | — — — — 174 — 174
Stock award transactions. including tax benefit . . . .. 4.4 60.0 — — — - 04,4
Balance, December 31,2005, . 0. ... ... ... 579.1 6327.8 (1.135.9) (297.8) (4.5)  (41.2) 54275
Comprehensive income:
Netincome —2006 .. ... .. .. ... — — 308.5 — — — 308.5
Other comprehensive income:
Net unrealized gains on cash flow hedges, net off
reclassification adjustments .. ... ... L. — — — 394.2 — -— 394.2
Foreign currency translation adjustments . . . . . . — — — 4.7) — - (4.7}
Mintmum pension liability adjustiment . .. .. . .. — — —_ (RY)] _ -— (.9}
Total other comprehensive income . .. ... ... ... 388.6
Total comprehensive income . ... ... L L., 697.1
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158, net of
tax:
Pension benefits:
Prior service cost . ... ... . ... L., — -— —_ (3.5) — — (3.5)
Net actuarial toss . . .. ... ..., ... ....... _— — — (1507 —_ — (150,71
Minimum pension liability ... ... .. .. ..., — — — 53 — —_ 5.3
Other postretirement benelits:
Prior service cost .. ... ... ... ... .. — — — 4.1 —— — {4.1)
Net actuarial gain ... .................. — — — 2.1 — — 21
Issuance of common stock from 5.5% debentures
conversion {Note 12). . . . ... ... ... . ... . ... 20.2 193.2 — —_ — —_ 2134
Cush dividends — Common stock ($.35 per share) . . . — — {206.0) — _ —_ (206.6)
Repayment of stockholders” notes . . . .. ... ... ... — — — — 45 — 4.5
Stock award transactions, including tax benefit . . ... 3.5 84.7 — — —_ — BR.2
Balance, December 33, 2006, . . ... . ... ... ..., 56028  $6.605.7  F(1.034.0) $ (60,1} $ — 341.2) $6.073.2

See accompanying notes.
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
{Millions)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES: .
T Ty RN $ 3085 § 3136 § 1637
Adjustments (o reconcile (v nel cash provided by operations:
{Income) loss from discontinued Operations . . ... .. 243 2.1 (70.5)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . .. ..o e — 1.7 —
Depreciation, depletion and AMOTUZUEON . + o o oo e i v e 865.5 740.0 608.5
Provision (benefit) for deferred InComMe MRS . . . oo o on v o 169.2 (45.3) 123.0
Provision fur loss on investments, property and ofher assets ... ..o 28,5 1187 86.7
Net gain on dispositions of assels ... . (22.5) (58.3) (18.1)
Early debt retitement COsIS. . ..o o oo m i 31.4 4 282.1
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiaries. . ... oo e 40.0 5.7 214
Amortization of stock-based awards. . .. ... Lo 439 127 9.5
Cash provided (used) by changes in current asscts and liabilities:
Restricted Cashi. « v o ot oo et e 4.2 (14.00 {14.1}
Accounts and notes receivable . . . ... s 378.1 (240.9) 2346
IIVETHOTIES « « o v e e v e e e e e e e b e e 3.3 9.7 (18.3)
Margin deposits and customer margin deposits payable, ... ... 919 85.5 414.1
Other current assets and deferred Charges. . ..o oo v e (34.2) 5.9 112.8
Accounts payable . .. L (183.9) 2325 (118.5)
Accrued HaBilES . . o oo ot e e (147.9) 229 (218.9)
Changes in current and nuncurrent derivative assets and liabilities . . . ... 303.2 173.9 (160.4)
Changes in noncurren testricted €ash . ... Lo — —_ 86.5
Other, including ehanges in noncurreat assets and Habillties . . v v v e e (51.5) 82.5 (2.0
Net cash provided by operating sctivities of continuing OPERALIONS . . . oo 1.883.0 1.449.9 14721
Net cash provided by operating activitics of discontinued OPETAIONS . . v v e v e 6.6 —_— 15.8
Net cash provided by operating uctivitics . . .. ..o e 1.889.6 1.449.9 1.487.9
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds From long-term debl . ...t 1.299.4 _— 75.0
Payments of long-term debt, ... oL (776.7) {251.2)  (3.263.2)
Proceeds from issuance of common $toCk. - ..o 343 309.9 20.6
Proceeds from sale of fimited partner units of consoliduted pannership. .o, .o 863.4 1110 —
Tax benefit of stock-based awards ... oo .o e 15.5 — —
Dividends Paid . . . oo e (206.6) (143.00 (43.4)
Payments for debt issuance costs and amendment fees . . . . .o (37.0) (29.6) (26.0)
Premiums paid on tender offer, early debt retirements and FELINE PACS exchange . . ... ... .. + o (25.8) (.4) {246.9)
Dividends and distributions paid to minority iDMETEsIS . ..o o v (36.2) 0.7 (5.9
Changes in FeStACIE CSH . - o v e e e e (.6) 2.7 217
Chunges in cash OVErdrafls . ... ..o oot (25.3) 63.2 (21.4)
OMET — 1« « o o e et e e (1.2) —_ (14.8)
Net cash provided {used) by financing activities of conlinuing Operations . . .« ... .- 1,103.2 36.5 (3.504.3)
Net cash used by financing activities of discontinued OPETAONS . .« v v v v e — — (1.2)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities .. ... oo 1.103.2 36.5 (3,505.5)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Property. plant and equipment:
Capital expendifUres . . .. .o v b v (2.509.2)  {(1,299.0) {(787.4)
Net proceeds from disposilions . ... ..o oe i 229 47.3 12.0
Proceeds from contract Iermination PAYMERT . . ... v v r v m s 33 879 —
Changes in accounts payable and accrued Habilities .« v e v e 104.7 65.1 —
Purchases of investments/advances o affiliates ... ..o (48.9) (11s8.1) (2.1
Purchases of QUCHON TA1E SECUTTHES . . . . . vt v e i e (386.3) (224.00) —_
Purchases of restricted IMVESUMENTS . . . ... oo — —_ {471.8)
Proceeds from sales 0f BUSINESSES . . . .o o v v oo _ 314 §77.8
Proceeds from sales of auction MIE SECUMLIES . . . . ..o o e 414.1 1379 —
Proceeds from sale of restricted INVESUNENES . . L o0 v v e — — 8514
Proceeds from dispositions of investments and other a88CI8 .o v oo 62.3 64.2 94.1
Proceeds received on sale of note from WilTel .. ..o oo — 54.7 —
Payments received on notes receivable from WilTel . ... . oo o e — — 691
Procesds from Gulfstream recapitalization ... . .o oo _— 3105 —
o T T A I I 157 20,9 (12.9)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities of continuing Operations . . .. ... (2,321.4) (819.2) 630.2
Net cash used by investing activities of discontinued OPEFULONS . o oo v v v e — — (.8)
Net cash provided (used) by investing ACLVILES + v v v e i e (2,321.4) (819.2) 6294
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ..o oo 6714 667.2 (1,388.2)
Cash and cash cquivalents at beginning of Year. ... ..o 1.597.2 930.0 2318.2
Cash and cash equivalents at end OF Year. . oo oo ou e $22686 51597.2 § 9300

See accompanying notes.
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC,
- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Description of Business, Basis of Presentation, and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

Operations of our company are located principally in the United States and arc organized into the following
reporting segments: Exploration & Production, Gas Pipeline, Midstream Gas & Liguids (Midstream}, and Power.

Exploration & Production includes natural gas development, production and gas management activities
primarily in the Rocky Mountain and Mid-Continent regions of the United States and oil and natural gas interests in
Argenting,

Gas Pipeline is comprised primarily of two interstate natural gas pipelines, as well as investments in natural gas
pipeline-related companies. The Gas Pipeline operating segments have been aggregated for reporting purposes and
include Northwest Pipeline Corporation (Northwest Pipeline), which extends from the San Juan basin in north-
western New Mexico and southwestern Colorado to Oregon and Washington, and Transcontinental Gas Pipc Line
Corporation (Transco). which extends from the Gulf of Mexico region 1o the northeastern United States. In addition.
we own a 50 percent interest in Gulfstream. Gulfstream is a natural gas pipeline system extending from the Mobile
Bay area in Alabama to markets in Florida.

Midstyeam is comprised of natural gas gathering and processing and treating facilities in the Rocky Mountain
and Gulf Coast regions of the United States, oil gathering and transportation facilities in the Gulf Coast region of the
United States, majority-owned natural gas compression facilities in Venezuela, and assets in Canada, consisting
primarily of a natural gas liquids extraction facility and a fractionation plant.

Power is an energy services provider that buys, sells, stores, and transports energy and energy-related
commodities, primarily power and natural gas. on a wholesale level. Power focuses on its objectives of minimizing
financial risk, maximizing cash flow, meeting contractual commitments, executing new contracts to hedge its
portfolio, and providing commodity marketing and supply services that support our natural gas businesses.

Basis of Presentation

Uniess indicated otherwise, the information in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements relates to
our continuing operations.

Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current classifications.

In February 2005, we formed Williams Partners L.P., a limited partnership engaged in the business of
gathering, transporting and processing natural gas and fractionating and storing natural gas liquids. We currently
own approximately 22.5 percent of Williams Partners L.P., including the interests of the general partner, which is
whoily owned by us. Considering the presumption of control of the general partner in accordance with Emerging
Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 04-5, “Determining Whether a General Partner. or the General Partners as a
Group, Controls a Limited Partnership or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights,” Williams
Partners L.P. is consolidated within our Midstream segment.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of our corporate parent and our majority-owned or
controlled subsidiaries and investments. We apply the equity method of accounting for investments in unconsol-
idated companies in which we and our subsidiaries own 20 to 50 percent of the voting interest, or otherwise exercise
significant influence over operating and financial policies of the company.
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Use of estimates

Management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Significant estimates and ussurnptions_include:
« Impairment assessments of investments, long-lived assets and goodwill:
« Litigation-related contingencies;
« Valuations of derivatives;
» Environmental remediation obligations;
» Hedge accounting correlations and probability;
« Realization of deferred income lax assets;
« Valuation of Exploration & Production’s reserves;
« Asset retirement obligations;
« Pension and postretirement valuation variables.

These estimates are discussed further throughout these notes.

Cush and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes demand and time deposits, certificates of deposit, and other marketable
securities with maturities of three months or less when acquired. ’

Restricted cash

Restricted cash within current assets consists primarily of collateral required by certain loan agreements for
our Venezuelan operations, €scrow accounts established to fund payments required by Power's California settle-
ment {sce Note 15), and an escrow account used to collect and manage margin dollars. Restricted cash within
noncurrent assets relates primarily Lo certain borrowings by our Venezuelan operations as previously mentioned and
jetters of credit. We do not expect this cash to be released within the next twelve months. The current and noncurrent
restricted cash is primarily invested in short-term money market accounts with financial institutions.

The classification of restricted cash is determined based on the expected term of the collateral requirement and
not necessarily the maturity date of the investment vehicle.

Auction rate securities

Auction rate sccurities are instruments with long-term underlying maturities, but for which an auction is
conducted periodically, as specified, to reset the interest ratc and allow investors to buy or selt the instruments.
Because auctions generally occur more often than annually, and because we hold these investments in order to meet
short-term liguidity needs, we classify auction rate securities as short-term and include them in other curreni assels
and deferred charges on our Consolidated Balance Sheet. Consistent with our other securities that are classified as
available-for-sale, our Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows reflects the gross amount of the purchases of auction
rate securities and the proceeds from sales of auction rate securities. ‘

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are carried on a gross basis, with no discounting, less the allowance for doubtful accounts.
We estimate the allowance for doubtful accounts based on existing economic conditions, the financial conditions of
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {Continued)

the customers and the amount and age of past due accounts. Receivables are considered past due if full pavment is
not received by the contractual due date. Interest income related to past due accounts receivable is generally
recognized at the time full payment is received or collectibility is assured. Past due accounts are generally written
off against the allowance for doubtful accounts only after all collection attempts have been exhausted.

Inventory valuation

Allinventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. We determine the cost of certain natural gas inventories
held by Transco using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) cost method. We determine the cost of the remaining inventories
primarily using the average-cost method.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost. We base the carrying value of these assets on estimales,
assumptions and judgments relative to capitalized costs. useful lives and salvage values.

As regulated entities, Northwest Pipeline and Transco provide for depreciation using the straight-line method
at Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)-prescribed rates. Depreciation rates used for major regulated
gas plant facilities for all years presented, are as follows:

Category of Property Depreciation Rates
Gathering facilities. . ... ... ... . 0% - 3.80%

Storage facilities .. ... ... L. 1.05% - 2.50%
Onshore transmission facilities .. . ....... ... ... ... . . ... .. .. .. . ... . 2.35% -7.25%
Offshore transmission facilities. . . ......... ... . ... . . . .. .. ... ... ... . 0.85% - 1.50%

Depreciation for nonregulated entities is provided primarily on the stratght-line method over estimated useful
lives. except as noted below for oil and gas exploration and production activities. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Estimated

Useful Lives
Category of Property (In years)
Natwral gas gathering and processing facilities. .. ......... ... ... . . . . ... . . .. . .. 10 to 40
Power generation facilities . ... .. ... ... . .. 30
Transportation equipment .. ... ... o 330
Building and improvements ... ... ... S5to45
Rightof way .. ... 4 10 40
Office furnishings and computer sofiware and hardware. ... ... ... .. ... .. ... ... . 31020

Gatins or losses from the ordinary sale or retirement of property, plant and equipment for regulated pipelines are
credited or charged to accumulated depreciation; other gains or tosses are recorded in other (inconte) expense — net
included in operating income, ‘ ‘

Ordinary maintenance and repair costs are generally expensed as incurred. Costs of major renewals and
replacements are capitalized as property, plant, and equipment — net. )

Oil and gas exploration and production activities are accounted for under the successful efforts method. Costs
incurred in connection with the drilling and equipping of exploratory wells, as applicable. are capitalized as
incurred. If proved reserves are not found. such costs are charged to expense. Other exploration costs, including
lease rentals, are expensed as incurred. All costs related to development wells, including refated production
equipment and lease acquisition costs, are capitalized when incurred. Unproved properties are evaluated annually,
or as conditions warrant, to determine any impatrment in carrying value. Depreciation, depletion and amortization
is provided under the units of production method on a field basis.
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Proved properties, including developed and undeveloped, and costs associated with unproven reserves, are
assessed for impairment using estimated future cash tlows ona field basis. Estimating future cash flows involves the
use of complex judgments such as estimation of the proved and unproven oil and gas reserve quantities, risk
associated with the different categories of oil and gas reserves, timing of development and production. expecied
future commodity prices. capital expenditures. and production costs.

We record an asset and a liability equal to the present value of each expected future asset retirement obligation
(AROQ). The ARO asset is depreciated in a manner consistent with the depreciation of the underlying physical asset.
We measure changes in the liability due to passage of time by applying an interest method of allocation. This
amount is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the liability and as a corresponding accretion expense
included in other (income) expense — net included in operating income, except for regulated entities, for which the
liability is offset by a regulatory asset.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of the assets of businesses acquired. [t is evaluated
annually for impairment by first comparing our management’s estimate of the fair value of a reporting unit with its
carrying value, including goodwill. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a computation of
the implied fair value of the goodwill is compared with its related carrying value. If the carrying value of the
reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill. an impairment loss is recognized in the
amount of the excess. We have goodwill of approximately $1 billion at December 31, 2006, and 2005, at our
Exploration & Production segment.

When a reporting unit is sold or classified as held for sale. any goodwill of that reporting unit is included in its
carrying value for purposes of determining any impairment or gain/loss on sale. 1f a portion of a reporting unit with
goodwill is sold or classified as held for sale and that asset group represents a business, a portion of the reporting
unit’s goodwill is allocated 1o and included in the carrying value of that asset group. None of the operations sold
during 2005 and 2004 represented reporting units with goodwill or businesses within reporting units 1o which
goodwill was required to be alfocated.

Judgments and assumptions are inherent in our management’s estimate of undiscounted future cash flows used
1o determine the estimate of the reporting unit’s fair value. The use of alternate judgments andfor assumptions could
result in the recognition of different levels of impairment charges in the financial statements.

Treasury stock

Treasury stock purchases are accounted for under the cost method whereby the entire cost of the acquired stock
is recorded as treasury stock. Gains and losses on the subsequent reissuance of shares are credited or charged to
capital in excess of par value using the average-cost method.

Derivative instruments and hedging activities

We utilize derivatives to manage our commodity price risk. These instruments consist primarily of futures
contracts, sSwap agreciments, option contracts, and forward contracts involving short- and long-term purchases and
sales of a physical energy commodity. We execute most of these transactions on an organized commodity exchange
or in over-the-counter markets in which quoted prices exist for active periods. For contracts with terms that exceed
the time period for which actively quoted prices arc availuble, we determine fair value by estimating commodity
prices during the illiquid periods utilizing internally developed valuations incorporating information obtained from
commaodity prices in actively quoted markets. quoted prices in less active markets, prices reflected in current
transactions, and other market fundamental analysis.

We report the fair value of derivatives, except for those for which the normal purchases and normal sales
exception has been elected. on the Consolidated Balance Sheet in derivative assets and derivative liabilities as

38




THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
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either current or noncurrent. We determine the current and noncurrent classification based on the timing of expected
future cash flows of individual contracts.

The accounting for changes in the fair value of a commodity derivative is governed by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 133 and depends on whether the derivative has been designated in a hedging
relationship and whether we have elected the normal purchases and normal sales exception. The accounting for the
change in fair value can be summarized as follows:

Derivative Treatment Accounting Method

Normal purchases and normal sales exception Accrual accounting
Designated in a qualifying hedging relationship Hedge accounting

All other derivatives Mark-to-market accounting

We have elected the normal purchases and normal sales exception for certain short- and long-term purchases
and sales of a physical energy commodity. Under accrual accounting, any change in the fair value of these
derivatives is not reflected on the balance sheet after the initial election of the exception. Some contracts had a fair
value at the date of the election and are reflected on the balance sheet at their fair value on the date of the election
less the amount of that fair value realized during settlement periods subsequent to the election. For other contracts,
we made the election at the inception of the contract and thus there is no recorded fair value.

We have also designated a hedging relationship for certain commodity derivatives. Prior to September 2004,
Power’s derivative contracts did not qualify for hedge accounting because of our stated intent to exit the Power
business. In September 2004, we announced our decision to continue operating the Power business. As a result of
that decision, Power’s derivative contracts became eligible for hedge accounting, Power elected cash flow hedge
accounting on a prospective basis beginning October |, 2004, for certain qualifying derivative contracts.

For a derivative to qualify for designation in a hedging relationship, it must meet specific criteria and we must
maintain appropriate documentation. We establish hedging relationships pursuant to our risk management policies.
We evaluate the hedging relationships at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis to determine whether
the hedging relationship is, and is expected to remain, highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value
or cash flows attributable to the underlying risk being hedged. We also regularly assess whether the hedged
forecasted transaction is probable of eccurring. If a derivative ceases to be or is no longer expected to be highly
effective, or if we believe the likelihood of occurrence of the hedged forecasted transaction is no longer probable,
hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively, and future changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognized
currently in revenues.

For commaodity derivatives designated as a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of the change in fair value of
the derivative is reported in other comprehensive income (loss) and reclassified into earnings in the period in which
the hedged item affects earnings. Any ineffective portion of the derivative’s change in fair value is recognized
currently in reverites. Gains or losses deferred in accumulated arher comprehensive loss associated with terminated
derivatives, derivatives that cease to be highly effective hedges, derivatives for which the forecasted transaction is
reasonably possible but no longer probable of occurring, and cash flow hedges that have been otherwise
discontinued remain in accumulated other comprehensive loss until the hedged item affects earnings. If it becomes
probable that the forecasted transaction designated as the hedged item in a cash flow hedge will not occur, any gain
or loss deferred in qccumulated other comprehensive loss is recognized in revenues at that time. The change in
likelihood is a judgmental decision that includes qualitative assessments made by management.

For commodity derivatives that are not designated in a hedging relationship, and for which we have not elected
the normal purchases and normal sales exception, we report changes in fair value currently in revenues.
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Certain gains and losses on derivative instruments included in the Consolidated Statement of Income are netted
together (o a single net gain or loss. while other gains and losses are reported on a gross basis. Gains and losses
recorded on a net basis include:

* Unrealized gains and losses on all derivatives that are not designated as hedges and for which we have not
elected the normal purchases and normal sales exception:

* The ineffective portion of unrealized gains and losses on derivatives that are designated as cash flow
hedges:

* Realized gains and losses on all derivatives that settle financially:
* Realized gains and losses on derivatives held for trading purposes:
* Realized gains and losses on derivatives entered into as a pre-contemplated buy/sell arrangement.

Realized gains and losses on derivatives that require physical delivery, and which are not held for trading
purposes nor were entered into as a pre-conlemplated buy/sell arrangement. are recorded on a gross basis. In
reaching our conclusions on this presentation, we evaluated the indicators in EITF Issue No. 99-19 “Reporting
Revenue Gross as  Principal versus as an Agent.” including whether we uct as principal in the trunsaction; whether
we have the risks and rewards of ownership. including credit risk: and whether we have latitude in establishing
prices.

Assessment of energy-related contracts for lease classification

EITF 01-8, “Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains u Lease.” became effective on July 1, 2003, and
provides guidance for determining whether certain contracts such as transportation, transmission, storage, full
requirements, and tolling agreements are cxecutory service arrangements or leases pursuant to SFAS No. 13,
“Accounting for Leases.” The consensus is applied prospectively to arrangements consummated or modified after
July 1,2003. Prior to July 1. 2003, we accounted for energy-related contracts as executory service arrangements and
continue this accounting unless a contract is subsequently modified and evaloated to be a lease. For executory
service arrangements, the monthly demand payments are expensed as incurred. Cerain of Power's tolling
agreements will likely be considered leases under the consensus if the tolling agreements are ever modified.
One tolling agreement was modified in 2004 and is accounted for as an operating lease. For tolling agreements that
are moditied and deemed to be operating leases, the monthly demand payments are expensed as incurred. If the
monthly demand payments are not incurred on a straight-line basis. expense is nevertheless recognized on a
straight-line basis. It such tolling agreements are modified and deemed to be capital leases. the net present value of
the demand payments would be reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as long-term debt and as an asset in
properiy, plant and equipment — net.

Gas Pipeline revenues

Revenues from the transportation of gas are recognized in the period the service is provided, and revenues for
sales of products are recognized in the period of delivery. Gas Pipeline is subject to FERC regulations and,
accordingly, certain revenues collecied may be subject to possible refunds upon final orders in pending rate cases.
Gas Pipeline records estimates of rate refund liabilities considering Gas Pipeline and other third-party regulatory
proceedings, advice of counsel and estimated total exposure. as discounted and risk weighted, as well as collection
and other risks.

Exploration & Production revenues

. Revenues from the domestic production of natural gas in properties for which Exploration & Production has an
interest with other producers are recognized based on the actual volumes sold during the period. Any differences
hetween volumes sold and entitlement volumes, based on Exploration & Production’s net warking interest, that are
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determined to be nonrecoverable through remaining production are recognized as accounts receivable or accounts
payable, as appropriate. Cumulative differences between volumes sold and entitlement volumes are not significany.

Revenues, other than Gas Pipeline, Exploration & Production, and energy commodity risk management and
trading activities

Revenues generally are recorded when services are performed or products have been delivered.
g ¥ p

Impairment of long-lived assets and investments

We evaluate the long-lived assets of identifiable business activities for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate, in our management’s judgment, that the carrying value of such assets may not be
recoverable. When an indicator of impairment has occurred, we compare our management's estimate of undis-
counted future cash flows attributable to the assets to the carrying value of the assets to determine whether an
impairment has occurred. We apply a probability-weighted approach to consider the likelihood of different cash
flow assumptions and possible outcomes including selling in the near term or holding for the remaining estimated
useful life. If an impairment of the carrying value has occurred, we determine the amount of the impairment
recognized in the financial statements by estimating the fair value of the assets and recording a loss for the amount
that the carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value.

For assets identified to be disposed of in the future and considered held for sale in accordance with
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” we compare the carrying
value to the estimated fair value less the cost to sell to determine if recognition of an impairment is required. Until
the assets are disposed of, the estimated fair value, which includes estimated cash flows from operations until the
assumed date of sale, is recalculated when related events or circumstances change.

We evaluate cur investments for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate, in our
management’s judgment, that the carrying value of such investments may have experienced an other-than-tempo-
rary decline in value. When evidence of loss in value has occurred, we compare our estimate of fair value of the
investment to the carrying value of the investment to determine whether an impairment has occurred. If the
estimated fair value is less than the carrying value and we consider the decline in value to be other-than-temporary,
the excess of the carrying value over the fair value is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as an
impatrment.

Judgments and assumptions are inherent in our management’s estimate of undiscounted future cash flows and
an asset’s fair value. Additionally, judgment is used to determine the probability of sale with respect to assets
considered for disposal. The use of alternate judgments and/or assumptions could result in the recognition of
different levels of impairment charges in the consolidated financial statements.

Capitalization of interest

We capitalize interest on major projects during construction. Interest is capitalized on borrowed funds and,
where regulation by the FERC exists, on internally generated funds as a component of other income — ner. The
rates used by regulated companies are calculated in accordance with FERC rules. Rates used by unregulated
companies are based on the average interest rate on debt. The benefit of interest capitalized on internally generated
funds for regulated entities is reported in other income — net below operating income.

Additionaily. Exploration & Production capitalizes interest on those construction projects with construction
periods of at least three months and a total project cost in excess of $1 million. Exploration & Production capitalizes
interest on equity investments when the investee is undergoing construction in preparation for its planned principal
operations.
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Emplovee stock-based awurds

Prior to January 1. 2006. we accounted for stock-based awards to employees and nonmanagement directors
(sce Note 13) under the recognition and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion
No. 25. “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations, as permitted by Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation™
(SFAS No. 123). Compensation cost for stock options was not recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Income for the years prior to 2006 as all options granted had an exercise price equal to the market value of the
underlying common stock on the date of the grant. Prior to January 1, 2006, compensation cost was recognized for
restricted stock units. Effective January t. 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FASB
Statement No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment™ (SFAS No. 123(R)), using the modified-prospective method. Under
this method, compensation cost recognized in 2006 includes: (1) compensation cost for all share-based payments
granted through December 31, 2005. but for which the requisite service period had not been completed as of
December 31, 2005. based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123,
and (2) compensation cost for most share-based payments granted subsequent to December 31, 2005, based on the
grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). The performance targets for
certain performance-based restricted stock units have not been established and therefore expense is not currently
recognized. Expense associated with these performance-based awards will be recognized in future periods when
performance targets are established. Results for prior periods have not been restated.

Total stock-based compensation expense for the year ending December 31, 2006, was $43.9 miltion. This
amount reflects a reduction of $.3 million of previously recognized compensation cost for restricted stock units
related to the estimated number of awards expected to be forfeited. This adjustment is not considered material for
reporting as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. Measured but unrecognized stock-based
compensation expense at December 31, 2006, was approximately $50 million, which does not include the effect of
estimated forfeitures of $1.9 million. This amount is comprised of approximately $13 million related to stock
options and approximately $37 million related to restricted stock units. These amounts are expected (o be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.9 years.

As aresult of adopting SFAS No. 123(R), our income from continuing operations before income taxes and net
income for the year ending December 31, 2006, are approximately $18.4 million and $11.3 million lower,
respectively, than if we continued to account for share-based compensation under APB No. 25. For the year ending
December 31, 2006, both basic and diluted earnings per share are $.02 lower duc to the implementation of
SFAS No. [23(R).
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The following table illustrates the effect on ner income and earnings per common share for the years ending
December 31, 2005 and 2004, if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to options
granted. For purposes of this pro forma disclosure, the value of the options was estimated using a Black-Scholes
option pricing model and amortized to expense over the vesting period of the options.

Years Ended
December 31,
2005 2004

(Dollars in millions,
except per share

amounts)

Net income, as reported ... ... .. e $313.6  $163.7
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in the consolidated

statement of income, net of related tax effects . . .......... . ... .. ... ... 8.9 8.9
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair

value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects. . ............. U7 (25
Proformanetincome. ... ... .. ... .. . .. ... $305.5 §1475
Earnings per common share:

Basic—asreported .. ... ... .. . e $ 55 % 3l

Basic —proforma . .. ... .. $ 54 § .28

Diluted —asreported . .. .. ... .. .. ... $ 53 3 .31

Diluted —proforma. .. ... .. ... . $ 52 § .28

Pro forma amounts for 2005 include compensation expense from awards of our company stock made in 2005,
2004, 2003, and 2002. Pro forma amounts for 2004 include compensation expense from awards made in 2004, 2003,
2002, and 2001. Also included in 2004 pro forma expense is $3.3 million of incremental expense associated with a
stock option exchange procrram

ncome taxes

We include the operations of our subsidiaries in our consolidated tax return. Deferred income taxes are
computed using the liability method and are provided on all temporary differences between the financial basis and
the tax basis of our assets and liabilities. Our management’s judgment and income tax assumptions are used to
determine the levels, if any, of valuation allowances associated with deferred tax assets.

Earnings (loss) per common share

Basic earnings (loss) per common share is based on the sum of the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding and issuable restricted stock units. Diluted earnings (loss) per common share includes any
dilutive effect of stock options, unvested restricted stock units and, for applicable periods presented, convertible
debt, unless otherwise noted.

Foreign currency translation

Certain of our foreign subsidiaries and equity method investees use their local currency as their functional
currency. These foreign currencies include the Canadian dollar, British pound and Euro. Assets and liabitities of
certain foreign subsidiaries and equity investees are translated at the spot rate in effect at the applicable reporting
date, and the combined statements of operations and our share of the results of operations of our equity affiliates are
translated into the U.S. dollar at the average exchange rates in effect during the applicable period. The resulting
cumulative translation adjustment is recorded as a separate component of other comprehensive income (loss).
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Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded based on exchange
rates at the time such transactions arise. Subsequent changes in exchange rates result in transaction gains and losses
which are reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Issuance of equity of consolidated subsidiary

Sales of residual equity interests in a consolidated subsidiary are accounted for as capital transactions. No
adjustments to capital are made for sales of preferential interests in a subsidiary. No gain or loss is recognized on
these transactions.

Recent Accounting Standards

In September 2005, the FASB ratified EITF Issue No. 04-13, “Accounting for Purchases and Sales of Inventory
with the Same Counterparty™ (EITF 04-13). The consensus states that two or more inventory purchase and sales
transactions with the same counterparty that are entered into in contemplation of one another should be combined as
a single exchange transaction for purposes of applying APB Opinion No. 29, “Accounting for Nonmonetary
Transactions.” A nonmonetary exchange of inventory within the same line of business where finished goods
inventory is transferred in exchange for the receipt of either raw materials or work in process inventory should be
recognized at fair value by the entity transferring the finished goods inventory if fair value is determinable within
reasonable limits and the transuction has commercial substance. All other nonmonetary exchanges of inventory
within the same line of business should be recognized at the carrying amount of the inventory transferred. EITF
04-13 is effective for new arrangements entered into, and modifications or renewals of existing arcangements,
beginning in the first reporting period beginning after March 15, 2006. We applied this Issue during 2006 with no
signiftcant impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements,

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments, an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140 (SFAS No. 155). With regard to SFAS No. 133. “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” (SFAS No. 133) this Statement permits fair value remeasurement
for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation,
clarifies which interest-only and principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements of SFAS No. 133, and
requires the holder of an interest in sccuritized financial assets to determine whether the interest is a freestanding
derivative or contains an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation. SFAS No. 155 also amends SFAS No. 140,
“Accounting for Transters and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” (SFAS No. 140) to
eliminate a restriction on the passive derivative financial instruments that a qualifying special purpose entity may
hold. SFAS No. 155 is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of an entity’s first
fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. The fair value election regarding hybrid financial instruments may
also be applied upon adoption of SFAS No. [55 to hybrid financial instruments that had been bifurcated prior to
adoption of SFAS No. 155. We applied the provisions of SFAS No. 155 beginning in January 2007 with no impact
on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156. “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets. an amendment
of FASB Statement No. 1407 (SFAS No. 156). This Statement amends SFAS No. 140 with respect to the accounting
for separately recognized servicing assets and liabilities from undertaking an obligation to service a financial asset
by entering into a servicing contract. SFAS No. 156 is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that
begins after September 15, 2006. We applied the provisions of SFAS No. 156 beginning in January 2007 with no
impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In April 2006. the FASB issued a Stafi Position (FSP) on a previously issued Interpretation (FIN), FSP
FIN 46(R)-6, “Determining the Variability to Be Considered in Applying FASB Interpretation No. 46(R).” When
determining the variability of an entity in applying FIN 46(R), a reporting enterprise must analyze the design of the
entity and consider the nature of the risks in the entity. and determine the purpose for which the entity was created
and determine the variability the entity is designed to create and pass along to its interest holders. The FSP is
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effective beginning in the third quarter of 2006 on a prospective basis. We applied this FSP with no impact on our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issucd FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 1097 (FIN 48). The Interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes under FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” The Interpretation prescribes
guidance for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be 1aken in
a tax return. To recognize a tax position, the enterprise determines whether it is more likely than not that the tax
position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes,
based on the technical merits of the position. A tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition threshold
is measured 1o determine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial statements. The tax position is
measured at the largest amount of benefit, determined on a cumulative probability basis, that is greater than
50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement.

FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The cumulative effect of applying the
Enterpretation must be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the year of adoption.
We adopted FIN 43 beginning January 1, 2007, as required. The net impact of the cumulative effect of adopting
FIN 48 is expected to be in the range of a $10 million to $20 million decrease in retained earnings.

In June 2006. the FASB ratified EITF No. 06-3. “How Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitied to
Governmental Autherities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement {That Is. Gross versus Net Presentation)”
{EITF 06-3). EITF 06-3 addresses the income statement presentation of any tax collected from customers and
remitled to a government authority and concludes the presentation of 1axes on either a gross basis or a net basis is an
accounting policy decision that should be disclosed pursuant to APB Opinion No. 22 “Disclosure of Accounting
Policies.” This is effective tor interim and annual reporting periods beginning after Decerber 15, 2006 and will
require the financial statement disclosure of any significant taxes recognized on a gross basis. We are reviewing the
presentation in our Consolidated Financial Statements and will apply the disclosure provisions of EITF 06-3 with
our first guarter 2007 filing.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements™ (SFAS No. 157). This
Statement establishes a framework for fair value measurements in the tinancial stalements by providing a definition
of fair value, provides guidance on the methods used to estimate fair value and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15. 2007 and is gencrally
applied prospectively. We will assess the impact of SFAS No. 157 on our Consolidated Financial Statements,

In September 2006, the FASB issued FSP AUG AIR-1, “Accounting for Planned Major Mainicnance
Activitics” (FSP AUG AIR-1). This FSP addresses the planned major maintenance of assets and prohibits the
use of the “accrue-in-advance”™ method of accounting for these activities in annual and interim reporting periods.
The FSP continues to allow the direct expense, built-in overhaul and deferral methods. FSP AUG AIR-1 requires
disclosure of the method of accounting for planned major maintenance activities as well as information related to
the change from the “accrue-in-advance™ method to another method. This FSP is effective for the first fiscal year
beginning after December 15, 2006 and should be applied retrospectively. We adopted this FSP in January 2007
with no signiticant impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In December 2006, the FASB issued FSP EITF 00-19-2, “Accounting for Registration Payment Arrange-
ments” (FSP EITF 00-19-2). The FSP specifies the contingent obligation to make future payments or otherwise
transfer consideration under a registration payment arrangement, whether issued as a separate agreement or
included as a provision of a financial instrument or other agreement, should be recognized and measured separately
in accordance with FASB SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies” and related literature. FSP EITF 00-19-2
further clarifics that a financial instrument subject to a registration payment arrangement shouid be accounted for in
accordunce with other applicable generally accepted accounting principles without regard to the contingent
obligation to transter consideration. The FSP applies immediately to registration payment arrangements and the
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financial instruments subject to those arrangements that are entered into or modified subsequent 10 December 21,
2006. Whereas, for registration payment arrangements and the financial instruments subject to those arrangements
entered into prior to its issuance. the FSP applies to our financial statements for the fiscal year beginning in 2007.
We adopted the provisions of FSP EITF 00-19-2 beginning in January 2007 with no impact on our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159. “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities -— Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (SFAS No. 159). SFAS No. 159 establishes a
fair value option permitting entities to elect the option to measure eligible financial instruments and certain other
items at fair value on specified election dates. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option
has been elected will be reported in earnings. The fatr value option may be applied on an instrument-by-instrument
basis. with a few exceptions, is irrevocable and is applied only to entire instruments and not to portions of
nstruments. SFAS No. 159 is effective as of the beginning of the first fiscal year beginning after November 15, 2007
and should not be applied retrospectively to fiscal years beginning prior to the effective date, except as permitted for
carly adoption. Early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of a fiscal year provided the entity makes that choice
in the first 120 days of the fiscal year and elects to simultancously adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 157. At the
effective date, an entity may elect the fair value option for eligible items existing at that date and the adjustment for
the initial remeasurement of those items to fair value should be reported as a cumulative effect adjustment to the
opening balance of retained carnings. We will assess the impact of SFAS No. 159 on our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Note 2.  Discontinued Operations

The businesses discussed below represent components that have been sold as of December 31, 2006, and are
classified as discontinued operations. Therefore, their results of operations (including any impairments, gains or
losses). financial position and cash flows have been reflected in the consolidated financial statements and notes as
discontinued operations.

\

Summarized Results of Discontinued Operations

The following table presents the summarized results of discontinued operations for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005. and 2004. Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes for the year ended
December 31, 2004, includes charges of approximately $153 million to increase our accrued liability associated
with certain Quality Bank litigation matters. (See Note 15.) The provision for income taxes for the year ended
December 31, 2004, is less than the federal statutory rate due primarily to the effect of net Canadian tax benefits
realized from the sale of the Canadian straddle plants partially offset by the United States tax effect of earnings
associated with these assets,

2006 2005 2004
(Millinns)
Revenues . ... ... B $ — $— §3534
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes . ............ $(39.3) $(3.9 $(121.3)
Gainonsales .. ... — .5 200.5
Benefit (provision) for income taxes . . .. ... ... .t 15.0 1.3 (8.7)

Income (loss} from discontinued operations . .. ................... $(24.3) $2.1H § 705

2006 Activities

During 2006, we recorded charges of $19.2 million for an adverse arbitration award related to our former
chemical fentilizer business and a $6 million accrual for a loss contingency in connection with a former exploration
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business, In addition, we made a $14.7 million accrual associated with an il purchase contract related to our former
Alaska refinery.

2004 Completed Transactions
Canadian straddle plants

On July 28, 2004, we completed the sale of the Canadian straddle plants for approximately $544 million and
recognized a $189.8 million pre-tax gain on the sale. These assets were previously written down to estimated fair
value, resulting in impairments of $41.7 million during 2003 and $36.8 million in 2002. In 2004, the fair value of the
assets increased substantially due primarily to renegotiation of certain customer contracts and a general improve-
ment in the market for processing assets. These operations were part of the Midstream segment.

Alaska refining, retail and pipeline operations

On March 31, 2004, we completed the sale of our Alaska refinery, retail and pipeline operations for
approximately $304 million. We received $279 million in cash at the time of sale and $25 million in cash during
the second quarter of 2004. Based on information we obtained throughout the sales negotiations process. we
recorded impairments of $8 mitlion in 2003 and $18.4 million in 2002. We recognized a $3.6 million pre-tax gain on
the sale during first quarter 2004, These operations were part of the previously reported Petroleum Services
segment.

We are party to a pending matter involving pipeline transportation rates charged to our former Alaska refinery
in prior periods. While we have no loss exposure in this matter, favorable resolution could result in a refund.
Note 3. Investing Activities

Investing Income

Investing income for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
(IvEilliony}
Equity earnings™® ... ........... SR $989 $ 656 $499
Loss from investments™ . . .. ... ... — (109.1) (35.5)
Impairments of cost-based investments . ..................... .. (20.4) (2.2) (28.5)
Interest income and other . . ... ... ... ... ... ... 94.5 69.4 62.1
Total . e $173.0  $ 237 §48.0

*  ltems also included in segment profit. (See Note 17.)
Loss from investments for the year ended December 31, 2003, includes:

* An $87.2 million impairment of our investment in Longhorn Partners Pipelinc L.P. (Longhorn), which is
included in our Other segment;

* A $23 million impairment of our investment in Aux Sable Liquid Products, L.P. (Aux Sable), which is
included in our Power segment.

Loss from investments for the year ended December 31, 2004, includes:
+ A $10.8 million impairment of our Longhorn investment;

+ $6.5 million net unreimbursed Longhorn recapitalization advisory fees;
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* A $16.9 million impairment of our investment in Discovery Producer Services, L.L.C. (Discovery), which
ts included in our Midstream segment.

Impairments of cost-based investments for the year ended December 31, 2006, includes a $16.4 million
impairment of a Venezuelan investment primarily due to a decline in reserve estimates. In 2006, our [0 percent
direct working interest in an operating contract was converted to a 4 percent equity interest in a Venezuelan
corporation which owns and operates oil and gas activities. Qur 4 percent interest is reported as a cost method
investment; previously, we accounted for our working interest using the proportionate consolidation method.

fmpairments of cost-based investments for the year ended December 31, 2004, includes a $20.8 million
impairment of our investment in an Indonesian toll road, primarily due to increased uncertainty of the Indonesian
econony.

Investments

Investments at December 31, 2006 and 2005, are as follows;

20062005
(Millions)

Equity method ‘
Guifstream Natural Gas System, LL.C. —350%. . ........ ... ... ........ $387.5 $3954
Discovery Producer Services, LL.C. —60%* .. ... ... ... .......... 2212 2279
Petrolera Entre Lomas S.A. —408% .. ... ........ ... ... . .. ... 58.8 351.9
ACCROVEN —493% . . ... e 574 60.0
4 89.5 95.9
814.4 8311
Costmethod. . ... ... e 51.6 56.7

$866.0  $887.8

*  We own 20% directly and 40% indircctly through Williams Partners L.P., of which we own approximately
22.5%.

The difference between the carrying value of our equity investments and the underlying equity in the net assets
of the investees is primarily related to impairments previously recognized.

Dividends and distributions, including those discussed below, received from companies accounted for by the
equity method were $115.6 million in 2006 and $447.4 million in 2005. These transactions reduced the carrying
value of our investments.

Gulfstream

In 2005, we received a $310.5 million distribution from Gulfstream Natwral Gas System, L.L.C. (Gulfstream)
following its debt offering. We also received dividends from Gulfstream of $41.5 million in 2006 and $60.5 million
in 2005. :

Discovery

During 2005, our Midstream subsidiary acquired an additional 16.67 percent in Discovery, which was later
reduced by 6.67 percent due to a nonaffiliated member exercising its purchase option. After these transactions, we
hold a 60 percent interest in Discovery. We continue to account for this investment under the equity method due to
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the voting provisions of Discovery’s limited liability company which provide the other member of Discovery
significant participatory rights such that we do not control the investment.

Additionally. we contributed $40.7 million during 2005 to Discovery for planned capital expenditures. Each
owner contributed an amount equal to their respective ownership percentage, thus having no impact on the overall
ownership allocation. We received distributions from Discovery of $27.2 million in 2006 and $31.3 million in 2005,
which reduced the carrying value of our investment.

Longhorn

Based on management’s outlook for Longhorn at the end of the second quarter 2005, we assessed our equity
investment in Longhorn to determine if there had been an other-than-temporary decline in its fair value. As a result,
we recorded an impairment of $49.1 miilion. In the fourth quarter of 2003, management of Longhorn decided to
pursue a strategy of the sale of Longhorn. Based on initial indications from potential buyers, we determined that our
Longhorn investment would require full impairment. Therefore, in fourth quarter 2005, we recorded a $38.1 million
impairment to write off the remaining investment in Longhorn.

We continue to have an equity ownership interest in Longhorn, including 94.7 percent of the Class B Interests
and 21.3 percent of the Common Interests, even though the management of Longhorn completed an asset sale of the
pipeline during the third quarter of 2006. Summarized results of operations of equity method investments in 2006,
as presented below, reflect the impact of Longhorn’s loss on this sale. As a result of the sale, we received full
payment of the $10 million secured bridge loan that we provided Longhorn during 2005.

Aux Sable

During 2005, we decided to solicit sales offers for our equity investment in Aux Sable, a natural gas liquids
extraction and fractionation facility. Based on initial indications of potential sales proceeds, management concluded
that there was an other-than-temporary decline in fair value below carrying value. Accordingly, we recorded an
impairment of $23 million.

Summarized Financial Position and Results of Operations of Equity Method Investments

Financial position at December 31:

2006 2005
(Millions)
CUITENT SSELS . . . o ot it et e e e $ 2965 % 4705
NODCUITENE ASSELS . . . . . i e et e e 3,301.7 36744
Current liabilities .. ... ... . . 198.0 362.0
Noncurrent labilities. . . ... ... . . 1.311.5 1,225.6
Results of operations for the years ended December 31:
2006 2005 2004
(Millions}
Gross FEVEIUE . . o v ottt e ettt e e e e et e e $970.4  $1,3375  $1,064.7
Operating iINCOME . . ... ... i 401.2 236.3 185.0
Netincome (l0SS) ... ... . e (14.6) 105.3 107.8

Guarantees on Behalf of Investees

We have guaranteed commercial letters of credit totaling $20 million on behalf of ACCROVEN. These expire
in January 2008 and have no carrying value.
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We have provided guarantees on behalf of certain entities in which we have an equity ownership interest. These
generally guarantee operating performance measures and the maximum potential future exposure cannot be
determined. There are no expiration dates associated with these guarantees. No amounts have been accrued at
December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Note 4. Asset Sales and Other Accruals

Significant gains or losses from asset sales and other accruals or adjustments reflected in other (income)
expense — nei within segment cosis and expenses for the years noted are as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2006 2008 2004
(Millions)

Exploration & Production _ ‘ _ ‘
Gains on sales of certain natural gas properties . . . . . e $ — $296) $ —
Loss provision related to an ownership dispute. . . ....... .. ... B — — 15.4

Midstream
Accrual for Gulf Liquids litigation contingency. Associated with this

contingency is an interest expense accrual of $22 million, which is
included in interest accrued (see Note 15 ... ................ 727 — —

Arbitration award on a Gulf Liquids insurance claim dispute .. . . ... — — (93.6)
Power
Accrual tor litigation contingeneies .. .. ... ... ... ... .. .. ... .. 4.8 B2.2 —

Reduction of contingent obligations associated with our former
distributive power generation business . ... ..., ... ... .. ... .. (12.7) — —

Other
Environmental accrual relaed to the Augusta refinery facility . ... ... — —_ 11.8

Additional ltems

Costs and operaiing expenses within our Gas Pipeline segment reported in 2005 includes:

* Anadjustment to reduce costs by $12.1 million to correct the carrying value of certain liabilities recorded
in prior periods:

* Adjustments of $37.3 million reflected as increases in costs and operating expenses related to $32.1 mil-
lion of prior period accounting and valuation corrections for certain inventory items and an accrual of
$5.2 millien for contingent refund obligations.

Selling. gencral and administrative expenses within our Gas Pipeline segment in 2005 includes:

* Anadjustment to reduce costs by $5.6 million to correct the carrying value of certain liabilities recorded in
prior periods;

* A §17.1 million reduction in pension expense for the cumulative impact of a correction of an error
attributable to 2003 and 2004. (See Note 7.)
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Note 5. Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes from continuing operations includes:

2006 2005 2004
(Millions)
Current:
Federal .. ... $ 9.0 $2250 % 110
AL . o o e e e 2.7 2.8 (13.7)
Foreign. . ... . 434 314 11.0
37.1 259.2 8.3
Deferred:
Federal ... ........... e e 140.9 (52.9) 75.1
Slale . L 3.3 15.6 38.7
Foreign. ... . ... 25.0 (8.0} 9.2
169.2 (45.3) 123.0
Total provision. . . . . e $2063  $213.9  $131.3

Reconciliations from the provision for income taxes from continuing operations at the federal statutory rate to
the realized provision for income taxes are as follows:

2006 2005 2004
(Millions)
Provision at statutory rate . . . .. e $188.7 S186.0 § 786
Increases (decreases) in taxes resulting from:
State income taxes (net of federal benefit) .. .................. 6.5 21.5 27.9
Foreign operations —mnet. . . ................. .. ... ........ 25.3 6.7 6.1
Utilization/valuation/expiration of charitable contributions .. ... ... 9.3) 8.4 13.8
Federal income tax litigation . . ... ......................... (40.0) 36 1.6
Non-deductible convertible debenture expenses. .. .............. 9.5 — —
Adjustment of excess deferred taxes. . . . ... ... .. .. ... . ...... 74 (20.2) —
Non-deductible penalties . . .. ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ....... — 17.7 {.9)
Other—met ... ... . 18.2 (9.8) 42
Provision for Income taxes .. ... ... ... o i $206.3  $213.9 $1313

Utilization of foreign operating loss carryovers reduced the provision for income taxes by $3 million and
$13 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. During 2004, the utilization of foreign tax credits reduced the provision
for income taxes by $12 million.

Income from continuing operations before income taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle includes $141 million, $59 million, and $3) million of international income in 2006, 2003, and 2004,
respectively.

We provide for income taxes using the asset and liability method as required by SFAS No. 109, “Accounting
for [ncome Taxes.” As a result of additional analysis of our tax basis and book basis asset and liabilities, we recorded
a tax provision of $7.4 million and a tax benefit of $20.2 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively, to adjust the overall
deferred income tax liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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During the course of audits of our business by domestic and foreign tax authorities, we frequently face
challenges regarding the amount of taxes due. These challenges include questions regarding the timing and amount
of deductions and the allocation of income among various tax jurisdictions. In evaluating the liability associated
with our various tax filing positions, we record a liability for probable tax contingencies. In association with this
liability, we record an estimale of related interest and tax exposure as a component of our current tax provision. The
impact of this accrual is included within other - net in our reconciliation of the tax provision to the federal
statutory rate.

One of our wholly owned subsidiaries, Transco Coal Gas Company, was engaged in a dispute with the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) in which the principle issue was the recapture of certain income tax credits associated with
the construction and operation of a coal gasification plant in North Dakota by Great Plains Gasification Associates,
a partnership in which Transco Coal Gas Company was a partner in the 1980’s. The IRS took alternative positions
that alleged a disposition date for purposes of tax credit recapture that was earlier than the position taken in the
partnership tax return. After settlement negotiations failed, the matter was tried before the U.S. Tax Court in
February 2005. On December 27, 2006, the Tax Court ruled that the partnership utilized the appropriate disposition
date for purposes of tax credit recapture.

Significant components of deferred rax liabilities and deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2006, and 2005,
are as follows:

2006 2005
(Millions}
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment . ........ ... ... ... .. . ... ... ... $2,808.5  $2,718.9
Derivatives — met . . ... ... ... 2234 61.3
[ovestments . ... ... .. 210.2 158.6
Other ... e 100.4 96.7
Total deferred tax liabilities . ... .. .. .. ... . 3,432.5 3,035.5
Deferred tax assets:
Minimum tax credits . ... ... ... 145.6 163.8
Accrued linbilities . .. ... .. 510.2 285.2
Receivables. . ..o 17.3 39.3
Federal carryovers. . ... ... .. 182.8 286.0
Foreign carryovers. . ... ... ... 36.1 30.4
Other . .. 339 —
Total deferred tax assets. .. ... ... ... . . 025.9 804.7
Less valuation allowance . .. .. .. ... ... . 36.1 37.1
Net deferred tax assets. .. ...ttt 889.8 767.6
Overall net deferred tax liabilities .. ........ ... ... ... ... $2.542.7 $2.2679

The valuation allowance at December 31, 2006, serves to reduce the recognized tax benefit associated with
foreign carryovers to an amount that will, more likely than not. be realized. The valuation allowance at
December 31, 2005 serves to reduce the recognized tax benefit associated with charitable contribution carryovers
and foreign carryovers to an amount that will, more likely than not, be realized.

Undistributed carnings of certain consolidated foreign subsidiaries at December 31, 2006, totaled approx-
imately $198 million. No provision for deferred U.S. income taxes has been made for these subsidiarics because we
intend to permanently reinvest such camings in foreign operations.
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Cash payments for income taxes (net of refunds) were $79 mitlion, $230 mitlion, and $8 million in 2006, 2005,
and 2004, respectively. Cash tax payments include settlements with taxing authorities associated with prior period
audits of $42 millien and $204 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

At December 31, 20006, federal net operating loss carryovers are $509 million. We expect to utilize our net
operating loss carryovers prior to expiration in 2022 through 2025. We also expect to utilize $13 million of
charitable contribution carryovers prior to their expiration in 2007 through 2010. We do not expect to be able 1o
utilize our $36.1 million foreign deferred tax assets related to carryovers.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (FIN 48). We adopted the Interpretation beginning January 1, 2007. The
impact of this adoption is more fully described in Note 1.

Note 6. Earnings Per Common Share from Continuing Operations

Basic and diluted earnings per common share for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, are:

pL1 2005 2004

{Dollars in millions, except per-share
amounts; shares in thousands)

Income from continuing operations available to common

stockholders for basic and diluted earnings per share(1). . . .. $ 3328 % 3174 0§ 932
Basic weighted-average shares(2) .. ..................... 595,053 570,420 529,188
Effect of dilutive securities:

Unvested restricted stock units(3y .. ................... 1,029 2,890 2,631

Stock options . . . ... ... 4,440 4,989 3,792

Convertible debentures . ... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... ..., 8,105 27,548 —
Diluted weighted-average shares. . . ... .................. 608,627 605,847 535,611
Earnings per common share from continuing operations:

Basic .. ... ... $ 56§ S5 08 18

Diluted. . . ... . k) 55 % 53 0§ 18

(1) The years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, include $3.0 million and $10.2 million of interest expense, net of
tax, associated with our convertible debentures. (See Note 12.) These amounts have been added back to income
Jrom continuing operations available to common stockholders to calculate diluted earnings per common share.
(See discussion of antidilutive items below.)

(2) During January 2006, we issued 20.2 million shares of common stock related to a conversion offer for our
5.5 percent convertible debentures. In February 2005 and October 2004, we issued 10.9 million and
33.1 million, respectively, common shares associated with our FELINE PACS units.

(3) The unvested restricted stock units outstanding at December 31, 2006, will vest over the period from January
2007 to December 2009.

Approximately 27.5 million weighted-average shares refaied to the assumed conversion of convertible
debentures, as well as the related interest, have been excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per
common share for the year ended December 31, 2004. Inclusion of these shares would have an antidilutive effect on
diluted earnings per common share. If no other components used to calculate diluted earnings per common share
change, we estimate the assumed conversion of convertible debentures would have become dilutive and therefore
would be included in diluted earnings per common share at an income from continuing operations available to
common stockholders amount of $198.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004.
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The table below includes information related to stock options that were outstanding at the end of each

respective year but have been excluded from the compuration of weighted-average stock options due to the option
exercise price exceeding the fourth quarter weighted-average market price of our common shares.

2006 2005 2004
Options excluded (millions) ... .......... 36 4.7 8.5
Weighted-average exercise prices of options
excluded ......... ... Lo L $ 3614  § 3522 % 28.21

Exercise price ranges of options cxcluded . .. $26.79- $42.290  $22.68 - $42.29  $14.61 - $42.29

Fourth quarter weighted-average market
Price ..o e 3 2577 0§ 2241 $ 14.41

Note 7. Employee Benefit Plans

We huve noncontributory defined benefit pension plans in which all eligible employees participate, Currently,
cligible employees earn benefits primarily based on a cash balance formula. Various other formulas, as defined in
the plan documents. are utilized to calculate the retirement benefits for plan participants not covered by the cash
balance formula. At the time of retirement, participants may receive annuity payments, a lump sum payment or a
combination of lump sum and annuity payments. In addition to our pension plans, we currently provide subsidized
medical and life insurance benefits {(other postretirement benefits) to certain eligible participants. Generally,
employees hired after December 31, 1991, are not eligible for these benefits, except for participants that were
employees of Transco Energy Company on December 31, 1995, and other miscellaneous defined participant
groups. Certain of these other postretirement benefit plans, particularly the subsidized medical benefit plans,
provide {or retiree contributions and contain other cost-sharing features such as deductibles, co-payments, and co-
insurance. The accounting for these pluns anticipates future cost-sharing that is consistent with our expressed intent
to increase the retiree contribution level generally in line with health care cost increases.

SFAS No. 158 Adoption

In September 2006. the FASB issucd SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirenient Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88. 106 and 132(R)” (SFAS No. 158).
This Stiement requires sponsors of defined benelit peasion and other postrelirement benefit plans o recognize the
funded status of their pension and other postretirement benefit plans in the statement of financial position, measure
the fair value of plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the fiscal year-end statement of financial
position, and provide additional disclosures. On December 31, 2006, we adopied the recognition and disclosure
provisions of SFAS No. 158, the effect of which has been reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements as of December 31, 2006, as described below. The adoption had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements a1 December 31, 2005 or 2004. SFAS No. 158's provisions regarding the change in the measurement date
of postretirement benefit plans are not appticable as we already use a measurement date of December 31. There is no
cffect on our Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2006, or for any periods presented
related to the adoption of SFAS No. 158, nor will our future operating resulis be affected by the adoption.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 158, accounting rules allowed for the delayed recognition of certain actuarial
gains and losses caused by differences between actual and assumed outcomes, as well as charges or credits caused by
plan changes impacting the benefit obligations which were attributed to participants” prior service. These unrecognized
net actuarial gains or losses and unrecognized prior service costs or credits represented the difference between the plans’
funded status and the amount recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. In accordance with SFAS No. 158, we
recorded adjustments to accinnulared other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes, to recognize the funded status of our
pension and other postretirement benefit plans on our Consolidated Balance Sheet. For our FERC-regulated gas
pipelines, we recorded the adjustment o net regularory liabilities for our other postretirement benefit plans. These
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adjustments represent the previously unrecognized net actuarial gains and losses and unrecognized prior service cosis or
credits. The detail of the effect of adopting SFAS No. 158 is provided in the following table.

The adjustments recorded to accumulated other comprehensive loss and net regulatory liabilities will be
recognized as components of net periodic pension expense or net periodic ather postretirement benefit expense and
amortized over future periods in accordance with SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” and
SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” in the same manner
as prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 158. Actuarial gains and losses that arise in subsequent periods and are not
recognized as net periodic pension or other postretirement benefit expense in the same period will now be recognized
in other comprehensive income (loss) and net regulatory liabilities. These amounts will be recognized subsequently us
a compenent of net periodic pension or other postretirement benefit expense following the same basis as the amounts
recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss and net regulatory liabilities upon adoption of SFAS No, 158,

The effects of adopting SFAS No. 158 on our Consolidated Balance Sheet at December, 31, 2006, are
presented in the following tables, The disclosures in this note exclude the impact of a pension plan of an equity
method investee.

Prior to Effect of After
SFAS No. 158 SFAS No. 158 SFAS No. 158
Adoption(1} Adoption(1) Adaoption(1)
(Mitlions)
Balances related to pension plans within:
Assets:
Nencurrent assets. ... .................. ... $330.8 $(216.7) $114.1
Liabilities:
Current liabilities. . .. ......... ... ........... —_ 1.0 1.0
Net regulatory liabilities. . ... ................ 10.5 2.2 12.7
Noncurrent liabilities . .. .. .. ...... . ......... 189 20.2 39.1
Deferred income tax liabilities .. ... . .......... 3.1 (91.6) (94.7)
Stockholders’ equity:
Accumulated other comprehensive loss. ... ... ... @9 {(148.5) (153.4)
Balances related to other postretirement benefits plans
within:
Assets:
NORCUITENT ASSeIS. . . . .\ttt e e e $ 136 $ (13.6) 5 —
Liabilities:
Current liabilities. . . .. ... ........... ... .... 10.6 (1.4 92
Net regulatory liabilities. . ... ... ............. (8.0 12.8 4.8
Noncurrent liabilities . . ........ ... ... ....... 133.2 (10.5) 122.7
Deferred income tax liabilities . ... .......... .. — (12.5) (12.5}
Stockholders’ equity:
Accumulated other comprehensive loss. . ... ... .. —_ 2.0 (2.0

(1) Amounts in brackets represent a reduction within the line item batance included on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 158, we had computed an additional minimum pension liability of
$10.2 million. The effect of recognizing this additional minimum pension liability is included as accumulated other
comprehensive loss of $4.9 million (net of taxes of $3.1 million) and net regulatory liabilities of $2.2 million under
the “Prior 10 SFAS No. 158 Adoption” column within the previous table.
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Accimulated other comprehensive loss at December 31, 2006 includes the following:

Other
Postretirement
Pension Benefits Benefits
Gross Net of Tax Giross Net of Tax
(Millions)
Amounts not yet recognized in net periodic benefit
expense:
Unrecognized prior service cost .. ............... 57 %8 3% %67 $4.1
Unrecognized net actuarial gains (losses). ... ... .. .. (242.4) (149.9) (7.8} 2.1
Amounts expected to be recognized in net periodic
benefit expense (income) in 2007:
Prior service cost (credity . ............. ... .. .. $ 4 5 (3 %11 $ 7
Net actuarial (gains) losses . ............ ... ... . 16.5 10.2 — D

Net regulatory liabilities includes unrecognized prior service credits of $4.6 million and unrecognized net
actuarial gains of $8.2 million associated with our FERC-regulated gas pipelines. These amounts have not yel been
recognized in net periodic other postretirement benefit expense. The prior service credit included in ner regulatory
liabilities and expected to be recognized in net periodic other postretirement benefit expense in 2007 is $1.5 million.
No actuarial gains included in net regulatory liabilities are expected to be recognized in ner periodic other
postretirement henefit expense in 2007,
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Benefit Obligations

The following table presents the changes in benefit obligations and plan assets for pension benefits and otker
postretirement benefits for the years indicated. It also presents a reconciliation of the funded status of these benefit
plans to the amounts recorded in the Consolidated Batance Sheet at December 31, 2005. The annual measurement
date for our plans is December 31.

Other Postretirement

Pension Benefits Benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
{Millions)
Change in benefit obligation:
Bemefit obligation at beginning of year ... ......... $ 8974 38930 $3754 §$2684
Servicecost .......... ... ... . 22.1 215 3.2 33
Interest cost . .......... ... .. ... .. ... ... 509 47.6 17.3 203
Plan participants” contributions . .. ............... — — 4.7 4.3
Settlement benefits paid . . ........ ... ... ....... — 4.0) — —
Benefitspaid . ... ... ... ... ... . ... .. ... .. (52.4) (58.2) (24.0) (24.0)
Plan amendments ............................ — — — 51.2
Actuarial (gain) loss . ... ..... ... ............. 133 (2.5) (64.2) 519
Benefit obligation atend of year . . ... ............ 931.3 3974 3124 3754
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year. . ... ... 887.6 8355 163.6 158.9
Actual returnon plan assets . ... ...... ... ....... 126.8 56.4 216 9.5
Employer contributions . . . ... .. ... ... .. . ... 433 57.9 14.6 14.9
Plan participants’ contributions . . .. .............. -— — 4.7 4.3
Benefitspaid ....... ... ... .. . ... ... ... ... (52.4) (58.2) (24.0) (24.0)
Settlement benefits paid . . ..................... — (4.0) — —
Fair value of plan assets atend of year .. .......... 1,005.3 887.6 180.5 163.6
Funded status — overfunded (underfunded). .......... $ 740 9.8) $(131.9) (211.8)
Unrecognized net actvarial loss. ... ... ............. 309.7 74.4
Unrecognized prior service cost ................... 5.1 1.7
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost . ... .. e e $305.0 $(135.7)

Accumulated benefit obligation. . ....... ... ... ... $ 8716 $8314
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Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2005 consist of:

Other
Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
(Millions)
Prepaid benefit Cost .. .. .. oo $312.6 5§ —
Accrued benefit COSL . . . . ... e e e e (16.8) (135.7)
Regulatory assel. .. ...t e s 2.3 —_—
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (before tax) . .......... ... ... 6.9 —
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost. . .. ... .. o i $305.0 $(135.7)

"The net underfunded/overfunded status of our pension plans presented in the previous table is recognized in the
December 31. 2006, Consolidated Balance Sheet in noncurrent assets as $114.1 million for our overfunded pension
plans and in current liabilities as $1.0 million and in noncurrent liabilities as $39.1 million for our underfunded
pension plans. The underfunded status of our other postretirement benefit plans presented in the previous table is
recognized in the December 31, 2006, Consolidated Balance Sheet in current liabilities as $9.2 million and in
noncurrent liabilities as $122.7 million, The plan assets within our other postretirement benefit plans are intended to
be used for the payment of benefits for certain groups of participants. The current liabilities for the other
postretirement benefit plans represent the actuarial present value of benefits included in the benefit obligation
payable in 2007 for the groups of participants whose benefits are not expected to be paid from plan assets.

The regulatory asset shown in 2005 in the table above is the portion of the additional minimum pension
liabitity recognized by our FERC-regulated gas pipelines. As required by FERC accounting guidelines, our FERC-
regutated gas pipelines were required to record the effect of an additional minimum pension liability to a regulatory
asset instead of accumulated other comprehensive loss.

The 2006 actuarial loss of $13.3 million for our pension plans included in the table of changes in benefit
obligation is due primarily to the impact of actual results differing from assumed results such as compensation and
participant deaths, offset by the net impact of changes in assumptions utilized to calculate the benefit obligation
including the discount rate, mortality and expected form of benefit payments. The 2005 actuarial gain of
$2.5 million for our pension plans included in the table of changes in benefit obligation reflects a gain of
approximately $68 million for the cumulative impact of a correction of an error determined to have occurred in 2003
and 2004. The error was associated with our third-party actuarial computation of the benefit obligation which
resulted in the identification of errors in certain Transco participant data involving annuity contract information
utilized for 2003 and 2004. This gain ts offset substantially by the impuct of changes to the discount rates utilized o
determine the benefit obligation. The 2006 actitarial gain of $64.2 million for our other postretirement benefit plans
included in the table of changes in benefit obligation is due primarily to the impact of changes in assumptions
utilized to calculate the benefit obligation including claims costs, health care cost trend rates and the discount rate,
as well as actual results differing from assumed results such as participant deaths and terminations prior 10
retirement. The 2005 actuarial loss of $51.9 million for our other postretirement benefit plans included in the table
of changes in benefit obligation is due primarily to the impact of changes in assumptions utilized to calculate the
benefit obligation including the health care cost trend rates. discount rate and estimated cost savings related 1o the
Medicare Prescription Drug Act.

The current accounting rules for the determination of net periodic pension and other postretirement henefit
expense allow for the delayed recognition of gains and losses caused by differences between actual and assumed
outcomes for items such as estimated returh on pian assets, or cuused by changes in assumptions for items such as
discount rates or estimated future compensation levels. The wnrecognized net actuarial loss presented in the
previous tables and recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss and net regulatory liabilities at December 31,
2006. represents the cumulative net deferred losses from these types of differences or changes which have not yet
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been recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income. A portion of the net unrecognized gains and losses are
amortized over the participants’ average remaining future years of service, which is approximately 12 years for our
pension plans and 13 years for our other postretirement benefit plans.

We have multiple pension plans that are aggregated as prescribed for reporting purposes including hoth
overfunded and underfunded pension plans.

Information for pension plans with a projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets;
December 31,

2006 2005
(Millions)
Prejected benefit obligation. .. ... ... .. L L oL $479.8  $4286
Fairvalue of planassets . ... ... ... .. . L 439.7 359.7

Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:

December 31,
2006 2005
{Millions)

Accumulated bepefit obligation . ... ... o $189 %167
Fuir value of plan assets, . ... .. .. o — —

Net Periodic Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Expense (Income)

Net periodic pension expense (income) and other postretirement benefit expense for the years ended
December 31. 2006. 2005. and 2004, consists of the following:

Pension Benefits

2006 2005 2004
{Millions)
Components of net periodic pension expense (income):
Service CoSl .. .. $22.1 $215 $240
Inierest Cost . .. .. L 50.9 47.6 50.5
Expected return on plan assets. . .. ... (66.8) (71.13) (64.9)
Amortization of prior service credit ... .. ... ... ... ... .. . .. . ... (.6) (4 (1.5)
Recognized net actuarial (gain) loss. .. ............ . ... ....... 20.6 4.9) 04
Regulatory asset amortization (deferral) . .. .................... (2) .6 2.0
Settlement/curtailment expense . ....... ... ... . .. . .. ... . ... .. — 2.7 .1
Net periodic pension expense (income) , . ....................... 260 % (4.0 $196
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Other Postretirement Benefits

2006 2005 2004
{Millions)
Components of net periodic other postretirement benefit expense:
ServICE COSt . . oo e $ 32 § 33 5 32
Interest cost . .. .......... ... e e 17.3 20.3 18.8
Expected returnon plan assets . ........... . ... ... (1.0 (11.5) (12.4)
Amortization of transition obligation. .. .. ................... - — 2.7
Amortization of prior service cost {credit) .. ... ...... ... ..... (4) 4.3) .6
Recognized net actuarial loss ... ... ... ... ... — 32 —
Regulatory asset amortization ... .......................... 7.1 6.8 6.7
Net periedic other postretirement benefit expense .. .............. $162 $178 35196

Net periodic pension expense (income) for 2005 includes a $17.1 million reduction to expense to record the
cumulative impact of a correction of an error determined to have occurred in 2003 and 2004. The error was
associated with our third-party actuarial computation of annual net periodic pension expense which resulted from
the identification of errors in certain Transco participant data involving annuity contract information utilized for
2003 and 2004. The adjustment is reflected as $16.1 million within recognized net actuarial (gain) loss and
$1.0 million within regulatory asset amortization (deferral).

The differences in the amount of actuarially determined net periodic other postretirement benefit expense and
the other postretirement benefit costs recovered in rates for our FERC-regulated gas pipelines are deferred as a
regulatory asset or liability. At December 31, 2006, we have a regulatory asset of $8.5 million for Transco and a
regulatory liability of $13.3 million for Northwest Pipeline related to these deferrals. At December 31, 2003, we had
a regulatory asset of $24.3 million for Transco and a regulatory liability of $10.8 million at Northwest Pipeline
related to these deferrals, These amounts will be reflected in future rates based on Transco and Northwest Pipeline’s
rate structures,

Key Assumptions

The weighted-average assumptions utilized to determine benefit obligations as of December 31, 2006, and
20035, are as follows:

Other
Postretire-
Pension ment
Benefits Benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
Discount rate . . . ... .. 5.80% 5.65% 5.80% 5.60%
Rate of compensation increase .. ............. . ... ... ... ... 500 500 NA NA

The weighted-average assumptions utilized to determine net periodic pension and other postretirement benefit
expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, are as follows:

Other
Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Discountrate . .............. ... ... ... ...... 565% 5.86% 6.25% 5.60% 5.63% 6.25%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets .. . .. 775 850 850 695 745 830
Rate of compensation increase . ................. 500 500 500 NA NA NA
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The discount rates for our pension and other postretirement benefit plans were determined separately based on
an approach specific to our plans and their respective expected benefit cash flows. With the assistance of our third-
party actuary, the plans were analyzed and discount rates based on a yield curve comprised of high- -quality corporate
bonds published:by a large securities firm were matched. to a highly correlated published index of high-quality
corporate bonds. Based on an analysis performed between each of the plans’ yield curve discount rates and the
index, a formula was deve]oped to determine the December 31, 2006, discount rates based upon the year-end
published index. e e e N T ' '

The expected long-term rates of return’on [E)Ilan assets were determined by combinin g areview of the historical
returns realized within the portfolio, the investment strategy included in the plans’ Investment Policy Statement, and
the capital market projections provided by our independent investment consultant for the asset classifications in
which the portfolio is invested and the target weightings of each asset classification.

The. mortahty aqsumptzons used to determine the obligations for our pension and other postretirement benefit
plans are related to the experience of the plans and to our third- -party actuary’s best estimate of expected plan
mortality. The selected rnortality tables'are among the most recent tables available.

The assuriied health care cost trend rate for 2007 is 9.3 percent, and systematically decreases to 5.5 percent by
2013. The health care cost trend rate assumptlon has a significant effect on the amounts reported. A one-percentage-
point change in a<sumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

Point increase Point decrease

L ; I y o e . (Millions)
- Effect on total of servicé and interest cost components ..... AR $3.3 $ @

‘Effect on postretirement' Benefit obligation ... ....... Vs .- 605 3.1
" . b S K ' 7 .

Medicare Prescription Drug Act

' ln December 2003, the Medlcare Preecnptlon Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Act)
was si igned into law. The Act mtroducecl a prescription drug benefit under Medicare (Medicare Part D) beginning in
2006 as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that is at least
actuarially equivalent to Médicate Part D Our health care plans for retirees include prescription drug coverage:
Prior to 2005, ‘our plans were amended fo coordinate and pay secondary to any part of Medicare, including
prescription drug benefits covered by Medicare Part D, which resulted in a dectease in the benefit obligation of
$75.5 million. Beginning in 2005, the net reduction to the obligation was being amortized over approximately seven
years which was the participants’ average remaining years of service to full eligibility for benefits. It is reflected in
the amortization of prior service crea’:t in the table of components of net perwdu other postretirement benefit
expen se for 2005.

r

Due to anticipated dlfﬁ(.ultles to administer our plans as previously amended t6 coordinate and pay secondary
to Medicare Part D+in 2006, we amended cur pians m June 2005 to generally provide primary prescription drug
coverage and apply for'the federal subsidy in 2006. As a result of the amendment, generally our plans are designed
to be actuarially equivalent to thé'standard coverage under Medicare Part D. The amendment increased our benefit
obligation by $51.2 Jmillion at June 30, 20035, and is reflected as a plan amendment in the table of changes in benefit
obligation for 2005, Begmmng in the third quarter of 2005, the increase to the obllganon is being amortized over the
participants’ average remaining years of service to full eligibility for beneﬁts whlch is approximately seven years.
Ner pertodu other posrrenremenr benef t expense for 2005, reflects an increas¢’ of $7.1 miilion, including an
increase in rewgmzed net acruartal lcm of $ 3 m11110n an 1ncrease in service cost of $.3 million, an increase in
interest cost of $2.6 million, anddn incredse in amortization of prior service credif vf $3.9 million, resulting from
the plan amendment. We are continuing to evaluate coordination with Medicare Part D as a strategy to decrease our
benefit obllgatlon in the future and wnll closely monitor the development of systems dnd capabllitles of third-party
administrators to coordinate prescrlpuon drug benefits with the Centers for Medicare & Medlcald Services.
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" Invéntories determined using "the LIFO cost- method were approxxmately "' percent- and 8 percent of
inventories at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The reiiiaining inventories were primarily determinéd
using the average-cost method.

N

If inventories valued using the LIFO cost method at December 31, 2006 and 2005, were valued at currem
replacement cost, the amounts would increase by $22 million and- $59 mllhon respecllvely !

-t

du.oumlng and valu.ilion Correcllons R T TR e ,,!

e gy : ‘ Lo AT AR

Note 9, Property, Plant and.Equipment L T A L R (17

Property, plant and equipment — net at December 31, 2006, and 2005, is as follows:

1

2006 2005
(Millions)
Cost: . i
Exploration & Production . ... ... .. . e P $ 59182 § 44589
.Gas Pipeline .. ............... B e 9,127.3 8,371.1
Midstream Gas & qumds(l ) .................. P 4.545.5 4.351.4
Power . . . .. e e PR 155.3 154.9
Other. ....... e L. 2456 235.5
, o 199919 175718
Accumulated depreélatlon dep!enon and dmomzauon ........... Cee (5 8l l 2) _(5,162.6) .

$514,180.7  $12,409.2

"

(1) Certain assets above are currently.pledged as collateral to secure debt. (See Note 11.)

Depreciation, deplenon and amorrr'anonexpenqe forpmperr) piam and equrpmenr — net was '$865. l ml]llOl’l
in 2006 ,$739 lml]mn in 2005 and $667.4 m]]llon m 2004.

Property, plam and equipment — net includes’ approximately . $685 mllhon al December 31, 2006 and
$374 million at December 31,.2005, of construction in ‘progress which is not yet. subject to’ depreciation. In
addition, property of Exploration & Production includes approximately $414 million at December 31, 2006, and
.$443 million at December 31, 2005, of capltahzed costs related to propemes with unproven reserves not yet subject
-to depleuon " S ‘ . S ) - o .. :

Pmperf), plant and’ eqmpmem—net includes apprommate]y 1.1 b1ll|on at Dcc.cmber 31, 2006 _and
$1.2 billion at December 31, 2005, related to amounts in excess of the ongmal cost of thé regulaled facilities
within Gas Pipeline as a result of our prior acquisitions. This amount is being amortized over 40 years using the
struight-line amortization method. Current FERC policy does not permit recovery through rates tor amoums in
excess of original cost of construction.

’ B

[ L ’

Asset Retirement Obligations

In March 2005, the FASB issued FIN 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations —— an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.” The interpretation clarifies that the term “conditional asset retirement”
as used'in SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” reférs to a legal obligation to perform an
asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of seitlement are conditional on a future event that may
or may not be within the control of the entity. The Interpretation also clarifies when an entity would have sufficient
information to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset retirement obligation.
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We adopted the Interpretation on December 31, 2005. In accordance with the Interpretation, we estimailed
future retirement obligations for certain assets previously considered to have an indeterminate life. As a result, we
recorded an increase in other liabilities and deferred income of $29.4 million, an increase in property, plant and
equipment — net of $12.2 million, and a cumudative effect of change in accountin g principle of $1.7 million (net of
$1.0 million of taxes). We also recorded a $14.5 million regulatory asset in other assets and deferred charges for
retirement costs expected to be recovered through regulated rates. Had we implemented the Interpretation at the
beginning of 2003, the financial statement impact at December 31, 2004 would not he substantially different than
the impact at December 31, 2005.

‘The asset retirement obligation at December 31, 2006 and 2005 is $333 million and $93 million, respectively.
The increase in the obligation in 2006 is due primarily to obtaining additional information that revised cur
estimation of our asset retirement obligation for certain assets in our Exploration & Production, Gas Pipeline and
Midstream segments. Factors affected by the additional information included estimated settlement dates, estimated
settlement costs and inflation rates.

The accrued obligations relate to producing wells, underground storage caverns, offshore platforms, fruc-
tionation facilities. gas gathering well connections and pipelines, and gas transmission facilities. At the end of the
useful life of each respective asset, we are legally obligated to plug both producing wells and storage caverns and
remove any related surface equipment. remove surface equipment and restore land at fractionation facilities, to
dismantle offshore platforms, to cap certain gathering pipelines at the wellhead connection and remove any related
surface equipment, and to remove certain components of gas transmission facilitics from the ground.

Note 10. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Under our cash-management system, certain cash accounts reflected negative balances to the extent checks
written have not been presented for payment. These negative balances represent obligations and have bezn
reclassified 10 accounts payable. Accounts pavable includes approximately $44 million of these negative balances
at December 31, 2006, and $69 million at December 31, 2005.

On May 26, 2004, we were released from certain historical indemnities. prumarily related to environmenial
remediation, for an agreement to pay $117.5 million. We had previously deferred $113 million of a gain on sale
related to these indemnities. At the date of sale, the deferred revenue and identitied obligations related to the
indemnities totaled $102 miliion. The carrying value of this obligation is $33.9 million at December 31 » 2006, and
$51.3 million at December 31, 2005. The obligation will be settled with a payment of $35 million on July 1, 2007.

Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2006, and 2005, are as follows:

2006 2605
(Millions)
Interest. .. .. ... . L O $ 2433 § 2450
Employee costs. .. ... . 165.8 147.2
Taxes other than income taxes. .. .......... .. ... ... .. .. .. ... 1519 141.4
Accrual for Gulf Liquids litigation contingency . ... ................. .. 94.7* —_
Income taxes. . ... ... L 80.8 58.2
Accrual for Power litigation contingencies . . ... ........... ... .. . ... . . 434 52.2
Guarantees and payment obligations related to WilTel . ........ ... . .. .. 41.1 42.7
Structured indemnity settlement. . .. ..., ... ... 33.9 19.4
Other ... o 386.5 417.0

$1,241.4  $1.123.1

* Includes $22 million of interest
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Note 11. Debt, Leases and Banking Arrangements
Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt at December 31, 2006 and 2003, is:

Weighted-
};;:fer;if December 31,
Rate(l) 2006 2005
{Millions)
Secured(2) ‘
6.62%-9.45%, payable through 2016 .. .................. 80% $ 171.7 § 1957
Adjustable rate, payable through 2016, . ........... ... ... 6.2% 74.4 572.2
Capital lease obligations ... .............. ... ......... 9.3% 25 2.8
Unsecured . ‘
5.5%-10.25%, payable through 2033 . ................... 7.6% 7,690.4 6.867.3
Adjustable raté, due 2008 . ... ... ...l L 0.7% 75.0 75.0
Other, payable through 2007 . .................. e 6.0% . .
Total long-term debt, inclading current portion . ............. 8,014.1 7,713.1
Long-term debt due withinone year ...................... (392.1) (122.6)
Long-termdebt. ........ ... ... ... ... ........ e J : $7.622.0  $7.590.5

(1) At December 31, 2006.

(2) Includes $246.1 million at December 31, 2006, co_]lateralizéd by certain fixed assets of two of our Venezueian
subsidiaries with a net book value of $380 million at December 31, 2006.

Revolving credit and letter of credit facilities (credit facilities)

In May 2006, we obtained an unsecured, three-year, $1.5 billion revolving credit facility, replacing our
$1.275 billion secured revolving credit facility. The new unsecured facility contains similar terms and financial
covenants as the secured facility, but contains additional restrictions on asset sales, certain subsidiary debt and sale-
leaseback transuctions. The facility is guaranteed by Williams Gas Pipeline Company, LLC and we guarantee
obligations of Williams Partners L.P. for up to $75 million. Northwest Pipeline and Transco each have access to
$400 million and Williams Partners L.P. has access to $75 million under the facility to the extent not otherwise
utilized by us. Interest is calculated based on a choice of two methods: a fluctuating rate equal to the lender’s base
rate plits an applicable margin or a periodic fixed rate equal to LIBOR plus an applicable margin. We are required to
pay a commitment fee (currently .25 percent annually) based on the unused portion of the facility, The margins and
commitment fee are generally based on the specific borrower’s senior unsecured long-term debt ratings. Significant
financial covenants under the credit agreement include the following:

* Our ratio of debt to capitalization must be no greater than 65 percent. At December 31, 2006, we are in
compliance with this covenant as our ratio of debt to capitalization, as calculated under this covenant, is
approximately 53 percent.

* Ratio of debt to capitalization must be no greater than 55 percent for Northwest Pipeline and Transco. At
December 31, 2006. we are in compliance with this covenant as our ratio of debt to capiralization, as
calculated under this covenant, is approximately 44 percent for Northwest Pipeline and 32 percent for
Transco.
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* Our ratio of EBITDA to interest. on a rolling four quarter basis, must be no less than 2.5 for the period
ending December 31, 2007 and 3.0 for the remaining term of the agreement, Through December 31, 2006,
we are in compliance with this covenant as we exceed the compliance level by approximately 50 percent.

Our 5500 million and $700 million facilities provide for both borrowings and issuing letters of credit but are
expected to be used primarily for issuing letters of credit. We are required (o pay the funding bank fixed fees at a
weighted-average interest rate of 3.64 percent and 2.29 percent for the $500 million and $700 million facilities.
respectively, on the total committed amount of the facilities. In addition, we pay interest on any borrowings at a
fluctuating rate comprised of either a base rate or LIBOR.

The funding bank syndicated its associated credit risk through a private offering that allows for the resale of
certain restricted securities to qualified institutional buyers. To facilitate the syndication of these facilities, the bunk
established trusts funded by the institutional investors. The assets of the trusts serve as collateral to reimburse the
bank for our borrowings in the event that the facilities are delivered to the investors as described below. Thus, we
have no asset securitization or collateral requirements under the facilities. Upon the occurrence of certain credit
events, letiers of credit under the agreement become cash collateralized creating a borrowing under the facilities.
Concurrently, the funding bank can deliver the facilities to the institutional investors, whereby the investors replace
the funding bank as lender under the facilities. Upon such occurrence, we will pay:

$500 Million Facility $700 Million Facility
$400 million $100 million $500 million $200 million
Interest Rate . ........ ... ..... ..... 3.57 percent LIBOR 4.35 percent LIBOR
Facility Fixed Fee .. ... . ... ... ... .. 3.19 percent 2.29 percent

At December 31, 2006, no loans are outstanding under our credit facilities. Letters of credit issued under our
credit facilities are:

Letters of Credit at
December 31, 2006

(Millions)
$500 million unsecured credit facilities . ... ........... ... ..o $370.1
$700 million unsecured credit facilities .. ............. ... ... . ... $525.0
$1.5 billton unsecured credit facility. .. .............. .. .. . . . . .. ... ... .. $ 28.8

Exploration & Production’s Credit Agreement

Exploration & Production has recently entered into a five-year unsecured credit agreement with certain banks
in order to reduce margin requirements related to our hedging activities as well as lower transaction fees. Margin
requirements, if any, under this new facility are dependent on the level of hedging and on natural gas reserves value.

Issuances and retirements

On May 28. 2003, we issued $300 million of 5.5 percent junior subordinated convertible debentures due 2033.
These notes, which are callable after seven years, are convertible at the option of the holder into our common stock
at a conversion price of approximately $10.89 per share. In November 2005, we initiated an offer to convert these
debentures to shares of our common stock. In January 2006, we converted approximately $220.2 million of the
debentures. (See Note 12,)

In April 2006, Transco issued $200 million aggregate principal amount of 6.4 percent senior unsecured notes
due 2016 to certain institutional investors in a private debt placement. In October 2006, Transco completed an
exchange of these notes for substantially identical new notes that are registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended.
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In April 2006, we retired a secured floating-rate term loan for $488.9 million, including outstanding principal
and accrued interest. The loan was due in 2008 and secured by substantially all of the assets of Williams Production
RMT Company. The loan was retired using a combination of cash and revolving credit borrowings,

In June 2006. Northwest Pipeline issucd $175 million aggregate principal amount of 7 percent senjor
unsecured notes due 2016 to certain institutional investors in a private debt placement. In October 2006, Northwest
Pipeline completed an exchange of these notes for substantially identical new notes that are registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

In June 2006, Williams Partners L.P, acquired 25.1 percent of our interest in Williams Four Corners LLC for
$360 miilion. The acquisition was completed after Williams Partners L.P. successfully closed a $150 million private
debt offering of 7.5 percent senior unsecured notes due 2011 and an equity offering of approximately $225 million
in net proceeds. In December 2006, Williams Partners L.P. acquired the remaining 74.9 percent interest in Williams
Four Corners LLC for $1.223 billion. The acquisition was completed after Williams Partners L.P. successfully
closed a $600 million private debt offering of 7.25 percent senior unsecured notes due 2017, a private equity
offering of approximately $350 million of common and Class B units, and a public equity offering of approximately
$294 million in net proceeds. The debt and equity issued by Williams Partners L..P. is reported as a component of our
consolidated debt balance and minorily interest balance, respectively. Williams Four Comers LLC owns certain
gathering, processing and treating assets in the San Juan Basin in Colorado and New Mexico.

Aggregate minimum maturities of long-term debr (excluding capital leases and unamortized discount and
premium) for each of the next five years are as follows:

2007 . $ 3914
2008 . L 238.0
2000 . . 53.1
2010 2173
2010 1.168.0

Cash payments for interest (net of amounts capitalized) were as follows: 2006 — $611 million: 2005 —
$625 million; and 2004 — $849 million.
Leases-Lessee

Future minimum annual rentals under noncancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2006, are payable as
follows:

Millions)
2007 . . e $ 2254
B 2270
20009 . 205.9
2000 . L e 185.8
111 2 1 179.8
Thereafter . . ... ..o [ U 1,120.9
0 A $2,144.8

The above amounts include obligations of approximately $1.9 billion related to a tolling agreement at Power
that is accounted for as an dperating tease as a result of changes to the contract terms in 2004 afier implementation
of EITF 01-8. (See Note 1) Under the tolling agreement, Power has the exclusive right to capacity and fuel
conversion services as well as ancillary services associated with electric generation facilities that are currently in
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operation in southern California. Current annual rentals under this tolling agreement range from approximately
$157 million to $169 million through 2017, with approximately $70 million remaining to be paid in 2018, Certain
transactions resulting from the tolling agreements are accounted for as operating subleases. Total rentals to be
received from these operating subleases are approximately $1.1 billion with appreximately 4 years remaining on the
agreements as of December 31, 2008.

Total rent expense was $242 million in 2006, $226 million in 2005 and $206 million in 2004. Rent expense at
Power, primarily related to the tolling agreement, was $175 million (including $11 million of contingent rentals) in
2006 and $161 million (including ($1) million of contingent rentals) in 2005. Power's rent expense was offset by
approximately $264 million (including $8 million of contingent rental income) in 2006 and $172 million (including
$7 million of contingent rental income) in 2005 resulting from sales and other transactions made possible by the
tolling agreement. Contingent rentals are primarily based on utilization of the leased property or changes in the
capacity and availability of the power generating facility.

Note 12. Stockholders’ Equity

In Navember 2005, we initiated an offer to convert our 5.5 percent junior subordinated convertible debentures
into our common stock. In January 2006, we converted approximately $220.2 million of the debentures in exchange
for 20.2 miilion shares of common stock, a $25.8 million cash premium, and $1.5 million of accrued interest.

We maintain a Stockholder Rights Plan, as amended and restated on September 21, 2004, under which cach
outstanding share of our common stock has a right (as defined in the plan) attached. Under certain conditions, each
right may be exercised to purchase, at an exercise price of $50 (subject to adjustment}, one two-hundredth of a share
of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock. The rights may be exercised only if an Acquiring Person acquires
(or obtains the right to acquire) 13 percent or more of our common stock or commences an offer for 15 percent ar
more of our common stock. The rights, which until exercised do not have voling rights, expire in 2014 and may be
redeemed at a price of $.01 per right prior to their expiration, or within a specified period of time after the
occurrence of certain events. In the event a person becomes the owner of more than 15 percent of our common stock,
each holder of a right (except an Acquiring Person) shall have the ri ght to receive, upon exercise, our common stock
having a value equal to two times the exercise price of the right. In the event we are engaged in a merger, business
combination, or 50 percent or more of our assets, cash flow or earnings power is sold or transferred, each holder of a
right (except an Acquiring Person) shall have the right o receive, upon exercise, common stock of the acquining
company having a value equal to two times the exercise price of the right.

Note 13. Stock-Based Compensation
Plan Information

The Williams Companies, Inc. 2002 Incentive Plan (the Plan) was approved by stockholders on May 16, 2002,
and amended and restated on May 15, 2003, and January 23, 2004. The Plan provides for common-stock-based
awards to both employees and nonmanagement directors. Upon approval by the stockholders, all prior stock plans
were terminated resulting in no further grants being made from those ptans. However, awards outstanding in those
prior plans remain in those plans with their respective terms and provisions,

The Plan permits the granting of various types of awards including, but not limited to, stock options and
restricted stock units, Restricted stock units represent deferred share awards subject to time and/or performance-
based vesting requirements. Awards may be granted for no consideration other than prior and future services or
based on certain financial performance targets being achieved. At December 31, 2006, 41.7 million shares of our
common stock were reserved for issuance pursuant to existing and future stock awards., of which 20 million shares
were available for future grants. At December 31, 2003, 45 million shares of our common stock were reserved for
issuance, of which 21.6 million were available for future grants.
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Stock Options

Stock options are valued at the date of award, which does not precede the approval date, and compensation cost
is recognized on a straight-line basis, net of estimated forfeitures, over the requisite service period. Stock options
generally become exercisable over 4 three-year period from the date of grant and generally expire ten years after the
grant,

The foilowing summary reflects stock option activity and related information for the year ending December 31,
2006.

Weighted-
Average Aggregate
Exercise Intrinsic
Stock Options Options Price Value
(Millions) (Millions)
Outstanding at December 31,2005, .. ..................... 204 $16.63
Granted. .. ... . e e 1.2 $21.66
Exercised .. ... ... e (2.9) $11.72 $ 364
Cancelled . .. ... . . . . (1. $32.05
Outstanding at December 31,2006, ... .................... 17.7 $16.96 $198.7
Exercisable at December 31,2006 .. .. ... ... ... ... ..... 13.2 $16.90 $157.9

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was
$36.4 million, $42.2 mitlion, and $42.4 million, respectively.

The following summary provides additional information about stock options that arc outstanding and
exercisable at December 31, 2006.

Stock Options Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted-
Weighted- Average Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Exercise Contractual
Range of Exercise Prices Options Price Life Options Price Life
{Millions) (Years) {Millions) (Years)
$22710 81000, .. ... ... 8.4 $ 7.05 59 7.1 $ 6.52 5.7
310381081640 .. ............. 9 $1543 4.5 9 $15.49 4.5
SI7.1010 83158 . .............. 54 $21.22 6.9 2.2 $22.81 4.7
$3351 1084229 . . ... ... ... 3.0 $37.59 1.7 3.0 $37.59 1.7
Total ..o 17.7 $16.96 5.4 13.2 $16.90 4.5

The estimated fair value at date of grant of options for our common stock granted in 2006, 2005, and 2004,
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, is as follows:
2006 2005 2004

Weighted-average grant date fair value of options for our

common stock granted during the year, . ... ... .. ... L. $8.36  $6.70 $4.54
Weighted-average assumptions:

Dividend yield ...... ... .. ... .. . .. . 14% 1.6% 04%

Volatility . . ..o 36.3% 333% 50.0%

Risk-free interest rate . ... ... .. .. . . .. 47% 41% 33%

Expected life (years). ... ... ... . 6.5 6.5 5.0
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The expected dividend yield is based on the average annual dividend yield as of the grant date. Expected volatility is
based on the historical volatility of our stock and the implied volatility of our stock based on traded options. In
calculating historical volatility, returns during calendar year 2002 were excluded as the extreme volatility during
that time is not reasonably expected to be repeated in the future. The risk-free interest rate is based on the

U.S. Treasury Constant Maturity rates as of the grant date. The expected life of the option 1s based on historical
exercise behavior and expected future experience.

Cash received from stock option exercises was $34.3 million, $39.4 million and $21.6 million during 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. The tax benefit realized from stock options exercised during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was
$13.9 million, $14.2 million and $13.7 million, respectively.

Nonvested Restricted Stock Units

Restricted stock units are generally valued at market value on the grant date of the award and generally vest

over three years. Restricted stock unit expense, net of estimated forfeitures, is generally recognized over the vesting
pertod on a straight-line basis.

The following summary reflects nonvested restricted stock unit activity and related information for the year
ended December 31, 2006,

Weighted-

Average
Restricted Stock Units Shares Fair Value*

(Millions)

Nonvested at December 31, 2005 . . .. ... .. ... ... .. ... . .. ... ... 2.8 $14.60
Granted . ... ... e 1.7 $23.39
Forfeited . . ... . (.2) $17.76
Vested . ... {6 $11.63
Nonvested at December 31,2006 . ... ... ... ... ... ... . 37 $20.57

*  Performance-based shares are valued at the end-of-period market price. All other shares are valued at the grant-
date market price.

Other restricted stock unit information

2006 2065 2004
Weighted-average grant date fair value of restricted stock units granted
during the year, pershare .. ......... ... .. ... . ... ... .. ... £23.39  $1935 51054
Total fair value of restricted stock units vested during the year ($'s in
millions) ... oL $ 145 §$137 $ 186

Performance-based share awards issued under the Plan represent 34 percent of nonvested restricted stock units
outstanding at December 31, 2006. These awards are generally earned at the end of a three-year period based on
actual performance against a performance target. Expense associated with these performance-based awards will be
recognized in future periods when performance largets are established. Based on the extent to which certain

financial targets are achieved, vested shares may range from zero percent to 200 percent of the original award
amount.
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Note 14. Financial Instruments, Derivatives, Guarantees and Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial Instruments
Fair-value methods

We use the following methods und assumptions in estimating our fair-value disclosures for financial
instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash:  The carrying amounts of cash equivalents reported in the
balance sheet approximate fair value due to the short-term maturity of these instruments,

Other securities. notes and other noncurrent receivables, structured indemnity settlement obligation, margin
deposits, and customer margin deposits payable:  The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet approximate
fair value as these instruments have interest rates approximating market. Other securities in the table below consists
of auction rate securities and held-to-maturity securities and are reported in other current assets and deferred
charges in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Long-term debt:  The fair value of our publicly traded long-term debt is valued using indicative year-end
traded bond market prices. Privale debt is valued based on the prices of similar securities with similar terms and
credit ratings. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, approximately 87 percent and 89 percent, respectively, of our long-
term debt was publicly traded. We use the expertise of outside investment banking firms to assist with the estimate
of the fair value of our long-term debt.

Guarantees:  The guarantees represented in the table below consists primarily of guarantees we have
provided in the event of nonpayment by our previously owned communications subsidiary, Williams Communi-
cations Group (WilTel), on certain lease performance obligations. To estimate the fair value of the guarantees, the
estimated default rate is determined by obtaining the average cumulative issuer-weighted corporate default rate for
each guarantee based on the credit rating of WilTel's current owner and the term of the underlying obligation. The
default rates are published by Moody's Investors Service.

Energy dertvatives:  Energy derivatives include:

* Futures contracts;
» Forward contracts:
* Swap agreements;
* QOption contracts.

The fair value of energy derivatives is determined based on the nature of the underlying transaction and the market
in which the transaction is exccuted. We execute most of these transactions on an organized commodity exchange or
in over-the-counter markets in which quoted prices exist for active periods. For contracts with terms that exceed the
time period for which actively quoted prices are available, we determine fair value by estimating commodity prices
during the illiquid periods wilizing internally developed valvations incorporating information obtained from
commodity prices in actively quoted markets, quoted prices in less active markets, prices reflected in current
transactions, and other market fundamental analysis.
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Carrying amounts and fair values of our financial instruments
! 2006 2005

Carrying Carrying
é{ss;el (Liability) Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
{Millions)

Cash and cash equivalents . . . ... ... ... ...... $2,2686 $22686 $1,5972 $1.,597.2

Restricted cash (current and noncurrent}. .. ... .. 126.1 126.1 129.4 129.4

Other securities . .. ....................... 103.2 103.2 122.9 1229

Noites and other noncurrent receivables. . .. .. ... 3.6 36 26.6 26.6

Cost based investments (see Note 3). .......... 51.6 (a) 56.7 (a)
Long-term debt, including current portion (see

Note IDMb) .. ... ... . ... .. ... ... . (8,011.6) (8480.00 (7,710.3)  (8,599.4)
Structured indemnity settlement obligation (see ' _ ‘

Note 10) ...... ... . . . ... (33.9) (33.9) (51.3) (51.3)
Margin deposits. .. .. e e 59.3 59.3 349.2 349.2
Customer margin deposits payable . ... .. ... .. (128.7) (128.7) (320.7) (320.7)
Guarantees. . . ........... ... .. ... ... ... (41.6) {34.8) (43.3) (43.3)
Net energy derivatives: _

Energy comﬁmdity cash flow hedges ...... . . 365.1 365.1 (5.5) (5.5)

Other energy derivatives. ... .............. 69.8 69.8 106.9 106.9

Other dertvatives(c) ............ ... ..... . .. 1.5 1.5 .9 9

(a) These investments are primarily in nonpublicly traded companies for which it is not practicable to estimate fair
value, '

(b) Excludes capital leases,

(¢) Consists of nonenergy cash flow hedges.

Energy Derivatives
Our energy derivative contracts include the following:

Futures contracts: Futures contracts are standardized commitments through an organized commodity
exchange to either purchase or sell a commodity at a future date for a specified price. Futures are generally
settled in cash, but may be settled through delivery of the underlying commodity. The fair value of these contacts is
generally determined using quoted prices.

Forward contracts:  Forward contracts are over-the-counter commitments to either purchase or sell a
commeodity at a future date for a specified price, which involve physical delivery of energy commodities, and
may contain either fixed or variable pricing terms. Forward contracts are valued based on prices of the underlying
energy commaodities over the contract life and contractual or notional volumes with the resulting expected future
cash flows discounted to a present value using a risk-free market interest rate.

Swap agreements: Swap agreements require us to make payments to (or receive paymeints from) counter-
parties based upon the differential between a fixed and variable price or between variable prices of energy
commodities at different locations; Swap agreements are valued based on prices of the underlying energy
commodities over the contract life and contractual or notional volumes with the resulting expected future cash
flows discounted to a present value using a risk-free market interest rate.

Option contracts:  Physical and financial option contracts give the buyer the right to exercise the option and
receive the difference between a predetermined strike price and a market price at the date of exercise. These
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contracts are valued based on option pricing models considering prices of the underlying energy commodities over
the contract life, volatility of the commodity prices, contractual volumes, estimated volumes under option and other
arrangements, and a risk-free market interest rate.

Energy commodity cash flow hedges
8! ) g

We are exposed to market risk from changes in energy commaodity prices within our operations. We utilize
derivatives (o manage our exposure to the variability in expected future cash flows from forecasted purchases and
sales of natural gas and electricity attributable to commodity price risk. Certain of these derivatives have been
designated as cash flow hedges under SFAS No. 133,

Our Power segment sells electricity produced by our electric generation facilitics, obtained contractually
through tolling agreements or obtained through marketplace transactions at different locations throughout the
United States. We also buy electricity and capacity to serve our full requirements agreements in the Southeast. To
reduce exposure to a decrease in revenues and increase in costs from fluctuations in electricity prices, we enter into
fixed-price forward physical sales and purchase contracts and financial option contracts to mitigate the price risk on
forecasted electricity sales and purchases, '

Our electric generation facilities and tolling agreements require natural gas for the production of electricity. To
reduce our exposure to increasing costs of natural gas due to changes in market prices. we enter into natural gas
futures contracts, swap agreements, fixed-price forward physical purchases and financial option contracts to
mitigate the price risk on anticipated purchases of natural gas.

Power’s cash flow hedges are expected to be highly effective in offsetting cash flows attributable to the hedged
risk during the term of the hedge. However, ineffectiveness may be recognized primarily as a result of locationat
differences between the hedging derivative and the hedged item, changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties,
and the hedging derivative contract having an initial fair value upon designation.

Our Exploration & Production segment produces, buys and sells natural gas at different locations throughout
the United States. To reduce exposure to a decrease in revenues from fluctuations in natural gas market prices, we
hedge price risk by entering into natural gas futures contracts, swap agreements, and financial option contracts to
mitigate the price risk on forecasted sales and purchases of natural gas. We also enter into basis swap agreements to
reduce the locational price risk associated with our producing basins. Exploration & Production’s cash flow hedges
are expected to be highly effective in offsetting cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during the term of the
hedge. However, ineffectiveness may be recognized primarily as a result of locational differences between the
hedging derivative and the hedged item.

Changes in the fair value of our cash flow hedges are deferred in other comprehensive income and are
reclassified into revenues in the same period or periods in which the hedged forecasted purchases or sales affect
earnings, or when it is probable that the hedged forecasted transaction will not occur by the end of the originally
specified time period. During 2006, we reclassified approximately $! million of net gains from other compre-
hensive income to earnings as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow hedges because the forecasted transaction
did not occur by the end of the originally specified time period. Approximately $20 million and $2 million of net
gains from hedge ineffectiveness are included in revenues in the Consolidated Statement of Income during 2006 and
2003, respectively. For 2006 and 2005, there are no derivative gains or losses excluded from the assessment of hedge
effectiveness. As of December 31, 2006, we have hedged portions of future cash flows associated with anticipated
cnergy commodity purchases and sales for up to nine years. Based on recorded values at December 31, 2006,
approximately $% million of net gains (net of income tax provision of $6 million) will be rectassified into earnings
within the next year. These recorded values are based on market prices ot the commodities as of December 31, 2006.
Due to the volatile nature of commodity prices and changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties, actual gains or
losses realized in 2007 will likely differ from these values. These gains or losses will offset net losses or gains that
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will be realized in earnings from previous unfavorable or favorable market movements associated with underlying
hedged transactions.

Power elected hedge accounting for certain of its nontrading derivatives in the fourth quarter of 2004 after sur
Board decided in September 2004 to retain the Power business. Before this election, net changes in the fair value of
these derivatives were recognized as revenues in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

L

Other energy derivatives

Our Power segment has other energy derivatives that have not been designated or do not qualify as
SFAS No. 133 hedges. As such, the net change in their fair value is recognized in revenues in the Consolidared
Statement of Income. Even though they do not qualify for hedge accounting (see derivative instruments and
hedging activities in Note 1 for a description of hedge accounting), certain of these derivatives hedge Power’s future
cash flows on an economic basis.

In addition, our Exploration & Production segment enters into natural gas basis swap agreements that are not
designated in a hedging relationship under SFAS No. 133. The fair value of these contracts is approximately
$22 million as of December 31, 2006.

Other energy-related contracts

We also hoid significant nonderivative energy-related contracts in our Power portfolios. These have not been
included in the financial instruments table above or in our Consolidated Balance Sheet because they are not
derivatives as defined by SFAS No. 133,

Guarantees

In addition to the guarantees and payment obligations discussed elsewhere in these footnotes (see Notes 3
and 15). we have issued guarantees and other similar arrangements with off-balance sheet risk as discussed below.

In connection with agreements executed prior to our acquisition of Transco to resolve take-or-pay and other
contract claims and to amend gas purchase contracts, Transco entered into certain settlements with producers which
may require the indemnification of certain claims for additional royalties that the producers may be required to pay
as a result of such scttlements. Transco, through its agent, Power, continues to purchase gas under contracts which
extend, in some cases, through the life of the associated gas reserves. Certain of these contracts contain royalty
indemnification provisions that have no carrying value. Producers have received certain demands and may receive
other demands, which could result in claims pursuant to royalty indemnification provisions. Indemnification for
royalties will depend on, among other things, the specific lease provisions between the producer and the lessor ar.d
the terms of the agreement between the producer and Transco. Consequently, the potential maximum future
payments under such indemnification provisions cannot be determined. However, management believes that the
probability of material payments is remote.

In connection with the 1993 public offering of units in the Williams Coal Seam Gas Royalty Trust (Royalty
Trust), our Exploration & Production segment entered into a gas purchase contract for the purchase of natural gas in
which the Royalty Trust holds a net profits interest. Under this agreement, we guarantee a minimum purchase price
that the Royalty Trust will realize in the calculation of its net profits interest. We have an annual option to
discontinue this minimum purchase price guarantee and pay solety based on an index price. The maximum potentizl
future exposure associated with this guarantee is not determinable because it is dependent upon natural gas prices
and production volumes. No amounts have been accrued for this contingent obligation as the index price continues
to substantially exceed the minimum purchase price.

We are required by certain foreign lenders to ensure that the interest rates received by them under various loan
agreements are not reduced by taxes by providing for the reimbursement of any domestic taxes required to be paid
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by the foreign lender. The maximum potential amount of future payments under these indemnifications is based on
the related borrowings. These indemnifications generally continue indefinitely unless limited by the underlying tax
regulations and have no carrying value. We have never been called upon to perform under these indemnifications.

We have provided guarantees in the event of nonpayment by our previously owned communications
subsidiary. WilTel. on certain lease performance obligations that extend through 2042, The maximum potential
exposure is approximately $46 million a1 December 31, 2006. and $47 million at December 31, 2005. Qur exposure
declines systematically throughout the remaining term of WilTel's obligations. The carrying value of these
guarantees is approximately $41 million at December 31, 2006.

Former managing directors of Gulf Liquids are involved in litigation related to the construction of gas
processing plants. Gulf Liguids has indemnity obligations to the former managing directors for legal fees and
potential losses that may result from this litigation. Claims against these former managing directors have been
settled and dismissed after payments on their behalf by directors and officers insurers. Some unresolved issues
remain between us and these insurers, but no amounts have been accrued for any potential liability.

We have guaranteed the performance of a former subsidiary of our wholly owned subsidiary MAPCO Inc.,
under a coal supply contract. This guarantee was granted by MAPCO Inc. upon the sale of its former subsidiary to a
third-party in 1996. The guaranteed contract provides for an annual supply of a minimum of 2.25 million tons of
coal. Our potential exposure is dependent on the difference between current market prices of coal and the pricing
terms of the contract, both of which are variable, and the remaining term of the contract. Given the variability of the
terms, the maximum futuré potential payments cannot be determined. We believe that our likelihood of perfor-
mance under this guarantee is remote. In the cvent we are required to perform, we are fully indemnified by the
purchaser of MAPCO Inc.’s former subsidiary. This guarantee expires in December 2010 and has no carrying value.

Concentration of Credit Risk
Cash equivalents .
Our cash equivalents consist of high-quality securities placed with various major financial institutions with
credit ratings at or above BBB by Standard & Poor’s or Baal by Moody's Investors Service.
Accounts and notes receivable

The following table summarizes concentration of receivables. net of allowances, by product or service at
December 31. 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
(Millions)
Receivables by product or service:
Sale or transportation of natural gas and related products . ... ....... ... $ 8947 §$1.1426
Sales of power and related services .. ... ... L 270.2 394.5
Interest . .. e 386 324
Other ..ot P o 9.4 '44.3
Total .. e $1.212.9  $1,613.8

Natural gas customers include pipelines, distribution companices, producers, gas marketers and industrial users
primarily located in the eastern- and northwestern United States. Rocky Mountains. Gulf Coast, Venezuela and
Canada. Customers for power include the California Independent System Operator (ISO), the California Depart-
ment of Water Resources, and other power marketers and utilities located throughout the United States. Asa general
policy. collateral is not required for receivables, but customers’ financial condition and credit worthiness are
evaluated regutarly.
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Derivative assets and liabilities

We have a risk of loss as a result of counterparties not performing pursuant to the terms of their contractual
obligations. Risk of loss results from items including credit considerations and the regulatory environment for
which a counterparty transacts. We attempt to minimize credit-risk exposure to derivative counterparties and
brokers through formal credit policies, consideration of credit ratings from public ratings agencies, monitoring
procedures, master netting agreements and collateral support under certain circumstances.

The concentration of counterparties within the energy and energy trading industry impacts our overall
exposure to credit risk in that these counterparties are similarly influenced by changes in the economy and
regulatory issues. Additional collateral support could include the following:

+ Letters of credit;
« Payment under margin agreements;
* Guarantees of payment by credit worthy parties.
We also enter into master netting agreements to mitigate counterparty performance and credit risk.

The gross credit exposure from our derivative contracts as of December 31, 2006, is summarized below.

Investment
Counterparty Type ’ ) Grade(a) Total
: : (Millions}
Gas and electric UHNIGES. - .. 0. oL $ 2480 % 2499
Energy marketers and traders . .. .................. .. ... ... .. ... .. 4127 1,784.3
Financial institations ... ... ..., .. ... ... ... .. .. .. .. 22194 2,2194
Other. . ... .. e 23.3 29.8

$2,903.4 4,283.4
Credit Teserves. .. ... (20.3)
Gross credit exposure from derivatives .. .. ................... ... .. $4,263.1
We assess our credit exposuré on a net basis to reflect master netting agreements in place with certain -

counterparties. We offset our credit exposure to each counterparty with amounts we owe the counterparty under
derivative contracts. The net credit exposure from our derivatives as of December 31, 2006, is summarized below.

Investment
Counterparty Type Grade(a) Total
(Millions)

Gas and electric utilities . ... .............. T $120.4 $120.5
Energy marketers and traders .......... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... 209.0 4554
Financial institutions. . . ... ... ... . . 3255 325.5
Other . .o 20.4 20.4

$675.3 9218
Credit TeServes . .. ... ...t (20.3)
Net credit exposure from derivatives . ... ......... ... ... ... .. .. .. ... $901.5

(a) We determine investment grade primarily using publicly available credit ratings. We included counterparties
with a minimum Standard & Poor’s of BBB- or Moody’s Investors Service rating of Baa3 in investment grade.
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We also classify counterparties that have provided sufficient collateral, such as cash, standby letters of credit.
parent company guarantees, and property interests, as investment grade.,

Revenues

In 2006, 2005 and 2004, there were no customers for which our sales exceeded 10 percent of our consolidated
revenues. ‘

Note 15. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Rate and Regulatory Matters and Related Litigation

Our interstate pipeline subsidiaries have various regulatory proceedings pending. As a result of rulings in
certain of these proceedings, a portion of the revenues of these subsidiaries has been collected subject to refund. The
natural gas pipeline subsidiaries have accrued approximately $2 million for potential refunds as of December 31,
2006. '

Issues Resulting From California Energy Crisis

Subsidiaries of our Power scgment are engaged in power marketing in various geographic areas, including
California. Prices charged for power by us and other traders and generators in California and other western states in
2000 and 2001 were challenged in various proceedings, including those before the FERC. These challenges
included refund proceedings, summer 2002 90-day contracts, investigations of alleged market manipulation
including withholding, gas indices and other gaming of the market. new long-term power sales to the State of
California that were subsequently challenged and civil litigation relating to certain of these issues. We have entered
into settlements with the State of California (State Settlement), major California utilities (Utilities Settlement), and
others that substantially resolved each of these issues with these parties.

As a result of a December 19, 2006 Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals decision, certain contracts that Power
entered into during 2000 and 2001 may be subject to partial refunds. These contracts, under which Power sold
electricity. totaled approximately $89 million in revenue. While Power is not a party to the cases involved in the
appellate court decision, the buyer of clectricity from Power is a party to the cases and claims that Power must
refund to the buyer any loss it suffers due to the decision and the FERC's reconsideration of the contract terms at
issue in the decision. '

Certain other issues also remain open at the FERC and for other nonsettling parties.

Refund proceedings

Although we entered into the State Settlement and Utilities Settiement, which resclved the refund issues
among the setiling parties, we continue to have potential refund exposure to nonsettling parties. such as various
California end users that did not participate in the Utilities Settlement. As a part of the Utilities Settlement, we
funded escrow accounts that we anticipate will satisfy any ultimate refund determinations in favor of the nonsettling
parties. We are also owed interest from counterparties in the California market during the refund period for which
we have recorded a receivable totaling approximately $31 million at December 31, 2006. Collection of the interest
is subject to the conclusion of this proceeding. Therefore, we continue to participate in the FERC refund case and
related proceedings. Challenges to virtually every aspect of the refund proceeding, including the refund period,
were made to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. On August 2, 2006, the Ninth Circuit issued its order that largely
upheld the FERC’s prior rulings, but it expanded the types of transactions that were made subject to refund. Because
of our settlement, we do not expect this decision will have a material impact on us. No final refund calculation,
however, has been made, and certain aspects of the refund calculation process remain unclear and prevent that final
refund calculation. As part of the State Settlement, an additional $45 million, previously accrued, remains to be paid
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1o the California Attorney General (or his designee) over the next three years, with the final payment of $15 millicn
due on January 1, 2010

Reporting of Natural Gas-Related Information to Trade Publications

We disclosed on October 25. 2002, that certain of our natural gas traders had reported inaccurate information to
a trade publication that published gas price indices. In 2002, we received a subpoena from a federal grand jury in
northern California seeking documents related to our involvement in California markets. including our reporting to
trade publications for both gas and power transactions. We have completed our response to the subpoena. Three
former traders with Power have pled guilty to manipulation of gas prices through misreporting to an industry trade
periodical. One former trader has pled not guilty. On February 21. 2006, we entered into a deferred prosecution
agreement with the Department of Justice (DOJ) that is intended to resolve this matter. The agreement obligated us
to pay a total of $50 million, of which $20 million was paid in March 2006. The remaining $30 million has been paid
in February 2007. Absent a breach, the agreement will expire 15 months from the date of execution of the agreement
and no further action will be taken by the DOJ.

Civil suits based on allegations of manipulating the gas indices have been brought against us and others, in
ciach case seeking an unspecified amount of damages. We are currently a defendant in:

* Class action litigation in federal court in Nevada alleging that we manipulated gas prices for direct
purchasers of gas in California. We have reached settlement of this matter for $2.4 million. Legal
documents will be filed with the court and the settiement is subject to court approval.

+ Class action litigation in state court in California alleging that we manipulated prices for indirect
purchasers of gas in California. On December 11, 2006, the court granted final approval of our settlement
of this matter for $15.6 million.

= State court in California on behalf of certain individual 848 users.

+ Class action litigation in state court in Colorado, Kansas, Missouri, Tennessee and Wisconsin brought on
behalf of direct and indirect purchasers of gas in those states, On February 2, 2007, the Tennessee court
dismissed the case before it because the claims could only be asserted ar the FERC.

Earlier this year. we settled a case for $9.15 million in Federal court in New York based on an allegation of
manipulation of the NYMEX gas market. it is reasonably possible that additional amounts may be necessary o
resolve the remaining owstanding litigation in this area, the amount of which cannot be reasonably estimated at (his
time.

Mobile Bay Expansion

In December 2002, an administrative law judge at the FERC issued an initial decision in Transco’s 2001
general rate case which, among other things, rejected the recovery of the costs of Transco's Mobile Bay expansion
project from its shippers on a “rolled-in™ basis and found that incremental pricing for the Mobile Bay expansion
project is just and reasonable. In March 2004, the FERC issued an Order on Initial Decision in which it reversed
certain parts of the administrative law judge’s decision and accepted Transco’s proposal for rolled-in rates. Power
holds long-term transportation capacity on the Mobile Bay expansion project. If the FERC had adopted the decision
of the administrative law judge on the pricing of the Mobile Bay expansion project and also required that the
decision be implemented effective September 1. 2001, Power could have been subject to surcharges of approx-
imately $111 million. including interest, through December 31, 2006, in addition to increascd costs going forward.
Certain parties have filed appeals in federal court seeking to have the FERC's ruling on the rolled-in rates
overturned,
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Enron Bankruptcy

We have outstanding claims against Enron Corp. and various of its subsidiaries (collectively “Enron™) related
to its bankrupicy filed in December 2001. In 2002, we sold $100 million of our claims against Enron to a third party
for $24.5 million. In 2003, Enren filed objections to these claims. We have resolved Enron’s objections, subject to
court approval. Pursuant to the sales agreement, the purchaser of the claims has demanded repayment of the
purchase price for the reduced portions of the claims. In January 2007, we entered into an agreement-in-principle
with the purchaser to setile any potential repayment obligations.

Environmental Matters
Continuing operations

Since 1989, our Transco subsidiay has had studies underway to test certain of its facilities for the presence of
1oxic and hazardous substances to determine to what extent, if any, remediation may be necessary. Transco has
responded to data requests from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and state agencies regarding such
potential contamination of certain of its sites. Transco has identified polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) contamination
in compressor systems, soils and related properties at certain compressor station sites. Transco has also been
involved in negotiations with the EPA and state agencies to develop screening, sampling and cleanup programs, In
addition. Transco commenced negotiations with certain environmental authorities and other programs concerning
investigative and remedial actions relative to potential mercury contamination at certain gas metering sites, The
costs of any such remediation will depend upon the scope of the remediation. At December 31, 2006, we had
accrued liabilities of $6 million related to PCB contamination, potential mercury contamination, and other toxic and
hazardous substances. Transco has been identified as a potentially responsible party at various Superfund and state
waste disposal sites. Based on present volumetric estimates and other factors, we have estimated our aggregate
exposure for remediation of these sites to be less than $500,000, which is included in the environmental accrual
discussed above.

Beginning in the mid-1980’s, our Northwest Pipeline subsidiary evaluated many of its facilities for the
presence of toxic and hazardous substances to determine to what extent, if any, remediation might be necessary.
Consistent with other natural gas transmission companies, Northwest Pipeline identified PCB contamination in air
compressor systems, soils and related properties at certain compressor station sites, Similarly, Northwest Pipeline
identified hydrocarbon impacts at these facilities due to the former use of earthen pits and mercury contamination at
certatn gas metering sites. The PCBs were remediated pursuant to a Consent Decree with the EPA in the late 1980s
and Northwest Pipeline conducted a voluntary clean-up of the hydrocarbon and mercury impacts in the early 1990s.
In 2005, the Washington Department of Ecology required Northwest Pipeline to reevaluate its previous mercury
clean-ups in Washington. Currently, Northwest Pipeline is assessing the actions needed for the sites to comply with
Washington's current environmental standards. At December 31. 2006, we have accrued liabilities totaling
approximately 35 million for these costs. We expect that these costs will be recoverable through Northwest
Pipeline’s rates.

We also accrue environmental remediation costs for natural gas underground storage facilities, primarily
related to soil and groundwater contamination. At December 31, 2006, we have accrued liabilities totaling
approximately $7 million for these costs.

In August 2005, our subsidiary. Williams Production RMT Company, voluntarily disclosed to the Colorado
Departinent of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE) two air permit violations. We have reached an agreement
in principle with the CDPHE in which we agree to pay a $500,000 penaity and conduct a supplemental
environmental project. A definitive agreement will be finalized soon.

In March 2006, the CDPHE issued a notice of violation (NOV} to Williams Production RMT Company related
to our operating permit for the Rulison oil separation and evaporation facility. On April 12, 2006, we met with the
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CDPHE to discuss the allegations contained in the NOV. In May 2006, we provided additional information to the
agency regarding the emission estimates for operations from 1997 through 2003 and applied for updated permits.

In July 2006, the CDPHE issued an NOV to Wiltiams Production RMT Company related to operating permits
for our Roan Cliffs and Hayburn Gas Plants in Garfield County, Colorado. In September 2006, we met with the
CDPHE to discuss the allegations contained in the NOV, and in October 2006, we provided additional requested
information to the agency.

In August 2006, the CDPHE issued a NOV to Williams Production RMT Company related to our Grand Valley
Oil Separation and Evaporation Facility located in Garfield County, Colorado in which the CDPHE alleged that we
fatled to obtain a construction permit and to comply with certain provisions of our existing permit. In September,
2006, we met with the CDPHE, and in October 2006, we provided additional requested information to the agency.

In Yuly 2001, the EPA issued an information request asking for information on oil releases and discharges in
any amount from our pipelines, pipeline systems, and pipeline facilities used in the movement of oil or petroleum
products, during the period from July 1, 1998 through July 2, 2001. In November 2001, we furnished our response.
In March 2004, the DOJ invited the new owner of Williams Energy Partners and Magellan Midstream Partners, L.P.
(Magellan) to enter into negotiations regarding alleged violations of the Clean Water Act. With the exception of four
minor release events that underwent earlier cleanup operation under state enforcement actions, our environmental
indemnification obligations to Magellan were released in a 2004 buyout. We do not expect further enforcement
action with respect to the four release events or two 2006 spills at our Colorado and Wyoming facilities after
providing additional requested information to the DOJ,

Former operations, including operations classified as discontinued

In connection with the sale of certain assets and businesses, we have retained responsibility, through
indemnification of the purchasers, for environmental and other labilities existing at the time the sale was
consummated, as described below.

Agrico_

In connection with the 1987 sale of the assets of Agrico Chemical Company, we agreed to indemnify the
purchaser for environmental cleanup costs resulting from certain conditions at specified locations to the extent such
costs exceed a specified amount. At December 31, 2006, we have accrued liabilities of approximately $9 million for
such excess costs. '

At December 31, 2006, we have accrued environmental liabilities totaling approximately $25 million related
primarily to our:

* Potential indemnification obligations to purchasers of our former retail petroleum and refining operations;
* Former propane marketing operations, bio-energy facilities, petroleum products and natural gas pipelines;
* Discontinued petroleum refining facilities;

* Former exploration and production and mining operations.

These costs include certain conditions at specified locations related primarily to soil and groundwarer
contamination and any penalty assessed on Williams Refining & Marketing, L..L.C. (Williams Refining) associated
with noncompliance with the EPA’s National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants {NESHAP). In 2002,
Williams Refining submitted a self-disclosure letter to the EPA indicating noncompliance with those regulations.
This unintentional noncompliance had occurred due to a regulatory interpretation that resulted in under-counting
the total annual benzene level at Williams Refining’s Memphis refinery. Also in 2002, the EPA conducted an all-
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media audit of the Memphis refinery, In 2004, Williams Refining and the new owner of the Memphis refinery met
with the EPA and the DOJ to discuss alleged violations and proposed penaities due to noncompliance issues
wentified in the report, including the benzene NESHAP issuc. In July and August 2006, we finalized our
agreements that resolved both the government’s claims against us for alleged violations and an indemnity dispute
with the purchaser in connection with our 2003 sale of the Memphis refinery. We have paid the required settlement
amounts 10 the purchaser, and our puyment to the government awaits the filing of the settlement with the court.

In 2004, our Guif Liguids subsidiary initiated a self-audit of all environmental conditions (air, water, waste) at
three facilitics: Geismar, Sorrento, and Chalmette, Louisiana. The audit revealed numerous infractions of Louisiana
environmental regulations and resulted in a Consolidated Compliance Order and Notice of Potential Penalty from
the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality (LDEQ). No specific penalty amount was assessed. Instead,
LDEQ was required by Louisiana law to demand a profit and loss statement to determine the financial benefit
obtained by noncompliance and to assess a penalty accordingly. Guif Liquids offered $91.500 as a single, final,
global multi-media settlement. Subsequent negotiations have resulted in a revised offer of $109,000, which LDEQ
is currently reviewing.

Certain of our subsidiaries have been identified as potentially responsible parties at various Superfund and
state waste disposal sites. In addition, these subsidiaries have incurred, or are alleged to have incurred, various other
hazardous materials removal or remediation obligations under environmental laws.

Summary of environmental matters

Actual costs incurred for these matters could be substantially greater than amounts accrued depending on the
actual number of contaminated sites identified, the actual amount and extent of contamination discovered, the final
cleanup standards mandated by the EPA and other governmental authorities and other factors, but the amount
cannot be reasonably estimated at this time,

Other Legal Matters
Will Price (formerly Quingue)

In 2001. fourteen of our entities were named as defendants in a nationwide class action lawsuit in Kansas state
court that hud been pending against other defendants, generally pipeline and gathering companies, since 2000. The
plaintiffs alleged that the defendants have engaged in mismeasurement techniques that distort the heating content of
natural gas, resulting in an alleged underpayment of royalties to the class of producer plaintiffs and sought an
unspecified amount of damages. The fourth amended petition. which was filed in 2003, deleted alt of our defendant
entilies cxcept two Midstream subsidiaries. All remaining defendants have opposed class certification and a hearing
on plaintiffs” second motion to certity the class was held on April 1, 2005. We are awaiting a decision from the court.

Gryaberg

in 1998, the DOJ informed us that Juck Grynberg. an individual, had filed claims on behalf of himself and the
federal government, in the United States District Court for the District of Colorado under the False Claims Act
against us and certain of our wholly owned subsidiaries. The claims sought an unspecified amount of royalties
allegedly not paid to the federal government, treble damages, a civil penalty, attorneys’ fees, and costs. In
connection with our sales of Kern River Gas Transmission in 2002 and Texas Gas Transmission Corporation in
2003, we agreed to indemnify the purchasers for any liability relating to this claim. including legal fces. The
maximum amount of future payments that we could potentially be required to pay under these indemnifications
depends upon the ultimate resolution of the claim and cannot currently be determined. Grynberg had also filed
claims against approximately 300 other energy companies alleging that the defendants violated the False Claims
Act in connection with the measurement, royalty valuation and purchase of hydrocarbons. In 1999, the DOJ
announced that it was declining to intervene in any of the Grynberg cases. Alsoin 1999, the Panel on Multi-District
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Litigation transferred all of these cases, including those filed against us, to the federal court in Wyoming for pre-trial
purposes. Grynberg’s measurement claims remained pending against us and the other defendants: the court
previously dismissed Grynberg's royalty valuation claims. In Muay 2005, the court-appointed special master entered
a report which recommended that the claims against our Gas Pipeline and Midstream subsidiaries be dismissed but
upheld the claims against our Exploration & Production subsidiaries against our jurisdictional challenge. In October
2006, the District Court dismissed all claims against us and our wholly owned subsidiaries, and in November 2006,
Grynberg filed his notice of appeal with the Tenth Circuit Court of Appeals.

On August 6, 2002, Jack ). Grynberg, and Celeste C. Grynberg, Trustee on Behalf of the Rachel Susan
Grynberg Trust, and the Stephen Mark Grynberg Trust, served us and one of our Exploration & Production
subsidiaries with a complaint in the state court in Denver. Colorado. The complaint alleges that we have used
mismeasurement techniques that distort the BTU heating content of natural gas, resulting in the alleged under-
puyment of royalties to Grynberg and other independent natural gas producers. The complaint also alleges that we
inappropriately took deductions from the gross value of their natural gas and made other royalty valuation errors,
Under various theories of relief, the plaintiff is secking actual damages of between $2 miltion and $20 million based
on interest rate variations and punitive damages in the amount of approximately $1.4 miilion. In 2004, Grynberg
fited an amended complaint against one of our Exploration & Production subsidiaries, This subsidiary filed an
answer in January 2005, denying liability for the damages claimed. Trial in this case was originally set for May
2006, but the parties have negotiated an agreement dismissing the measurement claims and deferring further
proceedings on the royalty claims until resolution of an appeal in another case.

Securities class actions

Numerous shareholder class action suits were filed against us in 2002 in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Oklahoma. The majority of the suits alleged that we and co-defendants, WilTel, previously an
owned subsidiary known as Williams Communications, and certain corporate officers. acled jointly und separately
to inflate the stock price of both companies. Other suits alleged similar causes of action related to a public offering
in carly January 2002 known as the FELINE PACS offering. These cases were also filed in 2002 against us, certain
corporate officers, all members of our board of directors and ail of the offerings” underwriters. WilTel was
dismissed as a defendant as a result of its bankruptcy. These cases were consolidated and an order was issued
requiring separate amended consolidated complaints by our equity holders and WilTel equity holders. The
underwriter defendants have requested indemnification and defense from these cases. If we grant the reqguesied
indemnifications to the underwriters, any related settlement costs will not be covered by our insurance policies. We
covered the cost of defending the underwriters. In 2002, the amended complaints of the WilTel securities holders
and of our securities holders added numerous claims related to Power. On June 13, 2006, we announced that we had
reached an agreement-in-principle to settle the claims of our securities holders for a total payment of $290 million.
On October 4, 2006, the court granted preliminary approval of the settlement. On November 3, 2006, we paid into
escrow approximately $145 million in cash to fund the settlement, and the balance of the total settlement amount
was funded by our insurers. On February 9, 2007, the court gave its final approval to the settlement. We entered into
indemnity agreements with certain of our insurers to ensure their timely payment related to this settlement. The
carrying value of our estimated liability related to these agreements is immaterial because we belicve the likelihood
ol any future performance is remote.

Litigation with the WilTel equity holders continues but the trial hus been stayed pending decisions on various
motions for summary judgment. Any obligation of ours to the WilTel equity holders as a result of 4 setilement or as a
result of trial will not likely be covered by insurance, as our insurance coverage has been fully utilized by the
settlement described above. The extent of the obligation is presently unknown and cannot be estimated, but it is
reasonably possible that our exposure materially exceeds amounts accrued for this matter.

Derivative sharcholder suits have been filed in state court in Oklahoma all based on similar allegations. The
state court approved motions to consolidate and to stay these Okiahoma suits pending action by the federal court in
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the shareholder suits. On December 23. 2006, our insurer paid $1.2 million on our behalf to reimburse the plaintiffs’
attorneys fees and expenses which concluded the settlement of these suits. We previously implemented certain
corporate governance and internal control enhancements that we agreed to under the court-approved settlement
agreement.

Federal income rax litigation

One of our wholly-owned subsidiaries, Transco Coal Gas Company, was engaged in a dispute with the Iniernal
Revenue Service (IRS) regarding the recapture of certain income tax credits associated with the construction of a
coal gasification plant in North Dakota by Great Plains Gasification Associates, in which Transco Coal Gas
Company was a partner, This case has been resolved. (Sec Note 5.)

TAPS Quality Bank

One of our subsidiaries, Williams Alaska Petroleum, Inc. (WAPL), is actively engaged in administrative
litigation being conducted jointly by the FERC and the Regulatory Commission of Alaska (RCA) concerning the
Trans-Alaska Pipeline System (TAPS) Quality Bank. Primary issues being litigated include the appropriate
valuation of the naphtha, heavy distillate, vacuum gas oil and residual product cuts within the TAPS Quality
Bank as well as the appropriate retroactive effects of the determinations. Due to the sale of WAPI's interests on
March 31, 2004, no future Quality Bank liability will accrue but we are responsible for any liability that existed as of
that date including potential liability for any retroactive payments that might be awarded in these proceedings for
the period prior to March 31, 2004. In the third quarter of 2004, the FERC and RCA presiding administrative law
judges rendered their joint and individual initial decisions. The initial decisions set forth methodologies for
determining the valuations of the product cuts under review and also approved the retroactive application of the
approved methodologies for the heavy distliate and residual product cuts. In third-quarter 2004, we accrued
approximately $134 million based on our computation and assessment of ultimate ruling terms that were considered
probable.

The FERC and the RCA comipleted their reviews of the initial decisions and in 2005 issued substantially
similar orders gencrally affirming the initial decisions. On June 1. 2006. the FERC, after two sets of rehearing
requests, entered its final order (FERC Final Order). During this administrative rehearing process all other appeals
of the initial decisions were stayed including ExxonMobil's appeal to the D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals asserting
that the FERC’s reliance on the Highway Reauthorization Act as the basis for limiting the retroactive effect violates,
among other things, the separation of powers under the U.S. Constitution by interfering with the FERCs
independent decision-making role. ExxonMobil filed a similar appeal in the Alaska Superior Court. We also
appealed the FERC’s order to the extent of its ruling on the West Coast Heavy Distillate component,

The Quality Bank Administrator issued his interpretations of the payment obligations under the FERC Final
Order, and we and others filed exceptions to these instructions with the FERC. We expect the FERC's ruling on
these payment instruction exceptions later in the first quarter of 2007. Once the FERC rules. the Administrator will
invoice us for amounts due, and we will be required to pay the invoiced amounts, subject to the outcome of the
appeals of the FERC Final Order. We estimate that our net obligatien could be as much as $116 million. Amounts
accrued in excess of this estimated obligation will be retained pending resolution of all appeals.

Redendo Beach taxes

On February 5. 2005, Power received a tax assessment letter, addressed 1o AES Redondo Beach. L.L.C. and
Power, from the city of Redondo Beach, California, in which the city asserted that approximately $33 million in
back taxes and approximately $39 million in interest and penalties are owed related to natural gas used at the
generating facility operated by AES Redondo Beach. Hearings were held in July 2005 and in September 2005 the
tax administrater for the city issucd a decision in which he found Power jointly and severally liable with AES
Redondo Beach for back taxes of approximately $36 million and interest and penalies of approximalely
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$21 miilion. Both we and AES Redondo Beach filed notices of appeal that were heard at the city level. On
December 13, 2006, the city hearing officer for the appeal of the pre-2005 amounts issued a final decision affirming
our utility user tax liability and reversing AES Redondo’s liability because the officer ruled that AES Redondo is an
exempt public utility, Even though we appealed this decision to the Los Angeles Superior Court, we may be
required to pay the full amount of any final assessment prior to the resolution of this state court appeal. Despite the
city hearing officer’s unfavorable decision and the potential payment to preserve our appeal rights, we do not
believe a contingent loss is probable.

The City’s current assessment of our liability (for the periods from 1998 through September 2006) is
approximately $69 million (inclusive of interest and penalties). We have protested all these assessments and
requested hearings on them. We and AES Redondo have also filed separate refund actions in Los Angeles Superior
Court related to certain taxes paid since the initial 2005 notice of assessment. We believe that under our tolling
agreement related to the Redondo Beach generating facility, AES Redondo Beach is responsible for taxes of the
nature asserted by the city; however, AES Redondo Beach has notified us that it does not agree.

Gulf Liguids litigation

Gulf Liquids contracted with Gulsby Engineering Inc. (Gulsby) and Gulsby-Bay for the construction of certain
gas processing plants in Louisiana. National American Insurance Company (NAICO) and American Home
Assurance Company provided payment and performance bonds for the projects. Gulsby and Gulsby-Bay defaulted
on the construction contracts. In the fall of 2001, the contractors, sureties, and Gulf Liquids filed multiple cases in
Louisiana and Texas. In January 2002, NAICO added Gulf Liquids’ co-venturer Power to the suits as a third-party
defendant. Gulf Liquids asserted claims against the contractors and sureties for, among other things, breach of
contract requesting contractual and consequential damages from $40 million to $80 million, any of which is subject
to a sharing arrangement with XL Insurance Company.

At the conclusion of the conselidated trial of the asserted contract and tort claims, the jury returned its actual
damages verdict against Power and Gulf Liquids on July 31, 2006 and its related punitive damages verdict on
August 1, 2006. The court is not expected to enter any judgment until the second or third quarter of 2007. Based on
our interpretation of the jury verdicts, we have estimated exposure for actual damages of approximately $68 million
plus potential interest of approximately $22 miltion, all of which have been accrued as of December 31, 2006. [n
addition, it is reasonably possible that any ultimate judgment may include additional amounts of approximately
$199 million in excess of our accrual, which primarily represents our estimate of potential punitive damage
exposure under Texas law.

Hurricane lawsuits

We were named as a defendant in two class action petitions for damages filed in federal court in Louisiana in
September and October 2005 arising from hurricanes that struck Louisiana in 2005. The class action plaintiffs,
purporting to represent persons, businesses and entities in the State of Louisiana who have suffered damage as a
result of the winds and storm surge from the hurricanes, ailege that the operating activities of the two sub-classes of
defendants, which are all oil and gas pipelines (including Transco) that dredged pipeline canals or installed
pipelines in the marshes of south Louisiana and all oil and gas exploration and production companies which drilled
for oil and gas or dredged canals in the marshes of south Louisiana, have altered marshland ecology and caused
marshland destruction which otherwise would have averted all or almost all of the destruction and loss of life caused
by the hurricanes. Plaintiffs requested that the court allow the lawsuits to proceed as class actions and sought legal
and equitable relief in an unspecified amount. In September 2006, the court granted our and the other defendants’
joint motion to dismiss the class action petitions on various grounds. In August 2006, an additional class action case
containing substantially identical allegations was filed against the same defendants, including Transco. This case
was dismissed on November 30, 2006.
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Wyoming severance taxes

The Wyoming Department of Audit (DOA) audited the severance lax reporting for our subsidiary Williams
Production RMT Company for the production years 2000 through 2002. In August 2006, the DOA assessed
additional severance tux and interest for those periods of approximately $3 million. In addition, the DOA notified us
of an increase in the taxable value of our interests for ad valorem tax purposes, which is estimated to result in
additional taxes of approximately $2 million, including interest. We dispute the DOA’s interpretation of the
statutory obligation and have appealed this assessment to the Wyoming State Board of Equalization. If the DOA
prevails in its interpretation of our obligation and applies the same basis of assessment to subsequent periods, it is
reasonably possible that we could owe a total of approximately $2 | million to $23 million in taxes and interest from
January 1, 2003. through December 31, 2006.

Royaltv litigation

In September 2006, royalty interest owners in Garfield County, Colorado, filed a class action suit in Colorado
state court alleging that we improperly calculated oil and gas royalty payments, failed 10 account for the proceeds
that we received from the sale of gas and extracted products, improperly charged certain expenses, and faited o
refund amounts withheld in excess of ad valorem tax obligations. The plaintiffs claim that the class might be in
excess of 500 individuals and seek an accounting and damages. The parties have agreed to slay this action in order to
participate in a mediation to be scheduled.

Other Divestiture Indemnifications

Pursvant to vartous purchase and sale agrecments relating to divested businesses and assets, we have
indemnified certain purchasers against liabilities that they may incur with respect to the businesses and assets
acquired from us. The indemnities provided 1o the purchasers are customary in sale transactions and are contingent
upon the purchasers incurring liabilities that are not otherwise recoverable from third parties. The indemnities
generally relate to breach of warranties, tax, historic litigation, personal injury, environmental matters, right of way
and other representations that we have provided.

We sold u natural gas liquids pipeline system in 2002, and in July 2006, the purchaser of that system filed its
complaint against us and our subsidiaries in state court in Houston, Texas. The purchaser alleges that we breached
certain warranties under the purchase and sale agreement and seeks an unspecified amount of damages and our
specific performance under certain guarantees. On September 1, 2006, we filed our answer to the purchaser’s
complaint denying all liability. We anticipate that the trial will occur in the fourth quarter 2007, and our prior suit
{1led ugainst the purchaser in Delaware state court has been stayed pending resolution of the Texas case.

At December 31, 2006, we do not expect any of the indemnities provided pursuant to the sales agreements to
have a material impact on our future financial position. However, if a claim for indemnity is brought against us in the
future, it may have a material adverse effect on results of operations in the period in which the claim is made.

In addition to the foregoing, various other proceedings are pending against us which are incidental to our
operations, '

Summary

Litigation, arbitration, regulatory matters, and environmenta! matters are subject to inherent uncertainties.
Were an unfavorable ruling to occur, there exists the possibility of a material adverse impact on the results of
operations in the period in which the ruting occurs. Management, including internal counsel, currently believes that
the ultimate resolution of the foregoing matters, tuken as a whole and after consideration of amounts accrued,
insurance coverage, recovery from customers or other indemnification arrangements, will not have a materially
adverse effect upon our future financial position.
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~ 4

Comumnitments

Power has entered into certain contracts giving it the right to receive fuel conversion services as well as certain
other services associated with electric generation facilities that are currently in operation throu ghout the continental
United States. At December 31, 2006, Power’s estimated committed payments under these-contracts range from
approximately $406 million to $424 million annually through 2017 and decline over the remaining f{ive years to
$59 million in 2022. Total committed payments under these contracts over the next sixteen years are approximatzly
$5.5 billion. Included in the $5.5 billion is a $1.9 billion contract that is accounted for as an operating lease. {See
Leases-Lessee in Note 11.) Total payments made under these contracts durmg 2006, 2005, and 2004 were
$409 million, $403 million, and $402 million, respectively.

Commitments for construction and‘ acquisition of property, plant and equlpment are approx1man-ly
$406 million at December 31, 2006

{

R
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Summarized fquartcr'ly financial data are as follows (millions, except per-share amounts).
; ' .o T ." - _ First = Second Third Fourth
: R S Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2006 ) -
Revenues .............. PR ORI Wbl 78302750 $2,715.10 $3,300.0  $2,770.3
Costs and operating-expenses. .-i.............. Ll 2,588.7 . 22738. 28224 22887
Income (loss) from continuing operations. . . >........:....  13L1 . (639 - 110.1 . - 1555
Net income (loss) .. ....... (ST PR Cioo.o. 1319 (76.0).-  106.2 146.4
Basic earnings per common share: S : Lo

Income (loss) from continuing operations . @ : ... .t ..c... ¢ 22 (11 A9 7 27
Diluted earnings per,common share: I " .

Income (loss) from continuing operatiofls .......... P ) A A9 025
W05 . e e e S . B
REVENUES . .1 . . o0 o 0 i it T e TL.aait $29540  $2,871:2. - $3,082.3  $3,676.1
Costs drid operating‘expenses’ .. . 7. L L il e 23903 02,4916 ¢ 28262 ¢ 3,162.9
Income from continuing operations . .. .................. 202.2 407 7 57 7 688
Income before cumulative effect of cHange in‘accouriting Lo ‘ C '

principle * ... ... .. b SIUTLT L 2010 41y 44 685
Netincome . . .. ...ovvorrnrenen.. [ LS 0 413 a4 668
Basic earnings per common share! L e ' R o

Income from continuing operations . ..., .............. 36 07 01 12

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle .. ... ... 36 07 01 A2

Diluted earnings per common share:
Income from continuing operations . .................. 34 .07 .01 A1

Income before cumulative effect of chaﬁge in accounting
PINCIPYE . . L 34 07 01 11

The sum of earnings per share for the four quarters may not equal the total earnings per share for the year due
to changes in the average number of common shares outstanding and rounding.

Net income (loss) for fourth quarter 2006 includes a $40 million reduction to the tax provision associated with a
favorable U.S. Tax Court ruling, a $7.4 million increase to the tax provision associated with an adjustment to
deferred income taxes (see Note 5) and the following pre-tax items:

+ A $16.4 million impairment of a Venezuelan cosi-based investment at Exploration & Production (see
Note 3};

« A $14.7 million charge associated with an oil purchase contract related to our former Alaska refinery (see
Note 2).

Net income (loss) for third quarter 2006 includes the following pre-tax items:

= $12.7 million of income due to a reduction of contingent obligations at our former distributive power
generation business at Power (see Note 4);

+ $10.6 million of expense related to an adjustment of an accounts payable accrual at Midstream;

« $6 million accrual for a loss contingency related to a former exploration business (see Note 2);
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Net income (loss) for second quarter 2006 includes the following pre-tax items:
« $160.7 million accrual related to our securitics litigation settlement at Other (see Note 15);

* $88 million accrual for Gulf Liquids litigation contingency and associated interest expense at Midstream
(see Note 4);

» $19.2 million accrual for an adverse arbitration award related to our former chemical fertifizer business
(see Note 2).

Net income (loss) for the first quarter 2006 includes the following pre-tax items:

+ $27 million premium and conversion expenses related to the convertible debenture conversion at Other
{see Note 12);

= $23.7 million gain on sale of certain receivables at Power;
* $9 million of income related to the settlement of an international contract dispute at Midstream;

+ $7 million associated with the reversal of an accrued litigation contingency due to a favorable court ruling
and the related accrued interest income at our Gas Pipeline segment.

Net income for fourth quarter 2005 includes a $20.2 million reduction to the tax provision associated with an
adjustment to deferred income taxes (see Note 5) and the {ollowing pre-tax items:

+ $68.7 million accrual for litigation contingencies at Power (see Note 4};
+ $38.1 million impairment of our investment in Longhorn at Other (see Note 3);

+ $32.1 million charge related 1o accounting and valuation corrections for certain inventory items at Gas
Pipeline (see Note 4);

» $23 million impairment of our investment in Aux Sable at Power (see Note 3);
» $5.2 million accrual for contingent refund obligations at Gas Pipeline (see Note 4).

Net income for third quarter 2005 includes the following pre-tax items:

* $21.7 million gain on sale of certain natural gas properties at Exploration & Production {(see Note 4);
= $14.2 million of income from the reversal of a liability due to resolution of litigation at Gas Pipeline;

+ $13.8 million increase in expense related to the settlement of certain insurance coverage issues associated
with ERISA and securities litigation at Other.

Net income for second quarter 2005 includes the following pre-tax items:

¢ $49.1 million impairment of our investment in Longhorn at Other (see Note 3);

» $17.1 million reduction of expense at Gas Pipeline to correct the overstatement of pension expense in
prior periods (sece Note 7);

* $13.1 million accrual for litigation contingencies at Power (see Note 4);

+ $8.6 million gain on sale of our remaining interests in Mid-America Pipeline and Seminole Pipeline at
Midstream.

Net income for first quarter 2005 includes the following pre-tax items:

= $13.1 million of income due to the reversal of certain prior period accruals at Gas Pipeline;

+ $7.9 miltion gain on sale of certain natural gas properties at Exploration & Production (see Note 4).
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The following information pertains to our oil and gas producing activities and is presented in accordance with
SFAS No. 69, “Disclosures About Oil and Gas Producing Activities.” The information is required to be disclosed by
geographic region. We have significant oil and gas producing activities primarily in the Rocky Mountain and Mid-
continent areas of the United States. Additionally, we have international oil and gas producing activities, primarily
in Argentina. However, proved reserves and revenues related to international activities are approximately
4.2 percent and 4.3 percent, respectively, of our total international and domestic proved reserves and revenues.
The following information relates only to the oil and gas activities in the United States.

Capitalized Costs

As of December 31,

2006 2005
(Millions)
Proved properties. . .. ... ... .. ... .. ... . $ 50266 $3,870.5
Unproved properties. .. ......... ... ... ... ... ... ... . . . . ... 500.3 503.1

5,526.9 4,373.6
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization and valuation

PIOVISIONS . ... .o (1,259.9) (937.4)
Net capitalized costs ...... ... ... ... ... ... $4267.0 $3,436.2

* Capitalized costs include the cost of equipment and facilities for oil and gas producing activities. These
amounts for 2006 and 2005 do not include approximately $1 billion of goodwill related to the purchase of
Barrett Resources Corporation (Barrett) in 2001,

* Proved properties include capitalized costs for oil and gas leascholds holding proved reserves; devel-
opment wells and related equipment and facilities (including uncompleted development well costs); and
successful exploratory wells and related equipment and facilities.

* Unproved properties consist primarily of acreage related to probable/possible reserves acquired through

the Barrett acquisition in 2001. The balance is unproved exploratory acreage.

Costs Incurred

For the Year Ended

December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(Miilions)
Acquisition .. ... .. $ B840 $453 $ 172
Exploration . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . . . . . . . . 20.2 8.3 4.5
Development . ....... .. ... .. ... . ... .. 1,172.5 7231 4192

$1,276.7 $776.7  $440.9

« Costs incurred include capitalized and expensed items.

* Acquisition costs are as follows: The 2006 cost is primarily for additional land and reserve acquisitions in
the Fort Worth basin. The 2005 costs primarily consist of a land and reserve acquisition in the Fort Worth
basin and an additional land acquisition in the Arkoma basin. The 2004 costs relate to land and reserve
acquisitions in the San Juan Basin, Arkoma basin, and the Powder River basin.
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'+ Exploration costs include the costs of geological and geophysical activity, drilling and equipping
exploratory wells determined to be dry holes, and the cost of retaining undeveloped leaseholds including
lease amortization and impairments.

* Development costs include costs incurred to gain access to and prepare development well locations for
drilling and to drill and equip development wells.

Results of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31,

‘ . . . 2006 2005 © 2004
{Millions)
Revenues: : _
' Oil and gas revenues ........ e RETTPI $1,237.8  $1,0724  $399.9
cherrevenues....,..i................._ ............. ‘ 186.1 143.3 137.3
Total teVeNUES . ..o oottt e e e e 1,423.9 1,215.7 737.2
Costs: ‘ .
Production costS. . . ... ... e e 308.5 230.3 165.4
General & administrative .. ............................ 111 79.5 58.3
Exploration expenses ... . ........... o i . 184 83 4.5
Depreciation, depletion & amortization. . . .................. 351.1 2447 183.4
{Gains)/Losses on sales of interests in oil and gas properties . . . . (4) - (30.8) 0.1
Other expenses . .......... e e e e -136.1 141.1 115.2
Ot COSIS .« .. 9248 673.1  526.9
Results of operations . .. . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... it + 499.1 542.6 210.3
Provnsmn fOr INCOME TaXeS. . . vt i i (174.5) (216.9) (81.4)
Explorat:on and produc[lon net income ........... e .. 8 3246 $ 3257 $1289

Results of operations for producing activities consist of all related domestic activities within the
Exploration & Production reporting unit. Other expenses in 2005 and 2004 include a $6 million and
$16 million gain, respectively, on sales of securities associated with d coal seam royalty trust.

Oil and gas revenues consist primarily of natural gas production sold to the Power subsidiary and includes
the impact of mtercompany hedges

i
Other revenues and other expenses consist of activities within the Exploration & Production segment that
are not a direct part of the: producing activities. These non-producing activities include acquisition and
disposition of other working iriterest and royalty interest gas and the movement of gas from the wellhead
to ‘the tailgate of the respéctive plants for sale to the Power subsidiary or third party purchasers. In

*1 " " addition, other revenues include recognition of i income from transactions Wthh transferred certain non-
SR operatmg benefits to a lhl['d pany ’ o . '

Producuon COosts consist of costs incurred to operate’ and maintain wells and related eqmpmem and
facilities used in the production-of petroleum liquids and natural gas. These costs also include production
' taxes other than income taxes and administrative expenses in support of production activity. Excluded are
depreciation, depletion and amortization of capitalized acquisition, exploration and development costs,
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THE WILLIAMS COMPANIES, INC.
SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

’

ADDITIONS
Charged to
Beginning Cost and' Ending
Halance . Expenses Other Deductions Balance
: . . _ (Miltions).
Year ended December 31, 2006: . T Lo
Allowance for doubtful accounts — accounts and
notes receivable{a). . .. ... ... ... .. ... ... .. $ 866 $ 37 5(65.6)(f) % 8.8(c) $15.9
Price-risk management credit reserves{a) . ....... 37.0 6.D(d)  (10.6)e) - 20.3
Proccssing_ plant major maintenance accrual(b). . . . 7.2 1.6 — 9 7.9
Year ended December 31, 2005:
Allowance for doubtful dccounts — accounts and :
notes receivable(a). . ........... . ... . ... . 98.8 35 — 15.7(¢c) 86.6
Pricelrisk management credit reserves(a) ... ... .. 264 (2.6)d)y 13.2(e) —_ 37.0
Processing plant major maintenance accrual(h). . . . 5.7 1.5 — — 7.2
Year ended December 31, 2004:
Allowance for doubtful accounts — accounts and ‘ a
notes.receivable{a). . .. ......... . ...... . .. 112.2 (.8). L — 12.6(c) 98.8
Price-risk management credit reserves(a) . ... .... . 398 ( ]2_.8)(d). (.6)(e) -, 264
Processing plant major maintenance accrual(b). . . . 4.1 16 — — 5.7

-

(a) Deducted from related assets. - - ' A
{b) Included in accrued liabilities in 2006 and orher liabilities and deferred income in 2005 and 2004.
(c) Represents balances written off, reclassifications, and recoveries.
(d) Included in revenues. '

(e} Included in accumulated other comprehensive loss. .

(f) During 2006, $65.6 million in previously reserved Enron receivables were sold.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements wn‘h Accauntants on Accountmg and Financial Disclosure

T ’ 1 . ’ ‘ o

None . _ on

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures -, .
Evaloafion of Discloéure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
défined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act) (Dlsclosure Controls) was performed as
of the ‘end of the period covered by this report. This evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Based upon
that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that these Disclosure Conti ols
aré effective at a reasonable’ assurance level

_ Our management, 1ncludmg our Chief Executwe Officer and Chief Fmancnal Officer, does not expect that o our
Dlsclosure Controls will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived .mq
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met.
Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of
controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in ail control systems, no
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the
company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can
be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be
circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by coltusion of two or more people, or by management
override of the control. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the
likélihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals
under all potential future conditions. Because ‘of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system,
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. We monitor our Disclosure Controls and make
modifications as necessary; our inteént in this regard is that the Dlsclosure Controls will be modified as systems
chcmge and conditions warrant.:' © ), ‘

LA R L r

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting’

See “Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting” set forth in Item 8, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.
Fourth Quarter 2006 Changes in lntemal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes durmg the fourth quarter that materlally affected or are reasonably hkely o
matenally affecl our mtemal contro] over financial reporting.

[ ~
.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information regarding our directors and nominees for director required by Item 401 of Regulation S-K will
be presented under the headings “Board of Directors — Board Committees,” “Election of Directors,” and “Prin-
cipal Accounting Fees and Services” in our Proxy Statement prepared for the solicitation of proxies in connection
with our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held May 17, 2007 (Proxy Statement), which information is
incorporated by reference herein.
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Exhibit

No. Description
24 — Power of Attorney together with certified resolution, . o
31.1  — Centification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) promulgated

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes_-Oxlcy Act of 2002, e :

31.2 — Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) promulgated
) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Item 601(b)(31) of Regulation S-K, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. oo

32— Certification of the Chief Executive Officer dnd the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 US.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to'Section 906 of the Sarbanés-Oxley Act of 2002,
toe LT t i " .

G

* Each such exhibit has heretofore been filed with the SEC as part of the ﬁ!ing indicated and is incorporated herein
by reference. ‘ T L A - - .
' ! ‘ T t L AT

156




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Tue WiLLiams Companies, INC.
(Registrant)

By: fs!  Brian K. SHORE

Brian K. Shore
Attorney-in-Fact

Date: February 28, 2007

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature m Date
/s/  StEvEN J. MaLcoLm* President, Chief Exccutive Officer February 28, 2007
Steven J. Malcolm® and Chairman of the Board

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ DonaLp R. CHAPPEL¥ Sentor Vice President and Chief February 28, 2007
Donald R. Chappel* Financial Officer (Principal Financial
Officer)
/s Tep T. TIMMERMANS* Controller {Principal Accounting February 28, 2007
Ted T. Timmermans* Officer)
/s!/  KatHLEEN B. Cooper* Director February 28, 2007
Kathleen B. Cooper*
/s/ IRL F. ENGELHARDT* Director February 28, 2007
Irl F. Engethardt*
fsf/  WiLLIaM R. GRANBERRY* Director February 28, 2007
William R. Granberry*
fs/ WiLLiaM E, GREEN* Director February 28, 2007
William E. Green*
fsf Juanita H. HinsHAW® Director February 28, 2007
Juanita H. Hinshaw*
/s/ W.R. HoweLL* Director February 28, 2007
W.R. Howell*
/s/  CHarrLes M. LiLis* Director February 28, 2007
Charles M. Lillis*
Is/  GeorGE A. LoRcH* Director February 28, 2007

George A. Lorch*
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/8! WiLLiaM G. Lowre*
William G. Lowrie*

Director
February 28, 2007

/s/  Frank T. MacInnis*
Frank T. MacInnis*

Director
February 28, 2007

Is/  Janice D, Stoney*

Janice D. Stoney*

Director
February 28, 2007
*By:

/s/  BRrian K. SHORE

Brian K. Shore
Attornev-in-Fact
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CORPORATE DATA

Annual Meeting

Stockholders are invited to our anaual meeting at 11 a.m. Central
Time on May 17, 2007, in the presentation theater, Williams Resource
Center, One Williams Center, Tulsa, Okla.

Internet
Company information is available at www.williams.com.

Inguiries
Ta request additionai materials, phone 918-573-4084 or
800-600-3782, or access our web site.

Qur investor relations group is available ta answer questions about

Williams. Call Richard George or Sharna Reingold at 918-573-3679
or 918-573-2078, respectively, or 800-600-3782. Direct your written
inquiries to investor relations at our headquarters address below,

Corporate Headquarters
One Williams Center, Tulsa, 0K 74172
Phone: 918-573-2000 or toll-free, 800-WILLIAMS

Washington 0ffice
1627 Eye Street, NW., Suite 900, Washington, D.C. 20006

Transfer Agent and Registrar

UMB Bank, n.a.

P.0. Box 419064, Kansas City, MO 64141-6064
Phone: 816-860-7786 or toll-free, B00-884-4225

UMB Bank n.a. Web site:
www.umb.com/Commercial/ShareholderServices/TransterAgent/index htm
Submit shareholder questions: stock.transfer@umb.com

Manage your UMB Bank, n.a. account anline:
hitp://shareholderview.ymb.com

Send avernight mail to:

UMB Bank, n.a.

Securities Transfer Division

928 Grand Boulevard, 5th Floor, Kansas City, MO 64106
Pltone: 816-860-7786

Contact our transfer agent for informatian on registered share
accounts, dividend payments or to receive information on our Direct
Stock Purchase Plan.

Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP, Box 1529, Tulsa, OK 74101

Certifications

We submitted the certification of Steven J. Malcolm, our Chairman of
the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President, ta the New Yark Stock
Bxchange pursuant ta NYSE Section 303A.12{a) on May 30, 2006.

We afso filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

February 28, 2007, as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to our Annual Report an
form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, the certificates of our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as required by Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Equal Opportunity
The Company is an Equal Empleyment Opportunity (EEQ) employer and
does not discriminate in any employer/emplayee relations based on race,
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, age, disability or
veteran's status.

STOCKHOLDER INFORMATION

Williams Securities
Williams common stock (WMB) is listed an the New York stock exchange.

The market value on Feb. 28, 2007, of WMB was approximately

$16.1 billion, On that date, 11,875 sharehalders of record hetd
Wiltiams common stock. The company's common stock in 2006 traded
at an average daily volume of 4.4 million shares.

Williams Common Stock Activity

Williams paid a dividend of five cents per share in the first two
quarters of 2005. A dividend of seven and one-half cents per share
was paid in the last two quarters of 2005 and the first quarter of
2006. A dividend of nine cents per share was paid in the last three
quarters of 2006.

WMB AVERAGE RAILY YOLUMES TRADED (thousands of shares)
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WME PRICE RANGES ($/share) High e Low e

2002 2001

L L L L A L 1 A L L L L 4 1
T2 3 4 1 72 3 4 1 2 % 4 1 11 41 72 3 4
NOTE: Grap reflects intraday treding prices.

WMB DAILY CLOSING PRICES ($/share)

2006 2005
Quarter High Low High  Low
1 2512 1949 1929 1529
2 2336 203 1921 1629
] 523 2251 2505 19.16
4 2185 2295 2540 19.97
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